
 

 

 
 
 

Council 
 
 
 

Wednesday 5 September 2012 
 

2.05pm (or at the conclusion of the Special Meeting of the 
Council, whichever should be the later) 
 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Pinstone 
Street, Sheffield S1 2HH 
 

 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

COUNCIL 

 

Wednesday 5 September 2012, at 2.05 pm 
Town Hall, Sheffield, S1 2HH 

 

The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 

MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 
 

THE LORD MAYOR (Councillor John Campbell) 
THE DEPUTY LORD MAYOR (Councillor Vickie Priestley) 

 

1 Arbourthorne Ward 10 Dore & Totley Ward 19 Mosborough Ward 
 Julie Dore 

John Robson 
Jack Scott 
 

 Keith Hill 
Joe Otten 
Colin Ross 
 

 David Barker 
Isobel Bowler 
Tony Downing 
 

2 Beauchief & Greenhill Ward 11 East Ecclesfield Ward 20 Nether Edge Ward 
 Simon Clement-Jones 

Roy Munn 
Clive Skelton 
 

 Garry Weatherhall 
Steve Wilson 
Joyce Wright 
 

 Nikki Bond 
Anders Hanson 
Qurban Hussain 
 

3 Beighton Ward 12 Ecclesall Ward 21 Richmond Ward 
 Helen Mirfin-Boukouris 

Chris Rosling-Josephs 
Ian Saunders 
 

 Penny Baker 
Roger Davison 
Diana Stimely 
 

 l 
Martin Lawton 
Lynn Rooney 
 

4 Birley Ward 13 Firth Park Ward 22 Shiregreen & Brightside Ward 

 Denise Fox 
Bryan Lodge 
Karen McGowan 
 

 Shelia Constance 
Alan Law 
Chris Weldon 
 

 Peter Price 
Sioned-Mair Richards 
Peter Rippon 
 

5 Broomhill Ward 14 Fulwood Ward 23 Southey Ward 

 Jayne Dunn 
Shaffaq Mohammed 
Stuart Wattam 
 

 Sue Alston 
Andrew Sangar 
Janice Sidebottom 
 

 Leigh Bramall 
Tony Damms 
Gill Furniss 
 

6 Burngreave Ward 15 Gleadless Valley Ward 24 Stannington Ward 

 Jackie Drayton 
Ibrar Hussain 
Talib Hussain 
 

 Steve Jones 
Cate McDonald 
Tim Rippon 
 

 David Baker 
Katie Condliffe 
 
 

7 Central Ward 16 Graves Park Ward 25 Stockbridge & Upper Don Ward 

 Jillian Creasy 
Mohammad Maroof 
Robert Murphy 
 

 Ian Auckland 
Bob McCann 
Denise Reaney 
 

 Alison Brelsford 
Richard Crowther 
Philip Wood 
 

8 Crookes Ward 17 Hillsborough Ward 26 Walkley Ward 

 Sylvia Anginotti 
Rob Frost 
Geoff Smith 
 

 Janet Bragg 
Bob Johnson 
George Lindars-Hammond 
 

 Ben Curran 
Neale Gibson 
Nikki Sharpe 
 

9 Darnall Ward 18 Manor Castle Ward 27 West Ecclesfield Ward 

 Harry Harpham 
Mazher Iqbal 
Mary Lea 
 

 Jenny Armstrong 
Terry Fox 
Pat Midgley 
 

 Trevor Bagshaw 
Adam Hurst 
Alf Meade 
 

    28 Woodhouse Ward 

     Mick Rooney 
Jackie Satur 
Ray Satur 
 

 



 

 

John Mothersole Chief Executive 

 
Contact: Paul Robinson, Democratic Services 
 Tel: 0114 2734029 
 paul.robinson@sheffield.gov.uk 
 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
The Council is composed of 84 Councillors with one-third elected three years in four. 
Councillors are democratically accountable to the residents of their Ward. The 
overriding duty of Councillors is to the whole community, but they have a special 
duty to their constituents, including those who did not vote for them 
 
All Councillors meet together as the Council. Here Councillors decide the Council’s 
overall policies and set the budget each year. The Council appoints the Leader and 
at its Annual Meeting will appoint Councillors to serve on its Committees.  It also 
appoints representatives to serve on joint bodies and external organisations.   
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk.  You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday, or you can ring on telephone no. 2734552.  You 
may not be allowed to see some reports because they contain confidential 
information.  These items are usually marked * on the agenda.  
 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Cabinet 
meetings.  Please see the website or contact Democratic Services for further 
information. 
 
Council meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the Council may 
have to discuss an item in private.  If this happens, you will be asked to leave.  Any 
private items are normally left until last.  If you would like to attend the meeting 
please report to the First Point Reception desk where you will be directed to the 
meeting room 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 



 

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
5 SEPTEMBER 2012 

 
Order of Business 

 
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

2.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be 
considered at the meeting 
 

3.   
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 To receive the record of the proceedings of the ordinary and special 
meetings of the Council both held on 4th July, 2012, and to approve the 
accuracy thereof. 
 

4.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS AND OTHER 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 To receive any questions or petitions from the public, or communications 
submitted by the Lord Mayor or the Chief Executive and to pass such 
resolutions thereon as the Council Procedure Rules permit and as may be 
deemed expedient 
 

5.   
 

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
 

 5.1 Questions relating to urgent business – Council Procedure Rule 16.6(ii). 
  
5.2 Supplementary questions on written questions submitted at this meeting 

– Council Procedure Rule 16.4. 
  
5.3 Questions on the discharge of the functions of the South Yorkshire Joint 

Authorities for Fire and Rescue, Integrated Transport, Pensions and 
Police - Section 41 of the Local Government Act, 1985 – Council 
Procedure Rule 16.6(i). 

 
 

6.   
 

PROPORTIONAL ALLOCATION OF SEATS ON COUNCIL 
COMMITTEES - UPDATE 
 

 Report of the Chief Executive. 
 

7.   
 

ESTABLISHMENT OF A SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME 
PANEL AND APPOINTMENT OF LOCAL AUTHORITY MEMBERS 
 

 Report of the Chief Executive. 



 

 

 
8.   
 

REPRESENTATION, DELEGATED AUTHORITY AND RELATED 
ISSUES 
 

 To consider any changes to the memberships and arrangements for 
meetings of Committees etc., delegated authority, and the appointment of 
representatives to serve on other bodies 
 

9.   
 

CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION 
 

 Report of the Chief Executive. 
 

10.   
 

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE LORD MAYOR 2011/12 
 

 To receive a report of Dr. Sylvia Dunkley on her term of office as Lord 
Mayor during the Municipal Year 2011/12. 
 
 

11.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR LEIGH BRAMALL 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) notes that the latest estimates indicate that the British economy contracted 

by 0.5% in the second quarter of 2012 which means that the economy has 
been shrinking for three consecutive quarters in the country's second 
recession in four years; 

 
(b) further notes that construction fell by 3.9%, manufacturing output down 

0.9% and the service sector shrank by 0.1%; 
 
(c) regrets that the UK is just one of two countries in the G20 in recession and 

believes that it is now beyond doubt that the Government’s economic plan 
has failed and has caused a double dip recession and the Government 
have completely failed to produce a credible plan for jobs and growth; 

 
(d) further regrets that at the current time there are still more than one million 

young people unemployed and believes that more action should be taken 
to tackle youth unemployment; 

 
(e) notes that as a result of the Government’s reckless economic 

mismanagement the deficit is up by more than a quarter compared to the 
same period last year with fewer people in work and fewer businesses 
succeeding, and the Government is having to borrow more not less as 
welfare bills rise and tax revenues fall; 

 
(f) regrets that because of the Government’s mismanagement of the 

economy, with slower growth and higher unemployment, spending 
reductions are now set to continue beyond the current Parliament; 

 
(g) believes that the Government should now change course and take action 



 

 

to secure growth and supports Labour’s five-point growth plan for jobs and 
growth which includes: 

 
(i) repeating the bank bonus tax and using the money to build 25,000 

affordable homes and guarantee a job for 100,000 young people; 
 
(ii) bringing forward long term investment projects, such as schools, 

roads and transport, to create jobs; 
 
(iii) reversing the Government’s VAT rise now for a temporary period; 
 
(iv) an immediate one-year cut in VAT to 5% on home improvements, 

repairs and maintenance; and 
 
(v) a one-year national insurance tax break for every small firm which 

takes on extra workers; 
 
(h) further believes that these policies are better placed to grow the economy 

than recent suggestions by Conservative MPs Kwasi Kwarteng, Priti Patel, 
Dominic Raab, Chris Skidmore and Elizabeth Truss in their book “Britainia 
Unchained” who blame British workers for the poor state of the economy; 

 
(i) completely condemns these comments by Conservative MPs which 

include "The British are among the worst idlers in the world. We work 
among the lowest hours, we retire early and our productivity is poor.”; 

 
(j) believes that these comments are completely out of touch with reality and 

are an insult to millions of British people who work long hours for low pay; 
and 

 
(k) further believes that instead of mounting attacks on hard working British 

people these MPs would be better served calling on the Government, 
which has created a double dip recession and continues to hit hard 
working families through tax rises and spending cuts at the same time as 
they are cutting taxes for millionaires, to change course. 

 
 

12.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR DAVID BAKER 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) notes the record of the current Administration, which includes: 
 

(i) ending the weekly collection of black bins; 
 
(ii) ceasing the funding for the free collection of green bins and green 

sacks; 
 
(iii) further reducing funding for Sheffield’s household waste recycling 

centres; and 



 

 

 
(iv) delays in the city-wide roll out of the flexible blue bin and box offer; 
 

(b) believes that cutting recycling services at the same time as weekly black 
bin collections always amounted to a recipe for disaster; 

 
(c) recalls the fully-costed budget amendment put forward by the main 

opposition group at the Full Council meeting on 9th March 2012, which 
would have retained weekly black bin collections and free green waste 
collections; 

 
(d) further recalls the decision of the current Administration not to formally bid 

for funding under the Department for Communities and Local 
Government’s scheme to save weekly bin collections, unlike Labour-
controlled Wolverhampton and Liberal Democrat-controlled Cambridge; 

 
(e) further notes with distress reports that, prior to the change of bin 

collections, Sheffield had the highest reported number of complaints of fly-
tipping in the country; 

 
(f) expresses disappointment at the complete failure of the current 

Administration to effectively communicate the change of collection to some 
local residents, despite spending £400,000 on a propaganda strategy for 
the policy; 

 
(g) regrets that due to the inept communications of the current Administration 

many residents have missed their first collection; 
 
(h) laments the shambolic miscommunication of the amnesty on additional 

sacks and unclosed lids, which was previously denied by members of the 
Administration and was not mentioned in the information leaflet distributed 
to households; 

 
(i) understands that, outside of mitigating criteria, residents can only apply for 

a larger bin if they compose a household of six or more individuals; 
 
(j) in addition, deplores the complete mishandling of Sheffield’s recycling 

centres, in particular, closing Blackstock Road three days a week, which 
has seen serious threats to road safety, as cars tail back along roads; 

 
(k) understands that further strikes at Sheffield’s recycling centres are 

anticipated, which will only serve to exacerbate the situation; 
 
(l) believes the current Administration’s handling of the changes within 

Sheffield’s waste management amounts to sheer incompetence; and 
 
(m) calls upon the Cabinet Member for Environment, Waste and Streetscene 

to offer an immediate public apology to all Sheffield residents and get a 
grip on the deteriorating situation. 

 



 

 

 
13.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR MARY LEA 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a)  condemns the decision of the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts to 

cease performing children’s heart surgery at Leeds General Infirmary; 
 
(b)  acknowledges that the decision means that there will no longer be 

specialist surgery anywhere within the Yorkshire and Humber Region and 
children and families from Sheffield will face increased journey times to 
alternative provision which may put lives at risk; 

 
(c) notes that 13.7 million people live within a two hour drive time of Leeds 

and the birth rate in Yorkshire and Humber over the last 5 years and 
projected forward to 2015 is double the national average; 

 
(d) believes that there is a great deal of concern surrounding the decision-

making process; 
 
(e) is aware that there is now to be a review of services to Adults with 

Congenital Heart Disease which will take place during the 
Summer/Autumn 2013 and that in Leeds surgeons treat both children and 
adults on the same site providing continuity of care; 

 
(f) believes the decision is short-sighted, flawed and will have a hugely 

negative impact on families and children in the City and throughout the 
Yorkshire and Humber region who will face severe logistical difficulties and 
disruption at a time of massive worry about the health of their child and is 
not in their best interests; 

 
(g) also believes the decision to cease the provision for children in isolation 

without considering the impact on the provision of services for people with 
Congenital Heart Disease is not in the best interests of people from across 
the region; and 

 
(h) supports the decision taken by the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee for Yorkshire and the Humber at its meeting on 24th July, 2012, 
to refer the decision to the Secretary of State for Health for 
reconsideration. 

 
 

14.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR SHAFFAQ MOHAMMED 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) recalls its opposition to the closure of the paediatric cardiac surgical centre 

at Leeds General Infirmary; 
 
(b) notes the NHS’ Safe and Sustainable Review into National Children’s 



 

 

Heart Surgery provision, which was launched in 2009 by the previous 
Government with the aim of raising standards of care; 

 
(c) notes with concern, reports that the review team ignored independent 

analysis of patient flow; 
 
(d) highlights the decision of the review to investigate England and Wales in 

isolation, ignoring associated problems with the Glasgow unit, which also 
currently fails to meet the ‘safe and sustainable’ benchmark; 

 
(e) thanks the 600,000 people who signed the petition against the closure of 

the Leeds unit and welcomes the cross-party campaign to save the unit; 
 
(f) reaffirms its opposition to the closure of the Paediatric Cardiac Surgery 

unit at Leeds General Infirmary and calls upon the Secretary of State for 
Health to refer the decision to the Independent Reconfiguration Unit; and 

 
(g) directs that a copy of this motion is sent to all Sheffield MPs and the 

Secretary of State for Health. 
 
 

15.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR ISOBEL BOWLER 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) welcomes the successful staging of the London 2012 Olympic Games and 

notes that the Paralympic Games are currently underway; 
 
(b) celebrates the success of our Yorkshire athletes,  and takes particular 

pride in the success of Sheffield’s Jessica Ennis for winning gold in the 
Heptathlon, noting that if Yorkshire were a country it would have finished 
12th overall in the Olympic rankings; 

 
(c) welcomes that the Games have attracted over 20 million pounds of 

external funding in to Sheffield's economy, and over 50,000 additional 
visitors to Sheffield; 

 
(d) is proud that 250 athletes and officials involved in eight sports from 10 

countries have made full use of four of Sheffield’s facilities for pre games 
training and overall, Sheffield has held over 70 international events and 
training camps connected to the London 2012 Olympic and Paralympic 
Games; 

 
(e) notes that 51 of 'Team GB' will have trained in Sheffield and the City is 

home to five British teams, namely GB Volleyball, GB Boxing, GB Diving, 
GB Table Tennis and GB Para Table Tennis. 

 
(f) is proud that Sheffield will be named as one of only three National Centres 

for Sport and Exercise Medicine as part of the Olympic legacy bid 
commitments made by the UK; 



 

 

 
(g) thanks local people for supporting events associated with the Games held 

in Sheffield, including the Torch Relay, Sheftival, Paralympic flame events 
and Jessica Ennis’ homecoming celebration; and 

 
(h) would like to thank the City Centre Management and Events Teams, 

Activity Sheffield, Sheffield International Venues and Streetforce for their 
contribution to the success of these and other events held in the City over 
the summer, including Tramlines and the Sheffield Grand Prix cycling 
event. 

 
 

16.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR JOE OTTEN 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) notes the overwhelming success of the London 2012 Olympic Games; 
 
(b) commends the 29 Gold, 17 Silver & 19 Bronze medals won in the Games, 

the highest tally for Great Britain since the 1908 Olympic Games; 
 
(c) praises the logistical operation undertaken by London Organising 

Committee of the Olympic Games, in particular, Sheffield’s Lord Sebastian 
Coe; 

 
(d) applauds the energy and delight with which all the volunteers welcomed 

the world to the United Kingdom; 
 
(e) congratulates Jessica Ennis and all of TeamGB on their great success at 

these Olympic Games, especially those from or based in Sheffield, 
including coaching and support staff; 

 
(f) also eagerly welcomes the London 2012 Paralympics Games, and wishes 

TeamGB good luck at those Games; 
 
(g) believes that participation in sports at any level can have profoundly 

positive effects on mental and physical well-being and social cohesion, 
and hopes the example of TeamGB will inspire not just future elite 
athletes, but also participation in sports and activity at all levels; and 

 
(h) therefore encourages all Sheffielders inspired by the summer of sport to 

get involved with sport and volunteering. 
 
 

17.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR IBRAR HUSSAIN 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) calls upon the British Prime Minister and Foreign Secretary to condemn 

the communal violence by Myanmar (formally Burma) security forces of 



 

 

the minority Rohingya communities in the North East of the country, and to 
respond  to the Human Rights Watch report on the killings published in 
June and to make representations to the Myanmar Government to call for 
action to be taken to protect minority communities in the Country; 

 
(b) calls upon all Sheffield MP’s on behalf of the people of the City to make 

representations to the Myanmar Embassy to condemn the violence and 
lack of action by the Myanmar Government; 

 
(c) questions why there has been so little coverage in the British media, in 

particular the BBC, ITV and SKY have been noticeable in their absence of 
reporting; 

 
(d) rejects the comments of Myanmar Foreign Minister Wunna Maung Lwin 

who said the authorities had exercised "maximum restraint" in restoring 
law and order; 

 
(e) calls upon the Myanmar Government to recognise the Rohingya Muslims 

who have lived in the area for over 800 years; 
 
(f) demands that the Myanmar Government end abuses, grant full 

humanitarian access and invite in international monitors and allow open 
access to the area; and 

 
(g) calls upon neighbouring Bangladesh to comply with the United Nations 

High Commissioner for Refugees’ agreement and accept refuges from 
Myanmar. 

 
 

18.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR IAN AUCKLAND 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) welcomes the announcement of a City Deal for the Sheffield City Region, 

with an unprecedented shift in power and investment from the 
Government to Sheffield City Region; 

 
(b) understands the deal has the potential to deliver 4,000 new 

apprenticeships, 2,000 employees with new training, nearly £40 million to 
redevelop the city centre, and 12,000 new jobs at the City’s enterprise 
zone; 

 
(c) thanks Liberal Democrats in Government for securing this historic deal, in 

particular the Deputy Prime Minister; 
 
(d) recalls that the deal follows hundreds of millions of pounds of investment 

in the region’s infrastructure, including the recent announcement of the 
electrification of the Midland Main Line, the start of the Streets Ahead 
project, and the financial backing for a Sheffield University Technical 
College; 



 

 

 
(e) believes the deal underpins this Government’s commitment to re-

balancing the nation’s economy, away from the City of London so 
shamelessly courted by Governments of the last thirty years, and towards 
cities of the North; 

 
(f) calls upon local authorities, the local enterprise partnership and business 

leaders in the Sheffield City Region to work together to ensure the City 
Deal is a success and that Sheffield becomes a deliverer of growth; and 

 
(g) directs that an annual report is presented to this Council setting out 

progress made in meeting the goals set out in the City Region’s deal. 
 
 

19.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR ROGER DAVISON 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) notes with extreme concern the decision of the Russian judiciary to convict 

the members of the band, Pussy Riot, to two years in jail for hooliganism; 
 
(b) deplores attempts by any administration to curtail free speech, stifle 

genuine debate, or restrict opposition voices; and 
 
(c) directs that a copy of this motion is sent to all Sheffield MPs and the 

Secretary of State for Foreign and Commonwealth Affairs. 
 
 

 

Chief Executive  
 
Dated this 30 day of August 2012 
 
 
The next ordinary meeting of the Council will be held on 3 October 2012 at the 
Town Hall 
 



 

 

 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
The existing Standards regime will be abolished from 1st July, 2012 by the Localism 
Act 2011.  From this date, the way that your interests need to be registered and 
declared will change.  Prejudicial and personal interests will no longer exist and they 
have been replaced by Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs). 
 
The Act also requires that provision is made for interests which are not Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests and requires the Council to introduce a new local Code of 
Conduct for Members.  It is intended that provision will be made in the new Code for 
dealing with “personal” interests. 
 
The Regulations in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests have only recently 
been published by the Government and guidance is being developed for circulation 
to you prior to 1st July. 
 
If at all possible, you should try to identify any potential interest you may have before 
the meeting so that you and the person you ask for advice can fully consider all the 
circumstances before reaching a conclusion on what action you should take. 
 
Advice can be obtained from Lynne Bird, Director of Legal Services on 0114 
2734018 or email lynne.bird@sheffield.gov.uk 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Council of the City of Sheffield held in the Council Chamber 
within the Town Hall, Sheffield, on Wednesday, 4

th
 July, 2012, pursuant to notice duly given and 

Summonses duly served. 
 

PRESENT 

 

THE LORD MAYOR (Councillor John Campbell) 
THE DEPUTY LORD MAYOR (Councillor Vickie Priestley) 

 

1 Arbourthorne Ward 10 Dore & Totley Ward 19 Mosborough Ward 
 Julie Dore  Colin Ross  Anthony Downing 
 John Robson  Joe Otten  David Barker 
 Jack Scott  Keith Hill   
   
2 Beauchief/Greenhill Ward 11 East Ecclesfield Ward 20 Nether Edge Ward 
 Roy Munn  Joyce Wright  Nikki Bond 
 Simon Clement-Jones  Steven Wilson  Qurban Hussain 
 Clive Skelton  Garry Weatherall  Anders Hanson 
      
3 Beighton Ward 12 Ecclesall Ward 21 Richmond Ward 
 Ian Saunders     
 Chris Rosling-Josephs  Diana Stimely   
   Roger Davison  Martin Lawton 
   
4 Birley Ward 13 Firth Park Ward 22 Shiregreen & Brightside Ward 
 Bryan Lodge  Sheila Constance  Sioned-Mair Richards 
 Denise Fox  Chris Weldon  Peter Price 
 Karen McGowan  Alan Law   Peter Rippon  
   
5 Broomhill Ward 14 Fulwood Ward 23 Southey Ward 
 Jayne Dunn  Sue Alston  Tony Damms 
 Stuart Wattam  Andrew Sangar  Leigh Bramall 
 Shaffaq Mohammed     Gill Furniss 
   
6 Burngreave Ward 15 Gleadless Valley Ward 24 Stannington Ward 
 Jackie Drayton  Steve Jones  Katie Condliffe 
 Ibrar Hussain  Tim Rippon   
 Talib Hussain  Cate McDonald    
   
7 Central Ward 16 Graves Park Ward 25 Stocksbridge & Upper Don Ward 
 Robert Murphy  Denise Reaney  Richard Crowther 
 Jillian Creasy  Ian Auckland  Philip Wood 
 Mohammed Maroof  Bob McCann  Alison Brelsford 
   
8 Crookes Ward 17 Hillsborough Ward 26 Walkley Ward 
 Rob Frost  George Lindars-

Hammond 
 Neale Gibson 

 Geoff Smith  Robert Johnson  Nikki Sharpe 
   Janet Bragg  Ben Curran 
   
9 Darnall Ward 18 Manor Castle Ward 27 West Ecclesfield Ward 
 Mary Lea  Pat Midgley  Adam Hurst 
 Harry Harpham  Jenny Armstrong  Alf Meade 
 Mazher Iqbal  Terry Fox  Trevor Bagshaw 
   
  28 Woodhouse Ward 
   Jackie Satur 
   Mick Rooney  
    

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Special Council Meeting 4th July, 2012  Page 2 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

  Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Sylvia Anginotti, 
David Baker, Penny Baker, Isobel Bowler, Helen Mirfin Boukouris, Lynn 
Rooney, Ray Satur and Janice Sidebottom. 

  
2. HONORARY FREEDOM OF THE CITY OF SHEFFIELD 

  
 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: On the Motion of the Lord Mayor (Councillor 

John Campbell), seconded by The Leader of the Council (Councillor Julie 
Dore), that under and by virtue of the provisions of Section 249(5) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Honorary Freedom of the City of Sheffield be 
conferred by the Council on Mrs. Tawakel Karman, Yemeni human rights 
activist, and a person of distinction, having been awarded the Nobel Peace 
Prize in 2011 in recognition of her non-violent struggle for the safety of women 
and for women’s rights to full participation in peace-building work.  

 

Page 2



Minutes of the Meeting of the Council of the City of Sheffield held in the Council Chamber within the 
Town Hall, Sheffield, on Wednesday, 4

th
 July, 2012, pursuant to notice duly given and Summonses 

duly served. 
 

PRESENT 

 

THE LORD MAYOR (Councillor John Campbell) 
THE DEPUTY LORD MAYOR (Councillor Vickie Priestley) 

 

1 Arbourthorne Ward 10 Dore & Totley Ward 19 Mosborough Ward 
 Julie Dore  Colin Ross  Anthony Downing 
 John Robson  Joe Otten  David Barker 
 Jack Scott  Keith Hill   
   
2 Beauchief/Greenhill Ward 11 East Ecclesfield Ward 20 Nether Edge Ward 
 Roy Munn  Joyce Wright  Nikki Bond 
 Simon Clement-Jones  Steven Wilson  Qurban Hussain 
 Clive Skelton  Garry Weatherall  Anders Hanson 
      
3 Beighton Ward 12 Ecclesall Ward 21 Richmond Ward 
 Ian Saunders     
 Chris Rosling-Josephs  Diana Stimely   
   Roger Davison  Martin Lawton 
   
4 Birley Ward 13 Firth Park Ward 22 Shiregreen & Brightside Ward 
 Bryan Lodge  Sheila Constance  Sioned-Mair Richards 
 Denise Fox  Chris Weldon  Peter Price 
 Karen McGowan  Alan Law   Peter Rippon  
   
5 Broomhill Ward 14 Fulwood Ward 23 Southey Ward 
 Jayne Dunn  Sue Alston  Tony Damms 
 Stuart Wattam  Andrew Sangar  Leigh Bramall 
 Shaffaq Mohammed     Gill Furniss 
   
6 Burngreave Ward 15 Gleadless Valley Ward 24 Stannington Ward 
 Jackie Drayton  Steve Jones  Katie Condliffe 
 Ibrar Hussain  Tim Rippon   
 Talib Hussain  Cate McDonald    
   
7 Central Ward 16 Graves Park Ward 25 Stocksbridge & Upper Don Ward 
 Robert Murphy  Denise Reaney  Richard Crowther 
 Jillian Creasy  Ian Auckland  Philip Wood 
 Mohammed Maroof  Bob McCann  Alison Brelsford 
   
8 Crookes Ward 17 Hillsborough Ward 26 Walkley Ward 
 Rob Frost  George Lindars-

Hammond 
 Neale Gibson 

 Geoff Smith  Robert Johnson  Nikki Sharpe 
   Janet Bragg  Ben Curran 
   
9 Darnall Ward 18 Manor Castle Ward 27 West Ecclesfield Ward 
 Mary Lea  Pat Midgley  Adam Hurst 
 Harry Harpham  Jenny Armstrong  Alf Meade 
 Mazher Iqbal  Terry Fox  Trevor Bagshaw 
   
  28 Woodhouse Ward 
   Jackie Satur 
   Mick Rooney  

Page 3



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 2 of 1 
 

 
1.  
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Sylvia Anginotti, David 
Baker, Penny Baker, Isobel Bowler, Helen Mirfin Boukouris, Lynn Rooney, 
Ray Satur and Janice Sidebottom. 

 
2.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
3.  
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 13 June 2012 were approved as a 
correct record.   

 
4.  
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS AND OTHER COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 Petition concerning opening hours of Household Waste Recycling Centres 
  
 The Council received a petition, containing 4,000 signatures, requesting the 

Council to increase the hours of opening of household waste recycling 
centres. 

  
 Representations on behalf of the petitioners were made by Pete Davies, 

GMB Trade Union, who referred to the background to the current dispute 
between the Council and employees working at the Council’s Household 
Waste Recycling Centres. He outlined the concerns of the GMB Union, which 
represented the employees, that they had not been included on a Tendering 
Panel, along with representatives of Veolia and SOVA, when the renewal of 
the current contract and its business model for the recycling service had been 
considered. He believed that, if the GMB had been represented on the Panel, 
the current industrial dispute might have been avoided through a business 
model which would have maintained the level of service, number of jobs and 
improved the terms and conditions of employees which, he suggested, were 
insufficient.  

  
 Mr Davies added that, since January, 2012, the number of employees had 

reduced from 44 to 28, but paradoxically, there had been an increase in 
management posts to 10, which, he considered, was an inappropriate 
delivery model. Currently, the service was faced with losing jobs and a 
reduction in the terms and conditions of employees and of opening hours at 
Recycling Centres. Mr Davies contended that this situation had left 
employees, who were some of the lowest paid in the City, with little 
opportunity to earn a living wage and with no alternative but to take strike 
action, which was part of an overall, massive campaign, captured by the 
petition submitted to the meeting and the major sacrifices being made by the 
workforce who had been on strike for 28 days.  

  
 Mr Davies stated that the Council’s partners had shown little interest in a 

Page 4



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 3 of 1 
 

business model which would increase income from recycling, but he was 
pleased that the Council had agreed, through one of its Scrutiny Committees, 
to examine the position of the current recycling business model and service 
delivery and the future of recycling in the City in general.     

  
 Following an approach from the GMB to discuss a business model which 

would keep Household Waste Recycling Centres open to the public, the 
Council had entered into discussions, the outcome of which was that there 
had been assurances from the Council, SOVA and Veolia that employees at 
the Centres would not lose their jobs. Mr Davies stressed that it was now 
crucial for the Council, starting with the Scrutiny Committee, to ensure that 
there was an effective approach to recycling services in the City. He stated 
that problems experienced in Sheffield had implications for surrounding local 
authority areas as people were taking their waste elsewhere. He also referred 
to potential capacity issues when the change to fortnightly collections was 
implemented. 

  
 Mr Davies drew the Council’s attention to the fact that industrial action had 

now been suspended and thanked the Council for its intervention and for 
listening to the views of GMB members. He hoped that the present 
momentum would continue. 

  
 Councillor Jack Scott (Cabinet Member for Environment, Recycling and 

Streetscene) responded by thanking Mr Davies for presenting the petition to 
Council and he acknowledged the significant number of people who had 
signed the petition. He stated that he understood the strength of feeling on 
this issue, exhibited both by staff and the public and need to pursue the 
improvement of the service which was crucial in enabling the Council to 
become a zero landfill Authority. However, the budgetary pressures on the 
service would remain and needed to be placed in the context of a £170 
million reduction in the funding available to the Council over three years and, 
therefore, there was a need to focus on the problems confronting the service. 
Some consensus had now been achieved with Veolia and SOVA to improve 
employee pay and terms and conditions and he concurred that the 
conversations between respective parties and associated momentum needed 
to continue. 

  
 Councillor Scott said that he believed that it was vital to continue with 

communications between all parties on the future of the recycling service. As 
far as the Scrutiny Committee discussions were concerned, he wanted them 
to be part of a thorough review process, where the Council would, with Veolia 
and SOVA, seek to address the issues that caused the dispute. He was 
thankful that a resolution to the dispute had now been found and confirmed 
that he would continue to work for an effective solution to the problems 
highlighted by the dispute for the benefit of the public and employees. 

  
 Public Questions 
  
 (a) Public Questions on the future of the Number 4 Bus Service and 

Consultation on changes to Bus Services  

Page 5



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 4 of 1 
 

  
 Mrs Dorothy Manners asked why there were plans to suspend the No. 4 bus 

service on Psalter Lane and why part of that service would be re-routed from 
Psalter Lane to Ecclesall Road, which was already serviced by numerous bus 
services, whilst there were none on Psalter Lane, leaving people, like herself, 
who relied on an accessible bus service, without one. She also referred to the 
fact that the current number 4 bus service on Psalter Lane had become 
increasingly unreliable due, in the main, to mechanical failure, which had 
created a situation where people had to walk substantial distances to other 
routes, and to a negative impression of the bus companies concerned.    

  
 Jean Cromar referred to the fact that, under current proposals, the number 4 

bus service would be terminated, with public transport between Millhouses 
and the City Centre being provided by Service 83 via Ecclesall Road. She 
stated that the number 4 service was well used, but confirmed that the 
service was plagued by regular bus breakdowns. The buses used on the 
route were also not accessible by wheelchair users. Therefore, she felt that 
the service would be discontinued by default. She suggested that the current 
proposals would diminish the accessibility to public transport for some users, 
particularly those who lived between Psalter Lane and Ecclesall Road, who 
were faced with walking up and down steep hills for example, Roche Road 
and Hunter House Road, which showed that the proposals had paid little 
attention to the topography of the area or the needs of older or disabled 
residents in the planning of services. She also pointed out that that there 
were approximately 24 buses per hour available on Ecclesall Road. 

  
 She asked, therefore, if the Council would support the continuation of that 

part of the service from Banner Cross to Psalter Lane and Cemetery Road 
and its connection with services on Ecclesall Road as well as endorsing the 
view of the local Community Assembly that there should still be a bus service 
on Psalter Lane.  

  
 In connection with consultation arrangements, Jean Cromar indicated that, in 

respect of the proposed changes to the number 4 service, there were no 
notices in the Arundel Gate and Pond Street Transport Interchanges, no 
leaflets were available concerning the changes and there were no notices on 
the buses travelling along the No. 4 route. She referred to the South 
Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive’s (SYPTE) intention to hold a 
consultation meeting on 12th July, 2012 and the requirement that objections 
to any proposed changes to bus services should be submitted by the 9th July 
and asked whether the Council could ask the SYPTE about the consultation 
process, at the same time asking them to seek the withdrawal of the 
statement made by Councillor Anders Hanson that local Labour Councillors 
supported the withdrawal of the No. 4 service which, she alleged, was untrue.  

  
 In response, Councillor Leigh Bramall (Cabinet Member for Business, Skills 

and Development) stated that the Council generally supported the Bus 
Partnership Agreement (BPA) as it believed that the Agreement would lead to 
improvements in the vast majority of bus services. He indicated that, under 
the BPA, some fares would reduce, access for people with disabilities would 

Page 6



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 5 of 1 
 

be improved and buses would generally be newer and therefore more 
reliable.  

  
 However, he acknowledged that there were disadvantages arising from the 

Agreement on some routes. All of the changes, though, had been the subject 
of agreement between the bus operators and the SYPTE. In terms of 
consultation, Councillor Bramall understood leaflets were available on the 
consultation on all buses, there were facilities which provided for on-line or 
telephone access to information and every bus should possess information 
notices concerning any proposed changes. Should there be any problems 
with the consultation process, then he would pass these on to the SYPTE. He 
added that he had not heard of any issues from other groups but he hoped 
that the consultation process should identify any problems, to which solutions 
should be sought. Local Labour Members, Councillors Hussain and Bond, 
had said to him that they were not satisfied with the proposed changes to the 
number 4 bus service. 

  
 Councillor Bramall indicated that he generally supported the BPA which 

would seek to address problem areas and the public’s views on these could 
be aired at the Sheffield On The Move consultation event to be held on 12th 
July, 2012. However, he would raise the concerns now made at the meeting 
with the SYPTE.  

  
 (b) Public Question on Contract Profits 
  

 Mr Nigel Slack referred to a response given to his question at a meeting of 
the  Cabinet on 20th June 2012, that the Council operates 537 contracts with 
700 private companies and charities for the provision of 'public' services. This 
amounted to a total of some £730 million each year or 49% of the Council's 
annual budget. It was also made clear that, for the 'strategic' contracts, it was 
normal for these to include agreed profit margins as part of the contract 
terms. Examples were given of Capita at 10% and Veolia at 11%.  

  

 Mr Slack asked for the following information for all the agreed profit contracts: 
who are the 'Partner' private companies; how much is each contract worth 
per annum; and what is the agreed profit percentage on each; and when 
does each contract come up for renewal or renegotiation? 

  

 Councillor Bryan Lodge (Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources) 
responded that it was difficult to provide a detailed answer to Mr Slack’s 
questions due to the confidential nature of some of the information, so he 
would answer them in the broadest sense with further detail being provided in 
writing to Mr Slack by Council officers as appropriate. He confirmed that the 
Council provided services in a number of ways, including in – house or 
through private companies and voluntary organisations through formal 
contracts and this had been the case over a number of years. Each contract 
was subject to a rigorous and open procurement process, through which, the 
Council aimed to secure high quality services, providing value for money. The 
contracts were subject to regular review and monitoring to help identify 

Page 7



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 6 of 1 
 

whether these aims were being met. He acknowledged the need for 
companies to make stipulated profits under Council contracts but stated that 
such contracts also brought service efficiencies and offered investment and 
innovation, for the benefit of the Council and service users.      

  
 (c) Public Question on Highways Private Finance Initiative (PFI). 
  

 Mr Nigel Slack indicated that he had also attended the recent Central 
Community Assembly meeting where a presentation was given by Amey 
concerning the upcoming PFI contract for Sheffield's highways. 

  

 He was given to understand that this £80 million per annum (or £42,000 per 
Kilometre) contract was the result of a six year bidding and 'value for money' 
exercise, yet neither Amey nor the department representatives could advise 
him of the anticipated profit margin for this contract. 

  

 Mr Slack, therefore, asked did the Council really, less than two months from 
the anticipated start of this contract, have no indication of how much of our 
Council contribution will be ‘gobbled up’ by private company profits. If so, how 
can the department involved be certain of value for money? If not, what is the 
anticipated profit margin for this contract? 

  
 Councillor Bryan Lodge (Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources) 

confirmed that the tendering/contractual process had taken approximately six 
years, with the funding for the contract having been awarded to the Council 
by the previous Government. The Council had agreed to increase its own 
investment in the Scheme to make up the reduction of the funding previously 
allocated by the Government. The commencement of the contract had been 
delayed and the contract had been subject to rigorous review and value for 
money investigations, by the Government and the Council. The scheme 
provided a huge investment in Sheffield and would bring quality outcomes for 
the City’s highways, including street lighting, signage and highway tree 
management. There was a recognised requirement to improve the City’s 
highways network to an acceptable standard and the PFI scheme, which was 
the largest in the Country, was the only realistic option for bringing about 
these improvements. The approach was supported by both of the largest 
political groups on the Council.   

  
 Councillor Lodge added that some of the detailed information requested by 

Mr Slack was commercially sensitive, but that officers would supply Mr Slack 
with as much detail as the Council was able to.   

  
 Order of Business 
 It was moved by Councillor Ian Auckland, seconded by Councillor Simon 

Clement Jones, that the Council does now proceed to the consideration of 
item of business number 10 on the Summons concerning bus services. 

  
 On being put to the vote, the motion was negatived. 
   

Page 8



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 7 of 1 
 

 
  
5.  
 

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
 

5.1 Urgent Business 
  
 There were no questions relating to urgent business under the provisions of Council 

Procedure Rule 16.6(ii). 
  
5.2 Questions 
  
 A schedule of questions to Cabinet Members, submitted in accordance with Council 

Procedure Rule 16, and which contained written answers, was circulated and 
supplementary questions under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.4 were 
asked and were answered by the appropriate Cabinet Members. 

  
5.3 South Yorkshire Joint Authorities 
  
 There were no questions relating to the discharge of the functions of the South 

Yorkshire Joint Authorities for Fire and Rescue, Integrated Transport, Pensions or 
Police under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.6 (i). 

  

6.  
 

REPRESENTATION, DELEGATED AUTHORITY AND RELATED ISSUES 
 

 Resolved: on the Motion of Councillor Pat Midgley, seconded by Councillor 
Gill Furniss, that (a) approval be given to the following changes to the 
memberships of Committees, Panels, Groups, etc and to representatives on 
External Bodies:- 
 

 City Centre, South and East 
Planning and Highways Committee 

- 
Remove Councillor Nikki Sharpe to 
Create a vacancy 

    
 West and North Planning and 

Highways Committee 
- 

Councillor Denise Reaney to 
replace Councillor Katie Condliffe 

    
 Planning and Highways Committee 

Substitute Members 
- 

Councillor Chris Rosling-Josephs to 
fill a vacancy 

    
 Healthier Communities and Adult 

Social Care Scrutiny and Policy 
Development Committee 

- 
Councillor Katie Condliffe to replace 
Councillor Denise Reaney 

    
 Safer and Stronger Communities 

Scrutiny and Policy Development 
Committee 

- 
Councillor Peter Rippon to replace 
Councillor Roy Munn 

    
 Appeals and Collective Disputes 

Committee 
- 

Councillors Garry Weatherall and 
Roy Munn to fill Vacancies 

    
 Access Liaison Group 

- 
Councillor Tony Downing to fill a 
vacancy 

    

Page 9



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 8 of 1 
 

 Allotments and Leisure Gardens 
Advisory Group - 

Councillors Tony Downing, Martin 
Lawton and Steve Wilson to fill 
Vacancies 

    
 Building Schools for the Future 

Strategic Board - 
Councillors Jenny Armstrong, Jackie 
Drayton and Denise Fox to fill 
vacancies 

    
 Corporate Parenting Panel 

- 

Councillors Jenny Armstrong, Jackie 
Drayton Nikki Sharpe, Geoff Smith 
and Sioned-Mair Richards to fill 
vacancies 

    
 Deputy Chief Executive’s Joint 

Consultative Committee 
- 

Councillor Harry Harpham to fill a 
vacancy 

    
 Communities Joint Consultative 

Committee 
- 

Councillor Mazher Iqbal to fill a 
vacancy 

    
 Place Joint Consultative 

Committee 
- 

Councillor Leigh Bramall to fill a 
vacancy 

    
 Children, Young People and 

Families Joint Consultative 
Committee 

- 
Councillor Jackie Drayton to fill a 
vacancy 

    
 Resources Joint Consultative 

Committee 
- 

Councillor Bryan Lodge to fill a 
vacancy 

    
 Disabled Persons Housing 

Strategy Monitoring and Scrutiny 
Group 

- 
Councillors Tony Damms and Harry 
Harpham to fill vacancies 

    
 East End Strategy Group 

- 
Councillors Harry Harpham, Mary 
Lea, Peter Price, Ray Satur and Pat 
Midgley to fill vacancies 

    
 Environmental Performance 

Working Party 
- 

Councillors Ibrar Hussain and Alf 
Meade to fill vacancies 

    
 Fairer Charging Commission 

- 
Councillors Mary Lea and David 
Barker to fill vacancies 

    
 Fairtrade Working Group 

- 
Councillor Martin Lawton to fill a 
vacancy 

    
 Information Services Steering 

Group 
- 

Councillor Stuart Wattam to fill a 
vacancy 

    

Page 10



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 9 of 1 
 

 Monitoring and Advisory Board 
(Adult Services) 

- 
Councillor Mick Rooney to fill a 
vacancy 

    
 Planning Committee Advisory 

Group - 
Councillors Leigh Bramall, Isobel 
Bowler, Alan Law and Peter Rippon 
to fill vacancies 

    
 Planning Policy Advisory Group 

- 
Councillors Isobel Bowler, Steve 
Wilson, Leigh Bramall and Alan Law 
to fill Vacancies 

    
 Sheffield Conservation Advisory 

Group 
- 

Councillor Peter Price to fill a 
vacancy 

    
 (b) approval be given to appoint representatives to serve on other bodies, as 

follows:- 
 

 Sheffield Health and Social Care 
Foundation Trust Council of 
Governors 

- Councillor Clive Skelton to fill a 
vacancy 

    
 Sheffield Compact - Councillor Mazher Iqbal to replace 

Councillor Karen McGowan 
    
 Sheffield Tobacco Control 

Programme Accountable Board 
- Councillor Garry Weatherall to 

replace Councillor Ibrar Hussain 
    
 Sheffield Theatres Trust - Councillor Ben Curran to fill a 

vacancy 
    
 (c) it be noted that in accordance with the authority given by the City Council 

at its Annual Meeting held on 16 May 2012, the Chief Executive had 
appointed the under-mentioned members to fill vacancies on bodies as 
follows:- 

  
 Planning and Highways Committee 

Substitute Members 
- Councillor Ian Saunders to fill a 

vacancy 
    
 Shadow Health and Wellbeing 

Board 
- Councillors Julie Dore, Jackie 

Drayton, Harry Harpham and Mary 
Lea to fill vacancies 

    
 (d) it be noted that in accordance with their delegated powers, the Community 

Assemblies have nominated the under-mentioned members to serve on 
Sheffield Homes Area Boards as follows:- 

    
 Sheffield Homes East Area Board - Councillor Mazher Iqbal from the 

East Community Assembly 
    

Page 11



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 10 of 1 
 

 Sheffield Homes Central Area 
Board 

- Councillor John Robson from the 
East Community Assembly 

    
  - Councillor Mohammed Maroof from 

the Central Community Assembly 
    
 Sheffield Homes North West Area 

Board 
- Councillor Bob Johnson from the 

Central Community Assembly 

 
7.  
 

DESIGNATION OF MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 RESOLVED:  On the Motion of Councillor Pat Midgley, seconded by 
Councillor Clive Skelton, that the role of the Monitoring Officer, as outlined in 
the report of the Chief Executive circulated with the agenda, be noted and the 
Director of Legal Services be designated as the Council’s Monitoring Officer 
with effect from 1st August, 2012. 
 

 
8.  
 

NEW STANDARDS FRAMEWORK 
 

8.1 RESOLVED: On the Motion of Councillor Pat Midgley, seconded by 
Councillor Clive Skelton, that this Council:- 

   
 (a) adopts the Members’ Code of Conduct set out at Appendix 1 of the 

report of the Deputy Chief Executive now submitted; 
   
 (b) adopts the procedure for investigating complaints and the sanctions as 

set out at Appendix 2 of the report; 
   
 (c) establishes a Standards Committee in accordance with the amended 

Article 9 in Part 2 and the terms of reference in Part 3 of the 
Constitution, as set out in Appendices 3 and 4 of the report, and agrees 
to disapply proportionality to the Committee as set out at paragraph 
3.3.2 of the report; 

   
 (d) notes the Guidance on Disclosable Pecuniary Interests circulated by the 

Monitoring Officer, set out at Appendix 5 of the report; 
   
 (e) delegates to the Monitoring Officer the power to make such 

amendments to the Members’ Code of Conduct and the procedure for 
investigating complaints as are required by guidance and regulation 
when they are issued by the Government and directs that any amended 
document be circulated to all Members forthwith; 

   
 (f) notes that an Independent Person will be appointed in compliance with 

the Localism Act; and 
   
 (g) gives approval for the Constitution to be amended accordingly. 

   
8.2 Members’ Interests 

Page 12



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 11 of 1 
 

  
 The Council received a presentation concerning requirements relating to the 

registration and declaration of Members’ interests from the Director of Legal 
Services.  

  
 
9.  
 

NOTICE OF MOTION CONCERNING COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT 
 

 It was moved by Councillor Mazher Iqbal, seconded by Councillor Adam 
Hurst, that this Council:- 

  
 (a) deplores the Government’s shambolic mishandling of welfare reform 

which has seen delays to the introduction of universal credit to 2014 at 
the same time as other reforms, including the localisation of council 
tax benefit, will be implemented from 2013; 

  
 (b) regrets that the Government’s mismanagement of the economy and 

the failure of initiatives such as the Work Programme has contributed 
to an increasing benefits bill; 

  
 (c) opposes the Government’s proposals on council tax benefit 

localisation which will see a 10% cut in funding for council tax benefit 
in addition to the £170 million budget gap faced by the Council over 
the next four years; 

  
 (d) believes that the localisation of council tax benefit has been 

completely mismanaged by the Government and should have been 
aligned with the introduction of universal credit; 

  
 (e) notes research by the Institute for Fiscal Studies which indicates that 

the working poor will be hit hardest by the cuts to council tax benefit, 
completely contradicting the Government’s stated aims in its welfare 
reform programme; 

  
 (f) further notes research by the Local Government Association warning 

that the cut is also likely to hit hardest councils in the most deprived 
areas of the country and authorities in the wealthiest areas of the 
country will experience a smaller cut; 

  
 (g) regrets that this mirrors the Government’s unfair policy of giving heavy 

cuts to Sheffield whilst at the same time wealthier areas of the country 
are experiencing next to no cuts at all; and 

  
 (h) regrets that this is a further example of this Government hitting the 

most vulnerable the hardest which is exemplified by cuts to housing 
benefit, the reassessment of incapacity benefit claimants and cuts to 
tax credits. 

  
 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Simon Clement-Jones, seconded by 

Councillor Alison Brelsford, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted 

Page 13



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 12 of 1 
 

be amended by the deletion of all the words after the words “That this 
Council” and the substitution of the following words therefor:- 

  
 (a) deplores the last Government for building up a record national deficit 

over a period of eleven years, to the point where £1 in every £4 the 
Government spent was borrowed; 

  
 (b) regrets the need for reductions in Government spending as a result of 

the last Government’s reckless disregard for public finances; 
  
 (c) notes with concern proposals to reduce the funding for council tax 

benefit by 10% as a result of localisation; 
  
 (d) supports the Government’s decision to protect vulnerable residents by 

ensuring pensioners will be exempt from reductions in council tax 
benefit; 

  
 (e) deplores attempts by the MP for Sheffield South East to introduce a 

new power for local authorities to charge students for council tax; and 
  
 (f) however, calls upon the Government to reconsider its reduction in 

council tax benefit grants to ensure any changes in council tax meet 
the underlying principle of welfare reform – that is to incentivise work. 

  
 On being put to the vote, Paragraph (c) of the amendment was carried and 

the remaining paragraphs were negatived. 
  
 (Note: Councillors Councillors Julie Dore, John Robson, Jack Scott, Roy 

Munn, Ian Saunders, Chris Rosling Josephs, Bryan Lodge, Denise Fox, 
Karen McGowan, Jayne Dunn, Stuart Wattam, Jackie Drayton, Ibrar Hussain, 
Talib Hussain, Mohammad Maroof, Geoff Smith, Mary Lea, Harry Harpham, 
Mazher Iqbal, Joyce Wright, Steven Wilson, Garry Weatherall, Sheila 
Constance, Chris Weldon, Alan Law, Steve Jones, Tim Rippon, Cate 
McDonald, George Lindars Hammond, Robert Johnson, Janet Bragg, Pat 
Midgley, Jenny Armstrong, Terry Fox, Tony Downing, David Barker, Nikki 
Bond, Qurban Hussain, Martin Lawton, Sioned Mair Richards, Peter Price, 
Peter Rippon, Tony Damms, Leigh Bramall, Gill Furniss, Richard Crowther, 
Philip Wood, Neale Gibson, Nikki Sharpe, Ben Curran, Adam Hurst, Alf 
Meade, Jackie Satur, and Mick Rooney voted for Paragraph (c) of the above 
amendment and against Paragraphs (a), (b), (d), (e) and (f) and asked for 
this to be recorded.) 

  
 After a right of reply from Councillor Mazher Iqbal, the original Motion, as 

amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the following form and 
carried:- 

  

 RESOLVED:  That this Council:- 
  
 (a) deplores the Government’s shambolic mishandling of welfare reform 

which has seen delays to the introduction of universal credit to 2014 at 

Page 14



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 13 of 1 
 

the same time as other reforms, including the localisation of council 
tax benefit, will be implemented from 2013; 

  
 (b) regrets that the Government’s mismanagement of the economy and 

the failure of initiatives such as the Work Programme has contributed 
to an increasing benefits bill; 

  
 (c) notes with concern proposals to reduce the funding for council tax 

benefit by 10% as a result of localisation; 
  
 (d) opposes the Government’s proposals on council tax benefit 

localisation which will see a 10% cut in funding for council tax benefit 
in addition to the £170 million budget gap faced by the Council over 
the next four years; 

  
 (e) believes that the localisation of council tax benefit has been 

completely mismanaged by the Government and should have been 
aligned with the introduction of universal credit; 

  
 (f) notes research by the Institute for Fiscal Studies which indicates that 

the working poor will be hit hardest by the cuts to council tax benefit, 
completely contradicting the Government’s stated aims in its welfare 
reform programme; 

  
 (g) further notes research by the Local Government Association warning 

that the cut is also likely to hit hardest councils in the most deprived 
areas of the country and authorities in the wealthiest areas of the 
country will experience a smaller cut; 

  
 (h) regrets that this mirrors the Government’s unfair policy of giving heavy 

cuts to Sheffield whilst at the same time wealthier areas of the country 
are experiencing next to no cuts at all; and 

  
 (i) regrets that this is a further example of this Government hitting the 

most vulnerable the hardest which is exemplified by cuts to housing 
benefit, the reassessment of incapacity benefit claimants and cuts to 
tax credits. 

  
 The votes on the above Motion were ordered to be recorded and were as 

follows:- 
  
   For Paragraphs (a), (b) and 

(e) to (i) (56) 
- Councillors Julie Dore, John Robson, 

Jack Scott, Roy Munn, Ian Saunders, 
Chris Rosling Josephs, Bryan Lodge, 
Denise Fox, Karen McGowan, Jayne 
Dunn, Stuart Wattam, Jackie Drayton, 
Ibrar Hussain, Talib Hussain, Robert 
Murphy, Jillian Creasy, Mohammad 
Maroof, Geoff Smith, Mary Lea, Harry 
Harpham, Mazher Iqbal, Joyce Wright, 

Page 15



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 14 of 1 
 

Steven Wilson, Garry Weatherall, Sheila 
Constance, Chris Weldon, Alan Law, 
Steve Jones, Tim Rippon, Cate 
McDonald, George Lindars Hammond, 
Robert Johnson, Janet Bragg, Pat 
Midgley, Jenny Armstrong, Terry Fox, 
Tony Downing, David Barker, Nikki Bond, 
Qurban Hussain, Martin Lawton, Sioned 
Mair Richards, Peter Price, Peter Rippon, 
Tony Damms, Leigh Bramall, Gill Furniss, 
Richard Crowther, Philip Wood, Neale 
Gibson, Nikki Sharpe, Ben Curran, Adam 
Hurst, Alf Meade, Jackie Satur, and Mick 
Rooney. 

    
 Against Paragraphs (a), (b) 

and (e) to (i) (19) 
- The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor 

Vickie Priestley) and Councillors Simon 
Clement Jones, Clive Skelton, Shaffaq 
Mohammed, Rob Frost, Colin Ross, Joe 
Otten, Keith Hill, Diana Stimely, Roger 
Davison, Sue Alston, Andrew Sangar, 
Denise Reaney, Ian Auckland, Bob 
McCann, Anders Hanson,  Katie 
Condliffe, Alison Brelsford and Trevor 
Bagshaw 

    
 Abstained on Paragraphs 

(a), (b) and (e) to (i)  (1) 
- The Lord Mayor (Councillor John 

Campbell). 
    
 For Paragraphs (c) and (d) 

(75) 
 The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor 

Vickie Priestley) and Councillors Julie 
Dore, John Robson, Jack Scott, Roy 
Munn, Simon Clement Jones, Clive 
Skelton,  Ian Saunders, Chris Rosling 
Josephs, Bryan Lodge, Denise Fox, 
Karen McGowan, Jayne Dunn, Stuart 
Wattam, Shaffaq Mohammed, Jackie 
Drayton, Ibrar Hussain, Talib Hussain, 
Robert Murphy, Jillian Creasy, 
Mohammad Maroof, Rob Frost, Geoff 
Smith, Mary Lea, Harry Harpham, 
Mazher Iqbal, Colin Ross, Joe Otten, 
Keith Hill, Joyce Wright, Steven Wilson, 
Garry Weatherall, Diana Stimely, Roger 
Davison, Sheila Constance, Chris 
Weldon, Alan Law, Sue Alston, Andrew 
Sangar, Steve Jones, Tim Rippon, Cate 
McDonald, Denise Reaney, Ian 
Auckland, Bob McCann, George Lindars 
Hammond, Robert Johnson, Janet Bragg, 

Page 16



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 15 of 1 
 

Pat Midgley, Jenny Armstrong, Terry Fox, 
Tony Downing, David Barker, Nikki Bond, 
Qurban Hussain, Anders Hanson,  Martin 
Lawton, Sioned Mair Richards, Peter 
Price, Peter Rippon, Tony Damms, Leigh 
Bramall, Gill Furniss, Katie Condliffe, 
Richard Crowther, Philip Wood, Alison 
Brelsford, Neale Gibson, Nikki Sharpe, 
Ben Curran, Adam Hurst, Alf Meade, 
Trevor Bagshaw, Jackie Satur, and Mick 
Rooney. 
 

    
 Against Paragraphs (c) and 

(d) (0) 
 Nil 

    
 Abstained on Paragraphs (c) 

and (d)  (1) 
- The Lord Mayor (Councillor John 

Campbell). 
 
 
10.  
 

NOTICE OF MOTION CONCERNING BUS SERVICES 

 It was moved by Councillor Ian Auckland, seconded by Councillor Sue Alston, 
that this Council:- 

  
 (a) recalls its support for the twin-track approach of the South Yorkshire 

Integrated Transport Authority regarding Bus Partnerships and Quality 
Contracts; 

  
 (b) welcomes improvements to some bus routes as part of the proposed 

bus partnership agreement but regrettably notes that many local 
people will lose out, such as residents on Psalter Lane, in Stocksbridge 
or in Ringinglow Village; 

  
 (c) urges the South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive to 

investigate these routes in particular as part of their consultation and 
deliver improved services for these residents; 

  
 (d) believes it is becoming clearer that a voluntary partnership will not 

deliver the fair, affordable and equitable bus service that Sheffield 
residents deserve; 

  
 (e) reiterates the cross-party support in this Council for a ‘Quality 

Contracts’ strategy for Sheffield; and 
  
 (f) therefore encourages South Yorkshire Integrated Transport Authority 

and this Council to deliver a fully-tendered network by continuing its 
pursuit of ‘Quality Contracts’. 

  
 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Leigh Bramall, seconded by 

Page 17



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 16 of 1 
 

Councillor Chris Rosling-Josephs, as an amendment, that the Motion now 
submitted be amended by the deletion of paragraphs (b) to (f) and the 
addition of new paragraphs (b) to (g) as follows:- 

  
 (b)  therefore welcomes the Bus Partnership Agreement has been 

announced which improves the bus offer in Sheffield through creating 
a stable bus network and delivering improvements to a number of 
routes and the standard of buses across the City; introducing new 
forms of ticketing and reductions in fares of up to 14%; 

  
 (c) recalls the resolution of the Integrated Transport Authority meeting of 

the 7th June, 2012 which was supported by all Integrated Transport 
Authority Members, including the mover of the motion: 

  
  RESOLVED – That the Authority: 
  
 (i) Notes the progress on Partnerships across the county and 

endorses work on both the Partnership and Quality Contract 
options in Sheffield. 

  
 (ii) Endorses the signing of the Sheffield Heads of Terms 

agreement. 
  
 (iii) Approves “in principle” the certifying of Qualifying Agreements 

on corridors where bus service timetables were co-ordinated, 
subject to Schedule 10 Part 2 of the Transport Act 2000 and 
considers that the Agreements: 

  
 (a) were in the interests of persons using the local bus 

services in the ITA’s area; and 
  
 (b) did not impose restrictions on Operators which were 

indispensible for the attainment of securing 
improvements to local bus services or improving 
congestion. 

  
 (iv) Notes that Sheffield City Council and SYPTE Officers would be 

briefing member groups prior to consultation and would seek 
full Council and ITA approval post consultation and prior to 
launch; 

  
 (d) welcomes that, subject to the planned consultation, the Bus 

Partnership Agreement is likely to be implemented before November 
2012 and will see real improvements for Sheffield bus users 
immediately;  

  
 (e) believes that the majority of Sheffield bus users will benefit from the 

Bus Partnership Agreement and supports its progression; 
  
 (f) acknowledges that the final routes of the Agreement are still subject to 

Page 18



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 17 of 1 
 

the consultation, the results of which will be considered by the 
Integrated Transport Authority when determining routes before 
finalising the Agreement; and 

  
 (g) reiterates its support for the twin-track approach, noting that the 

continuation of which was outlined in a Members Briefing Note 
circulated to the main opposition group dated 28th May 2012 and 
included the following: “5.1 SYITA will be asked to consider this option 
to improve the bus offer alongside the Quality Contract (bus 
franchised) option”. 

  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was carried. 
  
 The votes on the above amendment were ordered to be recorded and were 

as follows:- 
  
   For the amendment (54) - Councillors Julie Dore, John Robson, 

Jack Scott, Roy Munn, Ian Saunders, 
Chris Rosling Josephs, Bryan Lodge, 
Denise Fox, Karen McGowan, Jayne 
Dunn, Stuart Wattam, Jackie Drayton, 
Ibrar Hussain, Talib Hussain, 
Mohammad Maroof, Geoff Smith, Mary 
Lea, Harry Harpham, Mazher Iqbal, 
Joyce Wright, Steven Wilson, Garry 
Weatherall, Sheila Constance, Chris 
Weldon, Alan Law, Steve Jones, Tim 
Rippon, Cate McDonald, George 
Lindars Hammond, Robert Johnson, 
Janet Bragg, Pat Midgley, Jenny 
Armstrong, Terry Fox, Tony Downing, 
David Barker, Nikki Bond, Qurban 
Hussain, Martin Lawton, Sioned Mair 
Richards, Peter Price, Peter Rippon, 
Tony Damms, Leigh Bramall, Gill 
Furniss, Richard Crowther, Philip Wood, 
Neale Gibson, Nikki Sharpe, Ben 
Curran, Adam Hurst, Alf Meade, Jackie 
Satur, and Mick Rooney. 

    
 Against the amendment (21) - The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor 

Vickie Priestley) and Councillors Simon 
Clement Jones, Clive Skelton, Shaffaq 
Mohammed, Robert Murphy, Jillian 
Creasy, Rob Frost, Colin Ross, Joe 
Otten, Keith Hill, Diana Stimely, Roger 
Davison, Sue Alston, Andrew Sangar, 
Denise Reaney, Ian Auckland, Bob 
McCann, Anders Hanson,  Katie 
Condliffe, Alison Brelsford and Trevor 

Page 19



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 18 of 1 
 

Bagshaw. 
    
 Abstained on the amendment  

(1) 
- The Lord Mayor (Councillor John 

Campbell). 
  
 After a right of reply from Councillor Ian Auckland, the original Motion, as 

amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the following form and 
carried:- 

  

 RESOLVED:  That this Council:- 
  
 (a) recalls its support for the twin-track approach of the South Yorkshire 

Integrated Transport Authority regarding Bus Partnerships and Quality 
Contracts; 

  
 (b)  therefore welcomes the Bus Partnership Agreement has been 

announced which improves the bus offer in Sheffield through creating 
a stable bus network and delivering improvements to a number of 
routes and the standard of buses across the City; introducing new 
forms of ticketing and reductions in fares of up to 14%; 

  
 (c) recalls the resolution of the Integrated Transport Authority meeting of 

the 7th June, 2012 which was supported by all Integrated Transport 
Authority Members, including the mover of the motion: 

  
  RESOLVED – That the Authority: 
  

 (i) Notes the progress on Partnerships across the county and 
endorses work on both the Partnership and Quality Contract 
options in Sheffield. 

  
 (ii) Endorses the signing of the Sheffield Heads of Terms 

agreement. 
  
 (iii) Approves “in principle” the certifying of Qualifying Agreements 

on corridors where bus service timetables were co-ordinated, 
subject to Schedule 10 Part 2 of the Transport Act 2000 and 
considers that the Agreements: 

  
(a) were in the interests of persons using the local bus 

services in the ITA’s area; and 
 
(b) did not impose restrictions on Operators which were 

indispensible for the attainment of securing 
improvements to local bus services or improving 
congestion. 

 
 (iv) Notes that Sheffield City Council and SYPTE Officers would be 

briefing member groups prior to consultation and would seek full 
Council and ITA approval post consultation and prior to launch; 

Page 20



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 19 of 1 
 

  
 (d) welcomes that, subject to the planned consultation, the Bus 

Partnership Agreement is likely to be implemented before November 
2012 and will see real improvements for Sheffield bus users 
immediately;  

  
 (e) believes that the majority of Sheffield bus users will benefit from the 

Bus Partnership Agreement and supports its progression; 
  
 (f) acknowledges that the final routes of the Agreement are still subject to 

the consultation, the results of which will be considered by the 
Integrated Transport Authority when determining routes before 
finalising the Agreement; and 

  
 (g) reiterates its support for the twin-track approach, noting that the 

continuation of which was outlined in a Members Briefing Note 
circulated to the main opposition group dated 28th May 2012 and 
included the following: “5.1 SYITA will be asked to consider this option 
to improve the bus offer alongside the Quality Contract (bus 
franchised) option”. 

  
 (Note: The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Vickie Priestley) and Councillors 

Simon Clement Jones, Clive Skelton, Shaffaq Mohammed, Rob Frost, Colin 
Ross, Joe Otten, Keith Hill, Diana Stimely, Roger Davison, Sue Alston, 
Andrew Sangar, Denise Reaney, Ian Auckland, Bob McCann, Anders 
Hanson,  Katie Condliffe, Alison Brelsford and Trevor Bagshaw voted for 
Paragraphs (a), (c), (f) and (g) and against Paragraphs (b), (d) and (e) of the 
Motion and asked for this to be recorded.) 

  
11.  
 

NOTICE OF MOTION CONCERNING APPRENTICESHIPS 
 

 It was moved by Councillor Leigh Bramall, seconded by Councillor Nikki 
Sharpe, that this Council:- 

  
 (a) is extremely concerned by the current levels of youth unemployment 

both in Sheffield and nationally, and believes that the actions of the 
current Government are hitting young people disproportionately hard; 

  
 (b) believes that this Council must do all it can to ensure that a generation 

of young people are not left on the scrap heap by the heartless actions 
of the present Government; 

  
 (c) welcomes that the Sheffield Apprenticeship Programme introduced by 

the present Administration has now given the opportunity of an 
apprenticeship to 100 young people; 

  
 (d) notes this approach, which has seen £1 million invested in 

apprenticeships, is in stark contrast to the previous Administration 
whose Leader broke a promise to commit £1 million of the Council's 
own resources to support the Future Jobs Fund in Sheffield; 

Page 21



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 20 of 1 
 

  
 (e) thanks partners in the public, private and voluntary sector who have 

employed an apprentice, noting that the Sheffield Apprenticeship 
Scheme has involved a 50% Council contribution to the wages of an 
apprentice and a 50% employer contribution; and 

  
 (f) welcomes the wider work taken by the present Administration to 

increase the uptake of apprentices in the City and the doubling of the 
number of apprentices funded by the Sheffield Apprenticeship Scheme 
to 200 and calls on any local employers who wish to take on an 
apprentice in the future to contact the Council. 

  
 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Ian Auckland, seconded by 

Councillor Roger Davison, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted 
be amended by:- 

  
 1. the deletion of all the words after the word “nationally” in paragraph (a) 

and their substitution by the words “which has risen consistently since 
2004”; 

  
 2. the substitution of the word “heartless” by the word “reckless” and the 

word “present” by the word “previous” in paragraph (b); 
  
 3. the deletion of paragraph (d); 
  
 4. the relettering of paragraph (c) as new paragraph (f) and paragraphs 

(e)-(f) as new paragraphs (h)-(i); and  
  
 5. the addition of new paragraphs (c)-(e) and (g) as follows: 
  
 (c)  therefore, endorses the £1 billion Youth Contract announced by 

the Deputy Prime Minister, which will tackle the scandal of 
youth unemployment, and will provide: 

  
 (i) 160,000 wage incentives for 18-24 year olds worth up to 

£2,275; 
  
 (ii)  250,000 additional work experience places for 18-24 

year olds; 
  
 (iii)  20,000 incentive payments to encourage smaller 

businesses to recruit their first apprentices; and 
  
 (iv)  a new programme of intensive support for 16 and 17-

year olds who are not in employment, education or 
training; 

  
 (d) thanks the Government for its £8.5 million contribution towards 

a Sheffield University Technical College, which will provide vital 
training and skills to the next generation of Sheffielders; 

Page 22



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 21 of 1 
 

  
 (e) furthermore, wholeheartedly supports the Local Enterprise 

Zone, which will bring an estimated 12,600 new jobs to the 
Sheffield City Region by 2015, and welcomes the recent 
announcement by the Secretary of State for Business, 
Innovation & Skills, of £15 million of Government funding for 
advanced manufacturing research in the Sheffield City Region; 
and 

  
 (g) notes that all participants on the Sheffield Apprenticeship 

Programme will receive at least Level 2 training, which will be 
funded by the Coalition Government, and reiterates its thanks to 
the Government for this support; 

  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was negatived. 

  
 After a right of reply from Councillor Leigh Bramall, the original Motion was 

put to the vote and carried, as follows:- 
  

 RESOLVED:  That this Council:- 
  
 (a) is extremely concerned by the current levels of youth unemployment 

both in Sheffield and nationally, and believes that the actions of the 
current Government are hitting young people disproportionately hard; 

  
 (b) believes that this Council must do all it can to ensure that a generation 

of young people are not left on the scrap heap by the heartless actions 
of the present Government; 

  
 (c) welcomes that the Sheffield Apprenticeship Programme introduced by 

the present Administration has now given the opportunity of an 
apprenticeship to 100 young people; 

  
 (d) notes this approach, which has seen £1 million invested in 

apprenticeships, is in stark contrast to the previous Administration 
whose Leader broke a promise to commit £1 million of the Council's 
own resources to support the Future Jobs Fund in Sheffield; 

  
 (e) thanks partners in the public, private and voluntary sector who have 

employed an apprentice, noting that the Sheffield Apprenticeship 
Scheme has involved a 50% Council contribution to the wages of an 
apprentice and a 50% employer contribution; and 

  
 (f) welcomes the wider work taken by the present Administration to 

increase the uptake of apprentices in the City and the doubling of the 
number of apprentices funded by the Sheffield Apprenticeship Scheme 
to 200 and calls on any local employers who wish to take on an 
apprentice in the future to contact the Council. 

  

Page 23



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 22 of 1 
 

 (Note: 1. The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Vickie Priestley) and Councillors 
Simon Clement Jones, Clive Skelton, Shaffaq Mohammed, Rob Frost, Colin 
Ross, Joe Otten, Keith Hill, Diana Stimely, Roger Davison, Sue Alston, 
Andrew Sangar, Denise Reaney, Ian Auckland, Bob McCann, Anders 
Hanson,  Katie Condliffe, Alison Brelsford and Trevor Bagshaw voted for 
Paragraphs (c), (e) and (f) and against Paragraphs (a), (b) and (d) of the 
Motion and asked for this to be recorded. 

 2. Councillors Robert Murphy and Jillian Creasy voted for Paragraphs (a) to 
(c) and (e) and (f) and abstained on Paragraph (d) of the Motion as asked for 
this to be recorded.) 

  
 
12.  
 

NOTICE OF MOTION CONCERNING HOUSEHOLD WASTE RECYCLING 
CENTRES 
 

 It was moved by Councillor Shaffaq Mohammed, seconded by Councillor 
Colin Ross, that this Council:- 

  
 (a) recalls the Notice of Motion proposed by Cllr Jillian Creasy at the 

Council meeting on 13th June 2012, and expresses disappointment at 
the decision of the largest party in the council chamber to oppose 
moving the item up the agenda, given the clear interest in the public 
gallery; 

  
 (b) notes that following the change of Administration in May 2011, a 

further £150,000 was removed from the budget of recycling centres, 
and believes this was a short-sighted move given the Administration’s 
plan to end weekly black bin collections; 

  
 (c) understands that Blackstock Road has the highest tonnage of any 

recycling centre, and therefore expresses dismay at the 
Administration’s decision to close Blackstock Road three days a week, 
while the recycling centre in what the Council believes to be in one of 
the Administration’s  ‘favoured areas’ remains open seven days a 
week; 

  
 (d) furthermore, notes with disappointment the failure to avoid strikes, and 

regrets the effect this has had on the service for local residents; 
  
 (e) in addition, recalls the decision of the present Administration to end 

the free collection of garden waste, and notes that more than a year 
after it was first agreed, the flexible blue bin/box offer has still not been 
fully rolled out; 

  
 (f) believes the simultaneous strategies of the present Administration to 

end weekly black bin collections and reduce recycling services always 
amounted to a recipe for disaster; and 

  
 (g) therefore, in light of the Administration’s decision to enforce fortnightly 

bin collections, calls upon the Administration to re-consider its 

Page 24



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 23 of 1 
 

reductions to recycling centre opening hours. 
  

 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Jillian Creasy, seconded by 
Councillor Robert Murphy, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted 
be amended by:- 

  
 1. the deletion of paragraphs (b) and (c); 
  
 2. the addition of new paragraphs (b), (c) and (d) as follows:- 
  
 (b) recognises that, due to global resource depletion, the value of 

materials is increasing and the profit to be made from re-using 
and recycling is rising; 

  
 (c) would prefer any such profit to be used to maintain and improve 

the service to the public and the business community and to 
create local job opportunities rather than boost the income of 
profit-making national or multinational companies and their 
share-holders; 

  
 (d) recognises that the front line workers and their union 

representatives can provide inside knowledge about services 
and make useful suggestions about more efficient and 
innovative ways of running services; 

  
 3. the re-lettering of original paragraphs (d) to (g) as new paragraphs (e) 

to (h). 
  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was negatived. 
  
 (Note: The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Vickie Priestley) and Councillors 

Simon Clement Jones, Clive Skelton, Shaffaq Mohammed, Rob Frost, Colin 
Ross, Joe Otten, Keith Hill, Diana Stimely, Roger Davison, Sue Alston, 
Andrew Sangar, Denise Reaney, Ian Auckland, Bob McCann, Anders 
Hanson,  Katie Condliffe, Alison Brelsford and Trevor Bagshaw voted for 
Paragraph 2, sub-clauses (b) and (d), and against the remaining paragraphs 
of the amendment and asked for this to be recorded.) 

  
 It was then moved by Councillor Jack Scott, seconded by Councillor Leigh 

Bramall, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended by 
the deletion of all the words after the words ‘That this Council’ and the 
substitution of the following words therefor:- 

  
 (a) regrets that the Council has had to reduce spending by £55 million in 

the 2012/13 budget and that by 2015/16 the Council will have £170m 
less to spend than it did in 2011/12 and regrets that the main 
opposition group continue to fully support the level of cuts imposed on 
the Council by the Conservative-led Government; 

  
 (b) further regrets that to meet this unprecedented financial gap in the 

Page 25



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 24 of 1 
 

budget, the Council has had to reduce the opening hours of the five 
Household Waste Recycling Centres, however acknowledges that the 
previous Administration made the majority of the cuts to these Centres 
in the 2011/12 budget; 

  
 (c) notes that the Council makes every effort to provide the best possible 

waste service, including sufficient opening hours at the Household 
Waste Recycling Centres to offer a sustainable service, working within 
the severe financial constraints imposed by the Government;  

  
 (d) recognises that the present Administration have made several 

improvements to original proposals to manage  the reductions in 
opening hours and under the revised opening hours, Sheffield's five 
Household Waste Recycling Centres will be open a total of 23 days 
every week, with all sites open on the peak days of Friday to Monday, 
sites open every day of the week and summer opening times until 6pm 
which better suits the needs of users; 

  
 (e) notes that in their 2012/13 budget amendments, neither opposition 

group proposed to reverse any savings to Household Waste Recycling 
Centres which would be required to re-consider reductions in opening 
hours and believes that the late involvement of the main opposition 
group after the revised opening hours have already been implemented 
is nothing more than blatant political opportunism; 

  
 (f) deplores the outrageously misleading and factually inaccurate 

accusations made in the press in recent weeks by the Leader of the 
main opposition group that the distribution of reductions in opening 
hours across Household Waste Recycling Centres have been 
politically motivated; 

  
 (g) confirms for the record that there is absolutely no truth in the claims 

that the distribution of reductions in opening hours across Household 
Waste Recycling Centres have been politically motivated, and notes 
the following statement made by the Director of Finance and 
Corporate Services at SOVA:- "SOVA Recycling Ltd were asked, as 
were all those organisations who submitted a tender to run the sites in 
2011, how they proposed to allow commercial waste to be accepted at 
the sites. Due to the licenses under which the sites operate, household 
waste and commercial waste must be kept separate. This meant that a 
site had to be chosen which would need be closed to the public during 
the periods it would be accepting commercial waste. SOVA specifically 
chose Blackstock for this purpose, with the decision being based on its 
more central location, with Douglas Road being deemed unsuitable 
due to its layout and the fact the buildings on the site were needed to 
process recycling materials." 

  
 (h) further confirms that the only favoured area of the present 

Administration is the whole of Sheffield; 
  

Page 26



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 25 of 1 
 

 (i) calls upon the Leader of the main opposition group to apologise to the 
people of Sheffield for what this Council regards as an attempt to 
mislead them by claiming that the distribution of reductions in opening 
hours were politically motivated; 

  
 (j) further remembers that  the Leader of the main opposition group was 

previously the Cabinet Member who oversaw the most shambolic 
mismanagement of the waste service the City has known through the 
introduction of blue boxes to recycle paper which angered many local 
people and welcomes that the present Administration are now 
resolving this issue across the City; 

  
 (k) reiterates its regret for all cuts to waste services, however, recognises 

that they are ultimately a consequence of the Liberal Democrat 
Party’s, led by the Member of Parliament for Sheffield Hallam, decision 
to support a Conservative-led Government which is heavily cutting 
Sheffield’s budget at the same time as some of the wealthiest councils 
in the Conservative heartlands receive almost no cuts at all and 
regrets that the Liberal Democrat Party both locally and nationally 
continue to refuse to stand up for Sheffield; and 

  
 (l) regrets that when Sheffield is facing one of the most challenging 

periods in its history, the main opposition group continue to resort to 
making petty and factually inaccurate accusations in an attempt to 
deflect the responsibility from the Member of Parliament for Sheffield 
Hallam and the Liberal Democrats who are part of a Government that 
is imposing unprecedented cuts to the Council’s services, which is 
inevitably impacting on the services that are provided for Sheffield 
people. 

  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was carried. 
  
 The original Motion, as amended, as then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 
  

 RESOLVED:  That this Council:- 
  
 (a) regrets that the Council has had to reduce spending by £55 million in 

the 2012/13 budget and that by 2015/16 the Council will have £170m 
less to spend than it did in 2011/12 and regrets that the main 
opposition group continue to fully support the level of cuts imposed on 
the Council by the Conservative-led Government; 

  
 (b) further regrets that to meet this unprecedented financial gap in the 

budget, the Council has had to reduce the opening hours of the five 
Household Waste Recycling Centres, however acknowledges that the 
previous Administration made the majority of the cuts to these Centres 
in the 2011/12 budget; 

  
 (c) notes that the Council makes every effort to provide the best possible 

Page 27



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 26 of 1 
 

waste service, including sufficient opening hours at the Household 
Waste Recycling Centres to offer a sustainable service, working within 
the severe financial constraints imposed by the Government;  

  
 (d) recognises that the present Administration have made several 

improvements to original proposals to manage  the reductions in 
opening hours and under the revised opening hours, Sheffield's five 
Household Waste Recycling Centres will be open a total of 23 days 
every week, with all sites open on the peak days of Friday to Monday, 
sites open every day of the week and summer opening times until 
6pm which better suits the needs of users; 

  
 (e) notes that in their 2012/13 budget amendments, neither opposition 

group proposed to reverse any savings to Household Waste 
Recycling Centres which would be required to re-consider reductions 
in opening hours and believes that the late involvement of the main 
opposition group after the revised opening hours have already been 
implemented is nothing more than blatant political opportunism; 

  
 (f) deplores the outrageously misleading and factually inaccurate 

accusations made in the press in recent weeks by the Leader of the 
main opposition group that the distribution of reductions in opening 
hours across Household Waste Recycling Centres have been 
politically motivated; 

  
 (g) confirms for the record that there is absolutely no truth in the claims 

that the distribution of reductions in opening hours across Household 
Waste Recycling Centres have been politically motivated, and notes 
the following statement made by the Director of Finance and 
Corporate Services at SOVA:- "SOVA Recycling Ltd were asked, as 
were all those organisations who submitted a tender to run the sites in 
2011, how they proposed to allow commercial waste to be accepted at 
the sites. Due to the licenses under which the sites operate, 
household waste and commercial waste must be kept separate. This 
meant that a site had to be chosen which would need be closed to the 
public during the periods it would be accepting commercial waste. 
SOVA specifically chose Blackstock for this purpose, with the decision 
being based on its more central location, with Douglas Road being 
deemed unsuitable due to its layout and the fact the buildings on the 
site were needed to process recycling materials." 

  
 (h) further confirms that the only favoured area of the present 

Administration is the whole of Sheffield; 
  
 (i) calls upon the Leader of the main opposition group to apologise to the 

people of Sheffield for what this Council regards as an attempt to 
mislead them by claiming that the distribution of reductions in opening 
hours were politically motivated; 

  
 (j) further remembers that  the Leader of the main opposition group was 

Page 28



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 27 of 1 
 

previously the Cabinet Member who oversaw the most shambolic 
mismanagement of the waste service the City has known through the 
introduction of blue boxes to recycle paper which angered many local 
people and welcomes that the present Administration are now 
resolving this issue across the City; 

  
 (k) reiterates its regret for all cuts to waste services, however, recognises 

that they are ultimately a consequence of the Liberal Democrat 
Party’s, led by the Member of Parliament for Sheffield Hallam, 
decision to support a Conservative-led Government which is heavily 
cutting Sheffield’s budget at the same time as some of the wealthiest 
councils in the Conservative heartlands receive almost no cuts at all 
and regrets that the Liberal Democrat Party both locally and nationally 
continue to refuse to stand up for Sheffield; and 

  
 (l) regrets that when Sheffield is facing one of the most challenging 

periods in its history, the main opposition group continue to resort to 
making petty and factually inaccurate accusations in an attempt to 
deflect the responsibility from the Member of Parliament for Sheffield 
Hallam and the Liberal Democrats who are part of a Government that 
is imposing unprecedented cuts to the Council’s services, which is 
inevitably impacting on the services that are provided for Sheffield 
people. 

 

  
13.  
 

NOTICE OF MOTION CONCERNING THE "MEET THE CABINET 
PROGRAMME" 
 

 RESOLVED: On the Motion of Councillor Harry Harpham, seconded by 
Councillor Geoff Smith, that this Council:- 

  
 (a) believes it is important to improve the way that the Council engages 

with local people;  
  
 (b) notes the Meet the Cabinet Programme introduced by the present 

Administration last year which provided an opportunity for members of 
the public to ask questions to Cabinet members and to raise issues in 
their local communities; 

  
 (c) recalls that the meetings were well received and thanks all members 

of the public who attended the meetings; 
  
 (d) welcomes this new way of engaging with local people; 
  
 (e) further welcomes that the present Administration will be repeating the 

Meet the Cabinet initiative this year starting in October; 
  
 (f) further welcomes that the present Administration are not only 

extending the initiative but enhancing it by introducing a “Question 
Time” style format where the first 30 minutes of the meeting will be 

Page 29



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 28 of 1 
 

chaired by the Community Assembly Chair and will be spent 
discussing an issue that matters to local people, providing a greater 
opportunity for members of the public to engage with the Council; and 

  
 (g) notes that the topics for debate in each area will be set by the 

concerns of local people and calls on all local people who wish to raise 
an issue to be debated in their area to contact their local Community 
Assembly. 

  
 (Note: Councillors Robert Murphy and Jillian Creasy voted for Paragraphs 

(a), (b) and (g) and abstained on Paragraphs (c) to (f) of the Motion and 
asked for this to be recorded.) 

  
14.  
 

NOTICE OF MOTION CONCERNING GREEN WASTE COLLECTION 
SERVICE 
 

 It was moved by Councillor Colin Ross, seconded by Councillor Denise 
Reaney, that this Council:- 

  
 (a) understands that as a result of this Administration’s decision to end 

free collections of green bins, up to 30,000 bins could be shredded; 
  
 (b) believes this is a complete waste of an asset which would now cost 

£600,000; 
  
 (c) understands that many residents who do not currently benefit from a 

green bin, may appreciate the offer of a green bin, even at the current 
charge, which is believed to be extortionate; and 

  
 (d) calls on the Cabinet Member for Environment, Waste and Streetscene 

to write to Veolia to ask that the green bins and the green bin 
collection service be offered to residents across the City. 

  
 (At the request of the mover of the Motion (Councillor Colin Ross) and with 

the consent of the Council and the seconder, Paragraph (b) of the Motion, 
published with the Summons for this meeting, was altered by the 
replacement of the word “originally” with the words “would now”.) 

  
 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Jack Scott, seconded by Councillor 

Harry Harpham, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be 
amended by the deletion of all the words after the words ‘That this Council’ 
and the substitution of the following words therefor:- 

  
 (a) regrets that the Council has had to reduce spending by £55 million in 

the 2012/13 budget and that by 2015/16 the Council will have £170m 
less to spend than it did in 2011/12 and regrets that the main 
opposition group continue to fully support the level of cuts imposed on 
the Council by the Conservative-led Government; 

  
 (b) further regrets that to meet this unprecedented financial gap in the 

Page 30



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 29 of 1 
 

budget, the Council can no longer afford to provide a green waste 
collection service free of charge; 

  
 (c) notes that following the Council’s withdrawal of funding for the green 

waste service, Veolia have come forward with a charged for service, 
however, this has not extended the green bin collection service city 
wide; 

  
 (d) notes that in light of this, the main opposition group are proposing to 

give green bins to people who would not be able to have them emptied 
or collected in the foreseeable future; 

  
 (e)       - 
  
 (f) confirms that the present Administration would like to see a more 

equitable green waste service with green bins offered to residents 
across the City and have contacted Veolia to confirm this, however, 
acknowledges with regret this is now a service no longer funded by the 
Council due to the Government cuts and ultimately this decision rests 
with Veolia as the service provider or other providers which come 
forward. 

  
 (At the request of the mover of the amendment (Councillor Jack Scott) and 

with the consent of the Council and the seconder, Paragraph (e), published in 
the list of amendments submitted to the Chief Executive was withdrawn from 
consideration.) 

  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was carried. 
  
 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in 

the following form and carried:- 
  

 RESOLVED:  That this Council:- 
  
 (a) regrets that the Council has had to reduce spending by £55 million in 

the 2012/13 budget and that by 2015/16 the Council will have £170m 
less to spend than it did in 2011/12 and regrets that the main 
opposition group continue to fully support the level of cuts imposed on 
the Council by the Conservative-led Government; 

  
 (b) further regrets that to meet this unprecedented financial gap in the 

budget, the Council can no longer afford to provide a green waste 
collection service free of charge; 

  
 (c) notes that following the Council’s withdrawal of funding for the green 

waste service, Veolia have come forward with a charged for service, 
however, this has not extended the green bin collection service city 
wide; 

  
 (d) notes that in light of this, the main opposition group are proposing to 

Page 31



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 30 of 1 
 

give green bins to people who would not be able to have them emptied 
or collected in the foreseeable future; and 

  
 (e) confirms that the present Administration would like to see a more 

equitable green waste service with green bins offered to residents 
across the City and have contacted Veolia to confirm this, however, 
acknowledges with regret this is now a service no longer funded by the 
Council due to the Government cuts and ultimately this decision rests 
with Veolia as the service provider or other providers which come 
forward. 

  
 (Councillors Robert Murphy and Jillian Creasy voted for Paragraphs (a) to (c), 

against Paragraph (d) and abstained on paragraph (e) of the Motion and 
asked for this to be recorded.) 

  
15.  
 

NOTICE OF MOTION CONCERNING EQUAL MARRIAGE 
 

 RESOLVED:  On the Motion of Councillor Neale Gibson, seconded by 
Councillor Nikki Bond, that this Council:- 

  
 (a) congratulates the organisers of Sheffield Pride for a very successful 

festival that brought our City together in a celebration of diversity and 
togetherness; 

  
 (b) recognises the equal rights of all people and supports the campaign 

for Equal Marriage and calls upon the Government to support 
legislation to enable this at the earliest possible opportunity; and 

  
 (c) seeks to secure marriage for gay people as a civil vehicle on the same 

basis as heterosexual marriage, available in a registry office and 
approved premises. 

  
16.  
 

NOTICE OF MOTION CONCERNING HIGHWAYS PRIVATE FINANCE 
INITIATIVE (PFI) 
 

 It was moved by Councillor Andrew Sangar, seconded by Councillor Ian 
Auckland, that this Council:- 

  
 (a) regrets that Sheffield is home to some of the worst roads in the 

country and rightful owner of the ‘pot-hole city’ title; 
  
 (b) believes that the City could have had decent roads if millions of 

pounds had not been required each financial year to service the 
Council’s debt as a result of the World Student Games; 

  
 (c) welcomes the £2bn Highways PFI project, which will see every road in 

Sheffield improved and thanks councillors of the current opposition 
and administration parties for helping to secure the project, in 
particular the previous Administration, for securing the future of the 
project at a time of intense public spending reviews; 

Page 32



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 31 of 1 
 

  
 (d) thanks the Coalition Government for its £1.2bn contribution to the 

project, in addition to investment in Sheffield’s trains, trams and buses, 
particularly when public finances are tight as a result of the previous 
Government’s record budget deficit; 

  
 (e) believes investment from this project should be spread fairly across 

the City, and will oppose any attempt to deliver one level of standard 
for the Administration’s ‘favoured areas’ and a lower standard for local 
residents elsewhere in the City; and 

  
 (f) therefore calls upon the Leader of the Council, the Cabinet Member for 

Environment, Waste and Streetscene and the Chief Executive to sign 
a “First Street, Last Street” public pledge, which will guarantee that the 
last street and road, and all those before, will be of the same quality as 
the first street and road to benefit  from the Project. 

  
 
 
 

Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Jack Scott, seconded by Councillor 
Ibrar Hussain, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended 
by the deletion of paragraphs (b) to (f) and the addition of new paragraphs (b) 
to (k) as follows:- 

  
 
 

(b) therefore wholeheartedly supports the decision of the previous 
Government to invest in securing the repair of the whole of the 
highway infrastructure in Sheffield including the entire highways 
network, footways, bridges, grass verges, and street signage; 

  
 (c) fully supports the Streets Ahead project and believes that this 

ambitious scheme is hugely welcomed by local people; 
  
 (d) regrets that the smallest opposition group continue to oppose the 

project which will transform Sheffield’s road network and they would 
reject the offer of over £1 billion of Government investment into 
Sheffield supporting the Council to achieve this; 

  
 (e) welcomes action taken by the present Administration to ensure that 

the project will start in 2012 after significant delay by the previous 
Administration and cuts in funding by the present Government; 

  
 (f) further welcomes the action taken by the present Administration to 

ensure the scheme provides maximum value for money for council 
taxpayers through saving £50 million in the financing of the scheme 
without making any changes to the specification; 

  
 (g) confirms that as part of the Streets Ahead project with AMEY a 

specification has been agreed ensuring that roads across all of the 
City will be fixed and maintained to standard throughout the lifetime of 
the contract; 

  
 (h) therefore acknowledges the present Administration have already 

Page 33



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 32 of 1 
 

ensured that a universal standard will be met in delivering the 
Highways PFI for all streets and roads across the City; 

  
 (i) confirms that the plans for roll out have been determined by ensuring 

the most prudent delivery of a £2 billion project and not based on 
political motivation; 

  
 (j) further confirms that the only favoured area of the present 

Administration is the whole of Sheffield; and 
  
 (k) welcomes the fact that the present Administration are implementing 

the Highways PFI with work currently due to start in August and looks 
forward to the improvements to Sheffield’s road network that come 
with it. 

  
 (At the request of the mover of the amendment (Councillor Jack Scott) and 

with the consent of the Council and the seconder, Paragraph (e) of the 
amendment, as published in the list of amendments submitted to the Chief 
Executive, was altered by the replacement of the words “years of” by the 
word “significant”.) 

  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was carried. 
  
 It was then moved by Councillor Robert Murphy, seconded by Councillor 

Jillian Creasy, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be 
amended by the deletion of paragraphs (c) to (f) and the addition of new 
paragraphs (c) and (d) as follows:- 

  
 (c) notes that the cross party Treasury Select Committee's report of 19th 

August 2011 found that PFI funding is now an ‘extremely inefficient’ 
method of financing projects and does not provide taxpayers with 
good value for money; and 

  
 (d) is concerned at the massive increase in liabilities to Sheffield City 

Council which will burden future council tax payers, and by the 
Cabinet decision to reduce the budget contribution in the early years 
of the Highways PFI contract compared with later years. 

  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was negatived. 
  
 The original Motion, as amended, was put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following from and carried:- 
  

 RESOLVED:  That this Council:- 
  
 (a) regrets that Sheffield is home to some of the worst roads in the 

country and rightful owner of the ‘pot-hole city’ title; 
  
 (b) therefore wholeheartedly supports the decision of the previous 

Government to invest in securing the repair of the whole of the 

Page 34



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 33 of 1 
 

highway infrastructure in Sheffield including the entire highways 
network, footways, bridges, grass verges, and street signage; 

  
 (c) fully supports the Streets Ahead project and believes that this 

ambitious scheme is hugely welcomed by local people; 
  
 (d) regrets that the smallest opposition group continue to oppose the 

project which will transform Sheffield’s road network and they would 
reject the offer of over £1 billion of Government investment into 
Sheffield supporting the Council to achieve this; 

  
 (e) welcomes action taken by the present Administration to ensure that 

the project will start in 2012 after significant delay by the previous 
Administration and cuts in funding by the present Government; 

  
 (f) further welcomes the action taken by the present Administration to 

ensure the scheme provides maximum value for money for council 
taxpayers through saving £50 million in the financing of the scheme 
without making any changes to the specification; 

  
 (g) confirms that as part of the Streets Ahead project with AMEY a 

specification has been agreed ensuring that roads across all of the 
City will be fixed and maintained to standard throughout the lifetime of 
the contract; 

  
 (h) therefore acknowledges the present Administration have already 

ensured that a universal standard will be met in delivering the 
Highways PFI for all streets and roads across the City; 

  
 (i) confirms that the plans for roll out have been determined by ensuring 

the most prudent delivery of a £2 billion project and not based on 
political motivation; 

  
 (j) further confirms that the only favoured area of the present 

Administration is the whole of Sheffield; and 
  
 (k) welcomes the fact that the present Administration are implementing 

the Highways PFI with work currently due to start in August and looks 
forward to the improvements to Sheffield’s road network that come 
with it. 

  
 (Note: 1. The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Vickie Priestley) and 

Councillors Simon Clement Jones, Clive Skelton, Shaffaq Mohammed, Rob 
Frost, Colin Ross, Joe Otten, Keith Hill, Diana Stimely, Roger Davison, Sue 
Alston, Andrew Sangar, Denise Reaney, Ian Auckland, Bob McCann, Anders 
Hanson,  Katie Condliffe, Alison Brelsford and Trevor Bagshaw voted for 
Paragraphs (a) to (d) and (f), (g), (i) and (k) and against paragraphs (e), (h) 
and (j) of the Motion and asked for this to be recorded. 
2. Councillors Robert Murphy and Jillian Creasy voted for Paragraphs (a), (g) 
and (h), against Paragraphs (b) to (d), (e), (f) and (k)  abstained on 

Page 35



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 34 of 1 
 

paragraphs (i) and (j) of the Motion and asked for this to be recorded.) 
  
17.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION CONCERNING PLAYGROUNDS 
 

 It was moved by Councillor Simon Clement Jones, seconded by Councillor 
Joe Otten, that this Council:- 

  
 (a) believes that Sheffield can be proud of its reputation as the greenest 

city in the country and considers that its parks and green spaces 
should be accessible to all children and young people; 

  
 (b) notes that there are currently hundreds of disabled children living in 

Sheffield, including many who are wheelchair users; 
  
 (c) however, understands that currently only four parks across the City 

have playgrounds that include wheelchair accessible roundabouts; 
  
 (d) thanks the Government for investing in the Graves Park, Rose 

Garden playground, as part of its Aiming High for Disabled Children 
programme and welcomes reports that improvements to Rivelin 
Valley paddling pools will make the facility more accessible to 
wheelchair users; 

  
 (e) believes that all new playgrounds should contain at least one piece of 

accessible equipment for wheelchair users and that priority be given 
to them when replacing old equipment; and 

  
 (f) requests the Cabinet Member for Culture, Sport & Leisure to bring 

forward a report to Cabinet so that official council policy can be 
amended accordingly. 

  
 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Jackie Drayton, seconded by 

Councillor Harry Harpham, as an amendment, that the Motion now 
submitted be amended by the insertion of the word “previous” *between the 
words “the” and “Government” in paragraph (d). 

  
 On being put to the vote, the amendment was carried. 
  
 The original Motion, as amended, was put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 
  

 RESOLVED:  That this Council:- 
  
 (a) believes that Sheffield can be proud of its reputation as the greenest 

city in the country and considers that its parks and green spaces 
should be accessible to all children and young people; 

  
 (b) notes that there are currently hundreds of disabled children living in 

Sheffield, including many who are wheelchair users; 
  

Page 36



Council 4.07.2012 

Page 35 of 1 
 

 (c) however, understands that currently only four parks across the City 
have playgrounds that include wheelchair accessible roundabouts; 

  
 (d) thanks the previous Government for investing in the Graves Park, 

Rose Garden playground, as part of its Aiming High for Disabled 
Children programme and welcomes reports that improvements to 
Rivelin Valley paddling pools will make the facility more accessible to 
wheelchair users; 

  
 (e) believes that all new playgrounds should contain at least one piece of 

accessible equipment for wheelchair users and that priority be given 
to them when replacing old equipment; and 

  
 (f) requests the Cabinet Member for Culture, Sport & Leisure to bring 

forward a report to Cabinet so that official council policy can be 
amended accordingly. 

 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 

Report of: Chief Executive 
 

 

Date: 5th September 2012 
 

 

Subject: Proportional Allocation of Seats on Council Committees – 
Update 

 

 

Author of Report: Paul Robinson – Head of Democratic Services (Council & 
 Members) 
 

Summary: 

This report outlines the requirements set out in the Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989 to allocate seats on Council Committees to political groups on a politically 
proportionate basis and provides an update on the position agreed at Annual Council 
on 16th May 2012. 

 

Recommendations: 

That the Council:- 
 

(1) Notes the application of the political proportionality framework as set out in the 
report. 

 

(2) Agrees the adjustment of two seats from the Liberal Democrat Group to the 
Labour Group, as outlined in paragraph 5.5, in order to ensure that each 
group has the required number of seats overall in comparison to the total 
number of seats available on all Committees to reflect their composition on 
the Council as a whole. 

 
(3) Notes that the financial effect of the consequential changes to appointments 

to positions attracting Special Responsibility Allowances, outlined in section 6 
of the report, is an additional cost to the Members’ Allowances budget of 
approximately £1,650. 

 

 

Background Papers: 
 

16/05/12 Report to Council - Proportional Allocation of Seats on Council Committees 
 

 

Category of Report: OPEN 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Report to Council 

Agenda Item 6

Page 39



 

2 

 
Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 

 

Financial implications 

YES   Cleared by:   Tricia Phillipson 

Legal implications 

YES Cleared by:  Lynne Bird 

Equality of Opportunity implications 

NO 

Tackling Health Inequalities implications 

NO 

Human rights implications 

NO 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 

NO 

Economic impact 

NO 

Community safety implications 

NO 

Human resources implications 

NO 

Property implications 

NO 

Area(s) affected 

ALL 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee if decision called in 

N/A 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council? 

YES 

Press release 

NO 

 

Page 40



 

3 

PROPORTIONAL ALLOCATION OF SEATS ON COUNCIL COMMITTEES  
 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
  
1.1 This report outlines the requirements set out in the Local Government and 

Housing Act 1989 to allocate seats on Council Committees to political groups 
on a politically proportionate basis and provides an update on the position 
agreed at Annual Council on 16th May 2012. 

  
1.2 The Council is asked to agree the adjustment of seats proposed in paragraph 

5.5, to ensure that each group has the required number of seats overall in 
comparison to the total number of seats available on all Committees to reflect 
their composition on the Council as a whole.   

  
1.3 Alternative arrangements in not applying strict political proportionality can be 

put in place provided Council gives unanimous support without any Member 
dissenting from that approach. 

  
  
2. POLITICAL BALANCE 
  
2.1 The political balance requirements of the Local Government and Housing Act 

1989 and the Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) 
Regulations 1990 apply on the whole with some limited exceptions to any 
committees and sub-committees established under the Constitution.  They 
also apply to the Scrutiny and Policy Development Committees, which are 
treated as committees for the purposes of the Local Government Act 2000.  
The allocation of seats on committees must be in the same proportion as the 
number of members of the group bears to the membership of the Authority as 
a whole.  The political balance rules do not apply to the Executive (Cabinet) or 
the Shadow Cabinet, and neither do they apply to the Licensing Committee, 
although past and existing practice has ensured that it is politically balanced.  
The Council, in establishing its new Standards Committee at its meeting on 4th 
July, 2012, agreed to disapply proportionality to that Committee.  In addition, 
Community Assemblies are established as formal Area Committees under the 
Local Government Act 2000 and this is similarly exempted from the political 
balance rules. 

  
2.2 The Council has a duty when allocating or reviewing the allocation of seats on 

committees to give effect so far as is reasonably practicable to the following 
four principles:- 

   
 (i) all the seats are not allocated to the same political group; 
 (ii) the majority of the seats go to the political group in the majority on the 

full Council; 
 (iii) subject to the above two principles, the total number of seats on the 

ordinary committees of the Authority are allocated to each political group 
in the same proportion as the group’s representation on the full Council; 
and 

 (iv) subject to the above three principles, the number of seats on each 

Page 41



 

4 

committee are allocated to each political group in the same proportion 
as the group’s representation on the Council. 

  
  
3. POSITION AGREED AT ANNUAL COUNCIL 
  
3.1 At its annual meeting on 16th May 2012, the Council agreed the following in 

respect of the proportional allocation of seats on Council Committees:- 
  
 RESOLVED: On the Motion of Councillor Pat Midgley, seconded by Councillor 

Clive Skelton, that the City Council:- 
  
 (a) agrees that the current Council Committees, with their terms of 

reference set out in the Constitution, be re-established subject to the 
renaming of the Scrutiny Committees as Scrutiny and Policy 
Development Committees, and authority be given for the Constitution to 
be amended accordingly; 

 (b) notes the political proportionality framework and the illustrative  
example of how this might be applied, as set out in the report circulated   
with the agenda for this meeting; 

 (c) (i) approves the sizes of individual Committees to be subject to  
proportional balance and the initial allocation of seats to political groups  
on individual Committees before final adjustment, as set out in the  
report; (ii) agrees that, in order to ensure that each political group  
has the required number of seats overall in comparison to the total  
number of seats available on Committees to reflect their composition on  
the Council as a whole, the Liberal Democrat Group’s adjustments of  
four seats be from (A) the Economic and Environmental Well-being  
Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee, the Licensing Committee  
and the Senior Officer Employment Committee, with those seats being  
allocated to the Green Group and (B) the Appeals and Collective  
Disputes Committee, with the seat being allocated to the Labour Group;  
and (iii) approves the appointment of Members to all Council  
Committees to reflect the arrangements now agreed and the wishes of  
the political groups, in accordance with the schedule circulated at the  
meeting (and including substitutes where appropriate), and, for the  
purposes of Council Procedure Rule 25.4, the consent of the Council be  
given in any case where a Member chooses not to be appointed to 
serve on any Scrutiny or Regulatory Committee; 

 (d) agrees to disapply proportionality to the Senior Officer Employment  
Sub-Committees and the Appeals and Collective Disputes Sub-
Committees, for the reasons set out in paragraph 3.2.4 of the report;  

 (e) notes that the re-establishment of the current Council Committees has a 
neutral effect on the budget for Members Allowances; 

 (f) notes that a report will be submitted to the meeting of the Council on 
13th June in relation to the standards arrangements to be adopted by the 
Authority from 1st July, and consequential changes required to be made 
to the Constitution of the Council and to political proportionality; and 

 (g) determines that political proportionality be reviewed in December each 
year to reflect any changes to the political composition of the Council 
occurring since the annual meeting of the Council. 

Page 42



 

5 

  
3.2 Full details of the sizes of individual committees subject to proportional 

balance and the proportional seat allocations to Political Groups and 
Independents agreed at the meeting (including the final adjustments which 
were required) can be found at Appendix 1. 

  
  
4. CHANGES SINCE ANNUAL COUNCIL 
  
4.1 Since the annual meeting of the Council, there has been one change which 

has impacted on political balance and therefore proportionality, this being one 
former Member of the Liberal Democrat Group joining the Labour Group with 
effect from 11th July, 2012.  The Council continues to have three political 
groups and the Labour Group now has 60 seats, the Liberal Democrats now 
has 22 seats, and the Green Group remains on 2 seats.  The total number of 
seats on the Council is 84. 

  
4.2 This means that the percentage allocation is as follows:- 
  
 Labour: 60 ÷ 84 x 100 = 71.43% 
 Liberal Democrat: 22 ÷ 84 x 100 = 26.19% 
 Greens:   2 ÷ 84 x 100 =   2.38% 
  
  
5. PROPORTIONAL SEAT ALLOCATIONS TO POLITICAL GROUPS 
  
5.1 The total number of seats across all politically proportionate Committees 

established by the Council at its annual meeting is 138.  Applying each 
political group’s percentage allocation (set out in paragraph 4.2) to the total 
number of seats, gives the following results: 

  
 Labour   138 x 71.43%  = 98.57 

 
Liberal Democrat  138 x 26.19%  = 36.14 
 
Greens   138 x 2.38%  = 3.28 
 

  
 This shows that 137 whole seats are allocated, 98 to the Labour Group, 36 to 

the Liberal Democrats and 3 to the Green Group.  One seat remains for 
allocation and is awarded on the highest part percentage claim, ie to the 
Labour Group (0.57). 

  
5.2 The closest practical distribution to political groups (after rounding) is 

therefore 99:36:3 (Labour : Liberal Democrat : Green). 
  
5.3 Appendix 1 also shows the new overall proportional seat allocations to the 

political groups (as set out in paragraph 5.2).  A comparison with the 
allocation made at the annual meeting of the Council shows that a small 
adjustment of two seats is required to ensure political balance on the overall 
number of seats across all Committees available to each political group -  the 

Page 43



 

6 

Labour Group is under represented by two seats and the Liberal Democrat 
Group has an over allocation of two seats. 

  
5.4 The number of main committee seats are allocated in the same proportion as 

the group’s representation on the Council.  The mathematical calculation on 
differing sized Committees, based on the percentage allocation set out in 
paragraph 4.2, is shown at Appendix 2.  A comparison with the Committee 
sizes agreed at the annual meeting of the Council (as set out in Appendix 1) 
shows that the new percentage allocation does not have an impact on each 
group’s entitlement on each individual Committee, as initially allocated at the 
annual meeting, prior to final adjustment. 

  
5.5 As indicated in paragraph 5.3, in order to ensure political balance on the 

overall number of seats across all Committees, the Liberal Democrat Group is 
required to give up two seats, to be allocated to the Labour Group, from any 
two Committees other than (a) the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee, as its membership comprises the Chairs and Deputies of the 
Scrutiny and Policy Development Committees, or (b) any of the four 
Committees which were subject to an adjustment at the annual meeting of the 
Council (i.e. the Economic and Environmental Well-being Scrutiny and Policy 
Development Committee, the Licensing Committee, the Senior Officer 
Employment Committee and the Appeals and Collective Disputes Committee), 
as any additional adjustment made to these Committees would be contrary to 
the fourth principle set out in paragraph 2.2. 

  
  
6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
6.1 There are no financial implications arising from the adjustments required to be 

made to the sizes of the Committees in order to comply with the political 
balance requirements.  However, the Member of the Council referred to in 
paragraph 4.1 was a Shadow Cabinet Member and the Deputy Chair of the 
Licensing Committee.  Both of these roles attract a Special Responsibility 
Allowance, but only the highest value Allowance is payable.  It is now 
proposed that the position of Deputy Chair of the Licensing Committee is 
retained by that Member, and, as the Liberal Democrat Group will appoint a 
new Shadow Cabinet Member, this will reinstate the two separate allowances 
for the remainder of the Municipal Year.   

  
6.2 This will represent an additional cost of approximately £1,650 (10 months of a 

Band C allowance of £3,028 per annum for the Deputy Chair of the Licensing 
Committee, i.e. payable from 11th July, 2012 rather than from the date of the 
Council Annual Meeting on 16th May, 2012, reduced by a saving of 2 months 
of a Band B2 allowance of £5,268 per annum for the Shadow Cabinet 
Member role covering the period 11th July, 2012 to 5th September, 2012, 
where the Shadow Cabinet Member position was vacant).  The appointments 
made by the Council at its annual meeting to positions attracting Special 
Responsibility Allowances were cost neutral for the Members’ Allowances 
budget, so this additional cost of approximately £1,650 also represents an 
increase on the 2011/12 Special Responsibility Allowance element of that 
budget. 

Page 44



 

7 

  
6.3 Officers will work with Members to reduce other areas of spending on 

Members support and equipment, to ensure this small increase in the total 
spend on Allowances can be managed within the overall Members budget. 

  
7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
 The legal implications are set out in the body of this report. 
  
  
8. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
 That the Council:- 
  
 (1) Notes the application of the political proportionality framework as set out 

in the report. 
   
 (2) Agrees the adjustment of two seats from the Liberal Democrat Group to 

the Labour Group, as outlined in paragraph 5.5, in order to ensure that 
each group has the required number of seats overall in comparison to 
the total number of seats available on all Committees to reflect their 
composition on the Council as a whole. 

   
 (3) Notes that the financial effect of the consequential changes to 

appointments to positions attracting Special Responsibility Allowances, 
outlined in section 6 of the report, is an additional cost to the Members’ 
Allowances budget of approximately £1,650. 

 
 
 
 
  

John Mothersole 
Chief Executive 

Page 45



 

8 

 
PROPORTIONAL SEAT ALLOCATIONS TO POLITICAL GROUPS (as agreed at 
Council on 16th May 2012 - final adjustments shown in bold) 
 
 

Committee Labour 
Lib 
Dem 

Green Total 

CYP&FS Scrutiny Committee 9 4 0 13 

E&EW Scrutiny Committee 9 4  3 0  1 13 

HC&ASC Scrutiny Committee 9 4 0 13 

S&SC Scrutiny Committee 9 4 0 13 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Committee 

4 4 0 8 

Planning and Highways  
- City Centre, South & East  

7 3 0 10 

Planning and Highways  
- West & North  

7 3 0 10 

Licensing 11 4  3 0  1 15 

Audit 4 2 0 6 

Admissions 5 2 0 7 

Senior Officer Employment 11 4  3 0  1 15 

Appeals and Collective Disputes 11  12 4  3 0 15 

     

Initial Allocation at the AGM 96 42 0 138 

Total Allocation after adjustment 
at the AGM - and the Previous 
Political Balance Requirement 
(May 2012) 

97 38 3 138 

New Political Balance 
Requirement (July 2012) 

99 36 3 138 

Adjustments Required +2 -2 n/a  

 
 
 

Appendix 1 

Page 46



 

9 

CALCULATION OF PROPORTIONAL SEAT ALLOCATION 
OF COMMITTEES 
 
 

% Share of 
Council 

71.43% 26.19% 2.38% 

Number on 
Committee 

Labour 
Liberal 

Democrat 
Green 

3 2.14 0.79 0.07 

4 2.86 1.05 0.10 

5 3.57 1.31 0.12 

6 4.29 1.57 0.14 

7 5.00 1.83 0.17 

8 5.71 2.10 0.19 

9 6.43 2.36 0.21 

10 7.14 2.62 0.24 

11 7.86 2.88 0.26 

12 8.57 3.14 0.29 

13 9.29 3.40 0.31 

14 10.00 3.67 0.33 

15 10.71 3.93 0.36 

16 11.43 4.19 0.38 

17 12.14 4.45 0.40 

18 12.86 4.71 0.43 

19 13.57 4.98 0.45 

20 14.29 5.24 0.48 

21 15.00 5.50 0.50 

22 15.71 5.76 0.52 

23 16.43 6.02 0.55 

24 17.14 6.29 0.57 

25 17.86 6.55 0.60 

    

    

 Seats %  

Labour 60 71.43  

Liberal 
Democrat 

22 26.19  

Greens 2 2.38  

 84 100%  

 
 
 

Appendix 2 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 

Report of: Chief Executive 
 

 

Date: 5th September 2012 
 

 

Subject: Establishment of a South Yorkshire Police and Crime 
Panel and Appointment of Local Authority Members 

 

 

Author of Report: David Molloy, Scrutiny Policy Officer 
 

Summary:    

This report sets out the requirements of the 2011 Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act to establish a Police and Crime Panel for the South Yorkshire 
force area. The Police and Crime Panel is required to scrutinise and hold to account 
the upcoming South Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner from November 
2012 onwards. The report outlines the sub-regional work undertaken thus far and 
what has been agreed by South Yorkshire Leaders. It requests that Council agree to 
nominate the required Members to the Police and Crime Panel. 
 

Recommendations: 

That the Council agree the following arrangements for the establishment of a South 
Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel (PCP): 
 

(1) That the PCP consists of 10 Elected Members and 2 independent co-optees 
(2) That Sheffield City Council be allocated 4 of these 10 seats as part of the 

Balanced Appointment Objective, and will chair the PCP 
(3) That 3 of Sheffield City Council’s PCP seats be set aside for the Labour 

Group and 1 seat for the Liberal Democrat Group, and that these positions 
in 2012/13 are subsequently filled at today’s meeting 

(4) That the appointment of PCP Members be for 1 year terms 
(5) That meetings of South Yorkshire Leaders be convened to consider the 

allocation of seats to the South Yorkshire PCP as and when required 
(6) That the appointment of independent co-optees to the PCP be considered 

once the political membership of the Panel has been determined. The 
appointment of co-opted members to be agreed by the PCP 

(7) That Rotherham MBC be identified as the Lead Authority to host the PCP and 
receive the Government funding to cover the cost of supporting the PCP 

(8) That Panel Members be paid £920 annually (as directed by the Home Office) 
for the first 12 months and the host authority (Rotherham MBC) be requested 
to arrange for its Remuneration Panel to review the role of Panel Members in 
12 months time 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Report to Council 

Agenda Item 7

Page 49



 

2 

(9) That the PCP initially operates to the minimum of 4 meetings per year, with 
sufficient flexibility for additional meetings if required 

(10) That the Task and Finish Officer Group, established by South Yorkshire Chief 
Executive’s to work up the details of the PCP, continue to meet to provide the 
necessary sub-regional Officer support to the Panel to ensure its 
establishment, including detailed work on the Panel arrangements and Rules 
of Procedure 

 

 

Background Papers: None 
 

 

Category of Report: OPEN 
 

Page 50



 

3 

 
Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 

 

Financial implications 

YES 

Legal implications 

YES 

Equality of Opportunity implications 

NO 

Tackling Health Inequalities implications 

NO 

Human rights implications 

NO 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 

NO 

Economic impact 

NO 

Community safety implications 

YES 

Human resources implications 

NO 

Property implications 

NO 

Area(s) affected 

ALL 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee if decision called in 

N/A 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council? 

YES 

Press release 

NO 

 

Page 51



 

4 

ESTABLISHMENT OF A SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL AND 
APPOINTMENT OF LOCAL AUTHORITY MEMBERS 
 
 

1. BACKGROUND 
  
1.1 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 abolishes all existing 

Police Authorities in November 2012, replacing them with directly elected 
Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs). PCC elections will take place on 15 
November 2012, with elected PCCs taking up office on 22 November 2012. 
PCCs will serve their term of office until May 2016, and every 4 years 
thereafter. 

  
1.2 The Act confers a central role for the Police and Crime Panel within the new 

police governance framework as most of the statutory powers and duties in 
relation to policing are concentrated in one person. This compares with the 
present South Yorkshire arrangement which has 17 nominated local 
Councillors and independent members. Accountability is built back into the 
new policing arrangements as the Police and Crime Commissioner is elected 
by the community and the Police and Crime Panel holds the PCC to account, 
through democratically elected Members, and maintains an array of key 
checks and balances   

  
1.3 The PCP will be a formally constituted joint committee of all the local 

authorities in the South Yorkshire force area, and must be locally determined. 
The PCP will be a scrutiny body, performing a ‘critical friend’ role. All Local 
Authorities in the force area must agree its ‘panel arrangements’ which 
include the establishment and maintenance of the PCP e.g. appointment of 
Members, terms of office, arrangements for co-opting members. The ‘Rules of 
Procedure’ for the PCP will be agreed by the Panel once it is established and 
these may cover such issues as decision-making and the formation of sub-
committees 

  
1.4 The Home Office has required all Local Authorities to submit details of their 

PCP arrangements by 16 July 2012. Given the time constraints within which 
these arrangements have been put in place, and the need to ensure the Panel 
is able to quickly undertake its role, a Task and Finish Officer Group was 
established by South Yorkshire Chief Executives to work swiftly to bring 
forward options on the establishment of a South Yorkshire PCP. Part of this 
Home Office requirement included the Council submitting interim nominations 
to the Panel, subject to full Council confirmation. This is something that was 
agreed within internal party structures. What is required today is full 
Council confirmation of our Police and Crime Panel Members. 

  
2. SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
  
2.1 At a meeting of South Yorkshire Leaders on 21 June 2012 this issue was 

discussed as it was considered the appropriate forum to consider these South 
Yorkshire arrangements.  

  
2.2 The following Police and Crime Panel arrangements were recommended: 
   

Page 52



 

5 

 (i) That the PCP consist of 10 Elected Members and 2 Independent 
Co-optees 
As the South Yorkshire Police Force area covers less than 10 Local 
Authorities, the PCP will consist of 10 locally Elected Councillors plus 2 
independent co-opted members. This is consistent with the legislation 
governing the establishment of the Police and Crime Panel. There is 
also a duty under the Act to nominate an elected Mayor to the PCP 
where one or more exists at Local Authorities within the force area. The 
Mayor of Doncaster MBC has indicated that he wishes to take up this 
position on the PCP 
 
Balanced Appointment Objective 
There is a requirement to ensure the PCP satisfies the ‘Balanced 
Appointment Objective’. Specifically, that Local Authority Members of a 
PCP (when taken together) represent, both politically and 
geographically, all parts of the relevant police force area, and have the 
necessary skills, knowledge and experience to discharge the PCP’s 
functions effectively. Provided the Balanced Appointment Objective 
is met, each Local Authority may determine which Members are 
best placed to contribute to the PCP e.g. Cabinet Members, 
Scrutiny Members, existing Police Authority Members. 
 
The geographical and political breakdown on a 10 Member Panel 
provides Sheffield with 4 seats – 3 Labour and 1 Liberal Democrat. The 
breakdown of the 10 Member PCP is as follows: 
 

• Sheffield – 4 seats (3 Labour, 1 Liberal Democrat) 

• Doncaster – 2 seats (1 Mayor, 1 Conservative) 

• Rotherham – 2 seats (2 Labour) 

• Barnsley – 2 seats (2 Labour) 
 
Council is requested to agree the appointments of 3 Labour 
Members and 1 Liberal Democrat Member to the South Yorkshire 
Police and Crime Panel IN 2012/13 
 

 (ii) That the appointment of PCP Members be for one year terms 
This was considered to be the most appropriate option to maintain 
political balance resulting from any changes that may occur after local 
elections. Local Authorities may wish to consider continuity of 
membership to develop skills, knowledge and expertise wherever 
possible 
 

 (iii) That meetings of South Yorkshire Leaders be convened to 
consider the allocation of seats to the PCP in South Yorkshire as 
and when required 
As there is an ongoing requirement to ensure the Balanced 
Appointment Objective is met, it is necessary to establish an 
appropriate forum where this can be considered. It has been 
recommended that a meeting of South Yorkshire Leaders will be 
convened to consider the allocation of seats in South Yorkshire after 
future local elections (but in advance of the round of annual Council 

Page 53



 

6 

meetings) to ensure this can be achieved. 
 

 (iv) That the appointment of independent co-optees to the PCP be 
considered once the political membership of the Panel has been 
determined, and these appointments be agreed by the PCP 
As well as being politically and geographically balanced, PCPs are also 
expected to be balanced according to expertise, knowledge and skills. It 
is the Home Office’s intention that independent co-optees will be 
appointed by the PCP to bridge any potential gaps in knowledge or 
skills. It is recommended, therefore, that the identification of appropriate 
co-optees to the Panel would be undertaken once the political 
representation has been agreed and there has been an opportunity to 
carry out a ‘skills audit’ of PCP Members. The PCP will carry out a 
recruitment process during early Autumn to seek to fill the vacancies for 
co-opted members. 
 

 (v) That Panel Members be paid £920 annually (as directed by the 
Home Office) for the first 12 months, and the ‘Host Authority’ 
(Rotherham MBC) be requested to arrange for its Remuneration 
Panel to review the role of Panel Members in 12 months time 
The allowance of £920 has been set by the Home Office to cover 
expenses only. There is, however, local discretion to review this 
amount. It is proposed that the Remuneration Panel of the ‘host 
authority’ (Rotherham MBC) review this in May 2013 as this will enable 
a greater understanding of the work undertaken by the PCP and its 
Members. The host authority’s Remuneration Panel would make its 
recommendations to full Council. A report would be submitted to full 
Council for approval and any recommendations concerning changes to 
remuneration should seek agreement from all 4 authorities to ensure 
consistency. 

   
 (vi) That the PCP initially operates to the minimum of 4 meetings per 

year, with sufficient flexibility for additional meetings if required 
This will enable the Panel to carry out the following key scrutiny tasks: 
 

• Budget and precept 

• Police and Crime Plan priorities 

• PCC’s Annual Report 

• Performance and financial outturn (quarterly) 
 
It is recognised, however, that as the work of the PCP becomes more 
established, or if special circumstances dictate, there should be 
sufficient flexibility to increase the frequency of meetings or add 
additional meetings into the schedule as and when required 

   
 (vii) That Rotherham MBC be identified as the Lead Authority to host 

the PCP and receive the Government funding to cover the cost of 
supporting the PCP, and that Sheffield City Council chairs the PCP  
A lead or ‘host’ local authority needs to be assigned for each police 
force area to hold the Home Office budget allocated for supporting 
PCPs. This budget is to be the same for each police force area, 

Page 54



 

7 

regardless of force size, and is £53,000 per annum. It is not considered 
appropriate for the 4 South Yorkshire Local Authorities to provide any 
enhancements to this funding package as this will be used to provide 
appropriate managerial and administrative arrangements. Following a 
discussion amongst South Yorkshire Leaders, Rotherham MBC has 
been identified as the host authority for the PCP in South Yorkshire, 
with agreement being reached that Sheffield City Council will chair the 
Police and Crime Panel. 

   
 (viii) That the Task and Finish Officer Group continue to meet to provide 

the necessary sub-regional Officer support to the Panel to ensure 
its establishment, including detailed work on Panel arrangements 
and Rules of Procedure 
The Officer Task and Finish Group has begun to develop draft 
documents for the Rules of Procedure, based on best and emerging 
practice, with the aim of preparing a draft for consideration at the first 
meeting of the Panel in early autumn 2012. Work is also underway to 
consider arrangements for work planning, training and development of 
Members and the recruitment process for co-opted members. Guidance 
will also be issued on some of the key areas of activity of the Panel over 
forthcoming months relating to such issues as the role of the Panel in 
reviewing budgets and precepts, handling complaints and its role in 
reviewing the PCC’s proposed appointments of Chief Constable, Chief 
Executive, Chief Finance Officer and Deputy PCC. The Officer Group 
will continue to work through these issues to ensure the PCP is able to 
effectively undertake its responsibilities 

   
3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION 
  
3.1 As the PCP covers the 4 South Yorkshire Local Authorities, the proposals put 

forward have been discussed and agreed by South Yorkshire Leaders 
  
3.2 The requirement to make 2 independent appointments is in accordance with 

the legislative requirement of ensuring appropriate Panel size, along with 
political and geographical proportionality across the force area. Where 
adequate arrangements are not in place to cover PCP hosting arrangements 
and geographical and political proportionality, the Home Secretary has the 
power to intervene to make suitable arrangements. 

  
3.3 In terms of remuneration and meeting requirements, the recommended 

approach allows an opportunity to review activities of the Panel over the first 
12 months before evaluating and considering any proposed changes to the 
PCP’s operation 

  
6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
6.1 As the ‘host authority’, Rotherham MBC will receive the £53,000 fund that the 

Home Office will allocate to each force area. Rotherham MBC will use this 
funding to support the work of the Police and Crime Panel as set out in the 
report. This will also include paying Members’ expenses. The nominated 
Members of the Police and Crime Panel will receive an annual expenses 

Page 55



 

8 

payment of £920 as stipulated in the Act. The abolition of the current Police 
Authority for Police and Crime Commissioners will mean that Members will no 
longer receive their annual allowance for serving on this body. 

  
7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
7.1 As indicated in this report, the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 

2011 introduced the requirement for Police and Crime Panels.  The detailed 
provisions are contained in Schedule 6 of the Act, and the proposals in this 
report reflect the legal position.   PCPs are statutory joint committees of the 
local authorities involved. 
 

  
8. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
 That the Council agrees:- 
  
 (1) That the PCP consist of 10 Elected Members and 2 independent co-

optees 
 (2) That Sheffield City Council be allocated 4 of these 10 seats as part of 

the Balanced Appointment Objective, and will Chair the PCP 
 (3) That 3 of Sheffield City Council’s PCP seats be set aside for the Labour 

Group and 1 seat for the Liberal Democrat Group, and agrees to 
nominate Members to these positions at today’s meeting 

 (4) That the appointment of PCP Members be for 1 year terms 
 (5) That meetings of South Yorkshire Leaders be convened to consider the 

allocation of seats to the South Yorkshire PCP as and when required 
 (6) That the appointment of independent co-optees to the PCP be  

considered once the political membership of the Panel has been  
determined. The appointment of co-opted members to be agreed by the  
PCP 

 (7) That Rotherham MBC be identified as the Lead Authority to host the 
PCP and receive the Government funding to cover the cost of 
supporting the PCP 

 (8) That Panel Members be paid £920 annually (as directed by the Home 
Office) for the first 12 months and the host authority (Rotherham MBC) 
be requested to arrange for its Remuneration Panel to review the role of 
Panel Members in 12 months time 

 (9) That the PCP initially operates to the minimum of 4 meetings per year, 
with sufficient flexibility for additional meetings if required 

 (10) That the Task and Finish Officer Group, established by South Yorkshire 
Chief Executive’s to work up the details of the PCP, continue to meet to 
provide the necessary sub-regional Officer support to the Panel to 
ensure its establishment, including detailed work on the Panel 
arrangements and Rules of Procedure 

  

John Mothersole 
Chief Executive 

Page 56



 

9 

PROPORTIONAL SEAT ALLOCATIONS TO LOCAL AUTHORITIES (as agreed at 
South Yorkshire Leaders on 21 June 2012) 
 

South Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel  

      

Panel Size 10 (+2 co-optees) Population Percentage Seats Rounded Figure 

Area Split   %   

Sheffield  555000 41.80 4.18 4 

Doncaster  290600 21.89 2.19 2 

Rotherham  254600 19.17 1.92 2 

Barnsley  227600 17.14 1.71 2 

Total  1327800 100.00 10 10 

      

Political Split      

Labour 7  Sheffield 3 Labour, 1 Liberal Democrat 

Liberal Democrats 1  Doncaster 1 Mayor, 1 Conservative 

Conservatives 1  Rotherham 2 Labour  

Mayor 1  Barnsley 2 Labour  

      

      

Current Police Authority Arrangements    

Authority Size 9     

Labour 7  Sheffield 2 Labour, 1 Lib Dem 

Liberal Democrats 1  Doncaster 1 Labour, 1 Conservative 

Conservatives 1  Rotherham 2 Labour  

   Barnsley 2 Labour  

 

PCP Seats (x10)     

Mayor      1 

Labour 80.29% x9 equals 7.19 seats 7 

Liberal Democrats 9.12% x9 equals 0.85 seats 1 

Conservatives 6.57% x9 equals 0.59 seats 1 

BIG 1.82% x9 equals 0.16 seats  

Independents/Non Aligned 1.46% x9 equals 0.13 seats  

Community 0.00% x9 equals 0.00 seats  

Green Party 0.73% x9 equals 0.07 seats  

Alliance of Indep Membs Grp 0.00% x9 equals 0.00 seats  

BNP 0.00% x9 equals 0.00 seats  

Vacancy 0.00% x9 equals 0.00 seats   

Total 100%  equals 9.00 seats 10 

 
 

Appendix 1 

Page 57



 

10 

CALCULATION OF PROPORTIONAL SEAT ALLOCATION 
OF POLICE AND CRIME PANEL FOLLOWING 2012 LOCAL ELECTION 
RESULTS 
 
Barnsley   Rotherham   

Labour 52  Labour 58  

Liberal Democrats 0  Liberal Democrats 0  

Conservatives 5  Conservatives 4  

BIG 5  BIG 0  

Independents/Non Aligned 1  Independents/Non Aligned 1  

Community 0  Community 0  

Green Party 0  Green Party 0  
Alliance of Indep Membs 
Grp 0  Alliance of Indep Membs Grp 0  

BNP 0  BNP 0  

Vacancy 0  Vacancy 0  

Total 63  Total 63  

      

Sheffield   Doncaster   

Labour 60  Labour 50  

Liberal Democrats 22  Liberal Democrats 3  

Conservatives 0  Conservatives 9  

BIG 0  BIG 0  

Independents/Non Aligned 0  Independents/Non Aligned 2 * 

Community 0  Community 0  

Green Party 2  Green Party 0  
Alliance of Indep Membs 
Grp 0  Alliance of Indep Membs Grp 0  

BNP 0  BNP 0  

Vacancy 0  Vacancy 0  

Total 84  Total 64  

   (* includes Mayor Davis for purpose of proportionality) 

      

Totals   Totals Percentage 

Labour 220  Labour 80.29%  

Liberal Democrats 25  Liberal Democrats 9.12%  

Conservatives 18  Conservatives 6.57%  

BIG 5  BIG 1.82%  

Independents/Non Aligned 4  Independents/Non Aligned 1.46%  

Community 0  Community 0.00%  

Green Party 2  Green Party 0.73%  
Alliance of Indep Membs 
Grp 0  Alliance of Indep Membs Grp 0.00%  

BNP 0  BNP 0.00%  

Vacancy 0  Vacancy 0.00%  

Total 274  Total 100.00%  

 
 
 
 

Appendix 2 

Page 58



 

1 
 

 
 

 
Report of:   Chief Executive 
 

 
Date:    5 September 2012 
 

 
Subject: Changes to the Constitution 
 

 
Author of Report: Dave Ross – Democratic Services 

0114 273 5033 
 

 
Summary:   
 
This report provides details of proposed changes to the Constitution. 
 

 
Recommendations:  
 
That the Council (a) considers adopting the changes to the following Parts of the 
Constitution, as set out in the report and appendices:- 
 
(i) Part 2  - Articles 6, 11 and 12 
(ii) Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions 
(iii) Part 4 - Council Procedure Rules 
(iv) Part 4 - Scrutiny Procedure Rules 
(v) Part 5 - Code of Conduct for Council Members and Officers in respect of 

Planning Matters 
(vi) Part 5 - Guidance Note on General Procedures at Planning and 

Highways Committee meetings 
(vii) Part 5  - Guidance Note to Chairs on Disruption of Planning and 

Highways Committees by Members of the Public 
(viii) Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol 
(ix) Part 5 – Members’ Code of Conduct 
(x) Part 7 - Management Structure and Proper Officers 
 
(b) gives authority to the Monitoring Officer or his/her Deputy to grant 

dispensations in accordance with Section 33 of the Localism Act 2011, as 
detailed in Section 3.9 of the report, and Article 12 of the Constitution be 
amended accordingly. 

 

Report to Council 

Agenda Item 9

Page 59



 

2 
 

 

 
Background Papers:  
 
Revised Constitution June and July 2012. 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 

Page 60



 

3 
 

 
Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 

 
    Financial implications 

 

 
NO 

    Legal implications 
 

YES 
 

Equality of Opportunity implications 

NO 
 

Tackling Health Inequalities implications 
 

N/A 
 

Human rights implications 
 

N/A 
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

N/A 
 

Economic impact 
 

N/A 
 

Community safety implications 
 

N/A 

Human resources implications 
 

N/A 

Property implications 
 

N/A 
 

Area(s) affected 

 
None 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee if decision called in 

Not applicable 
 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?   

Yes 

Press release 
 

 
NO 

 
 

Page 61



 

4 
 

CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION REPORT TO COUNCIL  
5 SEPTEMBER 2012 

  
1. Introduction 
  
1.1 This report provides details of proposed changes to the Council’s Constitution. 
  
2. Background 
  
2.1 To ensure that the Constitution is kept up to date, there is a regular review 

process and, where changes are required, these are submitted to Full Council for 
approval. Changes were last approved by Full Council in June and July 2012.  

  
2.2 In addition, the Director of Legal Services, in consultation with the Lord Mayor, 

has delegated authority to make any minor and consequential drafting changes to 
the Constitution. 

  
3. Proposed Changes and Reasons 
  
3.1 Following the latest review and suggestions made by the majority group on the 

Council in relation to the operation of the Council meetings, a number of changes 
are proposed to the Constitution and have been discussed with the Council’s 
Corporate Members’ Group. 

  
3.2 Part 2 - Article 6 Overview and Scrutiny and Part 4 – Scrutiny Procedure Rules 
  
3.2.1 It is proposed to amend Article 6.03 (b) and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 9 to take 

account of legislative changes introduced by the Localism Act 2011.This requires 
provision enabling those Members who are not members of an Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, to refer to that Committee any matter relevant to the 
Committee’s functions which is not an excluded matter (an excluded matter is 
defined as a local crime and disorder matter within the meaning of Section 19 of 
the Police and Justice Act 2006). The proposed changes are set out at 
Appendices 1 and 2. 

  
3.3 Part 2 - Article 11 Joint Arrangements 
  
3.3.1 Changes are proposed to Article 11.02 to clarify the position about the creation of 

Joint Committees with other local authorities and the appointment of Elected 
Members to serve on them.  They also reflect the provisions of the Local 
Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 
2012. The proposed changes are set out at Appendix 3. 

  
3.4 Part 2 - Article 12 and Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol 
  
3.4.1 Article 12.03 (Functions of the Monitoring Officer) and the Monitoring Officer 

Protocol and have been updated to reflect the changes to the Standards regime 
approved at the Council Meeting on 4 July 2012. These changes are set out at 
Appendices 4 and 5. 

  
  
  

Page 62



 

5 
 

  
3.5 Part 3 – Responsibility for Functions  
  
3.5.1 There have been minor changes/updates to legislation and the transfer of three 

licensing functions to the Licensing Service from Trading Standards and 
Highways. The Licensing Committee’s Terms of Reference have been updated to 
include these functions and there have been some minor amendments to Part B 
of the Local Authority functions Table with regards to the Licensing and 
Registration Functions. The proposed changes are set out at Appendix 6. 

  
3.5.2 A minor change is proposed to paragraph 3.5.1 of the Non-Executive Functions 

relating to agreeing the format (i.e. a document template) for the schemes of 
delegation of individual EMT members.  This format is likely to be devised by the 
Monitoring Officer and her staff and there is no need for this also to be formally 
approved by the Chief Executive and the Chief Finance Officer.  The proposed 
change is shown at Appendix 7. 

  
3.6 Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules 
  
3.6.1 The majority group on the Council are proposing to make changes to the 

termination time of Council meetings, the order of Motions, the time limit and 
duration of debates and Members’ Questions. This affects the following Council 
Procedure Rules: 

  
 • 5.5 - Meetings of the Council and other Bodies (page 79) 
 • 9.2 - Order of Council Business (page 82) 
 • 10.2 (b) - Motions set out in agenda (page 83) 
 • 11 (a) (xvi) – Motions which may be moved without notice at Council Meetings 

(page 85) 
 • 16.1 - Members’ Questions at Ordinary Meetings of the Council (page 91) 
 • 17.6 - Time Limit for debate (page 93) 
 • 17.12 - Motions which may be moved during debate (page 95) 
  
3.6.2 The proposed changes to the Council Procedure Rules are set out at Appendix 8 

and the proposed formula for the order in which Notices of Motion shall be listed 
on the Council Summons from September 2012 is set out at Appendix 9. 

  
3.6.3 It is also proposed that there is an additional Council Procedure Rule on Personal 

Explanation (17.15) to provide a definition in the same way that there is for Point 
of Order (at 17.14) and for Right of Reply (at 17.11), each being occasions when 
a Member may speak again (17.7). The proposed wording is set out below: 

  
 “17.15 Personal Explanation 

A Member may, at any time, request to address the meeting to provide a personal 
explanation where he/she has made a mis-statement that is being quoted by a 
later speaker, or where another Member has misquoted or misunderstood what 
the Member had said, during the present debate.  The Lord Mayor will decide 
whether or not to permit the request and the Lord Mayor's ruling shall not be 
challenged.  The Member shall confine his/her personal explanation to correcting 
the misunderstanding.” 

  
  

Page 63



 

6 
 

  
  
  
3.7 Part 4 – Scrutiny Procedure Rules 
  
3.7.1 Scrutiny Procedure Rule 17 (1) (a) relates to Call-in and Urgency and Removal 

from the Call-in Process (“fast track”). The proposed change is consequential to 
the previous amendment to Rule 17 (1) (b) which recognised that urgency may be 
created by the effect of delay on individuals or organisations outside the Council. 
The amended wording is set out at Appendix 10. 

  
3.8 Part 5 - Planning Code of Conduct and Guidance Notes 
  
3.8.1 The following Planning Code of Conduct and the Guidance Notes have been 

updated to take account of the legislative changes introduced by the Localism Act 
2011, the revised Member’s Code of Conduct and to reflect current practice:- 

  
 • Code of Conduct for Council Members and Officers in respect of Planning 

Matters 
  
 • Guidance Note on General Procedures at Planning and Highways Committee 

meetings 
  
 • Guidance Note to Chairs on Disruption of Planning and Highways Committees 

by Members of the Public. 
  
3.8.2 A summary of the changes is attached at Appendix 11. The revised versions of 

the Code and Guidance Notes are attached at Appendices 12 to 14. 
  
3.9 Part 5 – Members’ Code of Conduct/Declaration of Interests 
  
3.9.1 The guidance that was issued to Members on declaring interests indicated that, in 

exceptional circumstances, a dispensation can be granted to participate in 
relevant business, even if a Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  

  
3.9.2 Approval is sought for the Monitoring Officer or his/her Deputy to be given 

authority to grant such dispensations in accordance with Section 33 of the 
Localism Act 2011. Further information on the process for applying for and 
granting a dispensation will be set out in revised guidance on declaring interests 
that will be circulated to Members and the additional wording is shown at 
Appendix 15. 

  
3.9.3 A minor change is also proposed to the Members’ Code of Conduct by the 

addition of the following words at the end of section 2.2.2: 
  
 “(Note: A request for a dispensation to participate in the business of the authority 

where a Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest must be submitted in 
writing to the Monitoring Officer in accordance with the guidance issued to 
Members on Declarations of Interests.)” 

  
3.10 Part 7 – Management Structure and Proper Officers 
  

Page 64



 

7 
 

3.10.1 Following the retirement of the Deputy Chief Executive, three minor changes are 
proposed to the Management Structure and Proper Officer designations. The 
proposed changes are set out at Appendix 16. 

  
4. Legal Implications 
  
4.1 Except where delegated by Council (see paragraph 2.2 above), variations to the 

Constitution may only be made by Full Council. 
  
5. Financial Implications 
  
5.1 There are no financial implications. 
  
6. Recommendations 
  
6.1 That the Council (a) considers adopting the changes to the following Parts of the 

Constitution, as set out in the report and appendices:- 
  
 (i) Part 2  - Articles 6, 11 and 12 
  
 (ii) Part 3 – Responsibility for Functions 
  
 (iii) Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules 
  
 (iv) Part 4 – Scrutiny Procedure Rules 
  
 (v) Part 5 - Code of Conduct for Council Members and Officers in respect of 

Planning Matters 
  
 (vi) Part 5 - Guidance Note on General Procedures at Planning and Highways 

Committee meetings 
  
 (vii) Part 5  - Guidance Note to Chairs on Disruption of Planning and Highways 

Committees by Members of the Public 
  
 (viii) Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol 
  
 (ix) Part 5 – Members’ Code of Conduct 
  
 (x) Part 7 - Management Structure and Proper Officers 
  
 (b) gives authority to the Monitoring Officer or his/her Deputy to grant 

dispensations in accordance with Section 33 of the Localism Act 2011, as 
detailed in Section 3.9 of the report, and Article 12 of the Constitution be 
amended accordingly. 

  
  
 Chief Executive 

 
 
 
 

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution (Revised July 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution (Revised July 2012) 16  

(v) liaise with other external organisations operating in the 
area, whether national, regional or local, to ensure that 
the interests of local people are enhanced by 
collaborative working. 

(b) Scrutiny.

Overview and Scrutiny Committees may: 

(i) review and scrutinise the decisions made by the Executive, 
its Committees, Area Committees, and officers when 
exercising executive functions, both in relation to individual 
decisions and over time; 

(ii) review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in 
relation to its policy objectives, performance targets and/or 
particular service areas; 

(iii) consider referrals from Members who are not members of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee of any matter 
relevant to the Committee’s functions, which is not an 
excluded matter. An excluded matter is defined as a local 
crime and disorder matter within the meaning of section 19 
of the Police and Justice Act 2006. A matter which 
consists of an allegation of systemic failure of an authority 
to discharge a function for which the authority is 
responsible may be referred to an Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, notwithstanding the fact that the allegation 
specifies matters which would otherwise be excluded.

(ivii) question members of the Executive, Area Committees and 
other bodies, and Chief Officers about their decisions and 
performance, whether generally in comparison with service 
plans and targets over a period of time, or in relation to 
particular decisions, initiatives or projects; 

(iv) make recommendations to the Council, the Executive, Area 
Committees and other appropriate bodies, arising from the 
outcome of the scrutiny process; 

(vi) review and scrutinise the performance of other public 
bodies in the area and invite reports from them by 
requesting them to address the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and local people about their activities and 
performance;

APPENDIX 1 

Page 67



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution (Revised July 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution (Revised July 2012) 17  

(vii) question and gather evidence from any person (with their 
consent); and 

(viii)  consider any request submitted by a Member of the 
Council under the Council's ‘Councillor Call for Action’ 
(CCFA) procedure, having regard to any guidance issued 
by the Monitoring Officer. If the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee decides to accept the CCFA referral, it must 
decide how it intends to take the matter forward and 
include the CCFA in its work programme. 

(c) Finance

 Overview and Scrutiny Committees will exercise overall 
responsibility for the finances made available to them. 

(d) Annual Report

 Overview and Scrutiny Committees will report annually to the 
Full Council on their workings and decide on future work 
programmes and amended working methods if appropriate. 

(e) Officers

 Overview and Scrutiny Committees may exercise overall 
responsibility for the work programme of any officers specifically 
employed to support their work. 

6.04 Proceedings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees

Overview and Scrutiny Committees will conduct their proceedings in 
accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules set out in 
Part 4 of this Constitution. 

APPENDIX 1 

Page 68



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 4 - Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Amended February 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 4 - Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Amended February 2012)  156 

6. Quorum

 The quorum for a Scrutiny Committee shall be three voting members, 
as set out for bodies in the Council Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this 
Constitution.

7. Chairs and Deputy Chairs of Scrutiny Committees 

 Chairs and Deputy Chairs of Scrutiny Committees/sub-groups will be 
drawn from among the Councillors sitting on the Committee/sub-group, 
and subject to this requirement the Committees/sub-group may appoint 
such a person as it considers appropriate as Chair. 

8. Work Programme 

 The Scrutiny Committee will be responsible for setting their own work 
programme and in doing so they shall take into account wishes of 
members on that Committee who are not members of the largest 
political group on the Council, as well as the statutory education 
representatives and any other co-optees where relevant.

 In developing their work programme, Scrutiny Committees should 
consult widely to ensure that a range of stakeholders, information and 
intelligence inform its work.  

9. Agenda Items

 Agenda items for the Scrutiny Committees shall be set either by 
members calling in particular decisions of the Executive or by the 
members of each Committee identifying issues which they wish to 
consider, for example through reviewing the Executive's monthly 
Forward Plan programme of forthcoming items of business.

 Any member of a Scrutiny Committee or sub-group (including the 
statutory education representatives) shall be entitled to give notice to 
the Monitoring Officer that he/she wishes an item relevant to the 
functions of the Committee or sub-group to be included on the agenda 
for the next available meeting of the Committee or sub-group.  On 
receipt of such a request the Monitoring Officer will ensure that it is 
included on the next available agenda.  The Committee shall then 
determine whether it wishes to pursue the item suggested by the 
member.

The Scrutiny Committees shall also respond, as soon as their work 
programme permits, to requests from the Council and if it considers it 
appropriate, the Cabinet, to review particular areas of Council activity.  
Where they do so, the Scrutiny Committee shall report their findings 

APPENDIX 2 

Page 69



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 4 - Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Amended February 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 4 - Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Amended February 2012)  157 

and any recommendations back to the Cabinet and/or the Council.  
The Council and/or the Cabinet shall normally consider the report of 
the Scrutiny Committees at the first available meeting. 

Community Assemblies shall have the right to draw matters to the 
attention of the Scrutiny Committees and ask them to consider putting 
the matter in their work programme. Community and voluntary groups 
shall be able to contact the Chairs and/or Deputies of the Scrutiny 
Committees to suggest issues to be considered by the Committees.

Any member who is not a member of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee may refer any matter relevant to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee’s functions to that Committee.  The Member should give 
notice to the Monitoring Officer. On receipt of such a request, the 
Monitoring Officer will ensure that it is included on the next available 
agenda. The Committee shall then determine whether it wishes to 
pursue the item suggested by the Member.

10. Policy Review and Development 

 Each Scrutiny Committee has a function to scrutinise policy outcomes 
and advise on policy development within its remit.  They are the key 
mechanism for enabling Councillors to represent the views of their 
constituents and other organisations to the Cabinet and Council and 
hence to ensure that these views are taken into account in policy 
development.

The Cabinet shall consult and involve the Scrutiny Committees in 
developing draft policies to propose to the Council. 

Scrutiny Committees will have access to the Cabinet’s forward plan 
and timetable for decisions and intentions for any consultation.  Even 
where an item is not the subject of detailed proposals from a Scrutiny 
Committee following a consideration of possible policy/service 
developments, the Committee will at least be able to respond in the 
course of the Cabinet’s consultation process in relation to any key 
decision.

The role of the Scrutiny Committees in relation to the development of 
the Council's budget and policy framework is set out in detail in the 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules. 

In relation to the development of the Council's approach to other 
matters not forming part of its Policy and Budget Framework, Scrutiny 
Committees or sub-groups may make proposals to the Cabinet for 

APPENDIX 2 

Page 70



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution (Revised July 2012) 
______________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution (Revised July 2012) 26  

Article 11 – Joint Arrangements 

11.01 Arrangements to Promote Well-being

The Council or the Executive, in order to promote the economic, social 
or environmental well-being of its area, may:- 

(a) enter into arrangements or agreements with any person or body; 

(b) co-operate with, or facilitate or co-ordinate the activities of, any 
person or body; and 

(c) exercise on behalf of that person or body any functions of that 
person or body. 

11.02 Joint Arrangements

(a) The Council may establish joint arrangements with one or more 
local authorities (including non-principal authorities) to exercise 
functions which are not executive functions in any of the 
participating authorities, or advise the Council. Such 
arrangements may involve the appointment of Joint Committees 
with these other local authorities. The appointment of individuals 
to Joint Committees which exercise non-executive functions is a 
function of the Full Council.

(b) The Executive may establish joint arrangements with one or 
more local authorities to exercise functions which are executive 
functions.  Such arrangements may involve the appointment of 
Joint Committees with these other local authorities. The 
appointment of individuals to such Joint Committees exercising 
executive functions is itself an executive function and, unless 
provided otherwise in any particular case by the Local 
Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) 
(England) Regulations 2012, only members of the Executive 
may be appointed to such Joint Committees.

(c) The Council may, with the agreement of the Executive, establish 
joint arrangements with one or more local authorities to exercise 
functions some but not all of which are executive functions. Such 
arrangements may involve the appointment of Joint Committees 
with these other local authorities.  Appointments of individuals to 
a Joint Committee exercising both executive and non-executive 

APPENDIX 3

Page 71



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution (Revised July 2012) 
______________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution (Revised July 2012) 27  

functions will be made by Full Council with the agreement of the 
Executive.

(c)(d) The Council nominates representatives to the South Yorkshire 
Joint Authorities and Joint Committees.

(d)(e) The Council and the Executive must maintain a list and details of 
the joint arrangements they have established. 

11.03 Procedure for Joint Committees

The Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this 
Constitution apply to Joint Committees. 

If all the members of a Joint Committee are Executive Members in 
each of the participating authorities then its Access to Information 
regime is the same as that applied to the Executive. 

If the Joint Committee contains Members who are not Executive 
Members of any participating authority then the Access to Information 
regime in Part VA Local Government Act 1972 will apply. 

11.04 Delegation to and from other Local Authorities 

(a) The Council may delegate non-executive functions to another 
local authority or, in certain circumstances, the Executive of 
another local authority. 

(b) Arrangements can only be made for a non-executive function to 
be carried out by the Executive of another local authority if that 
function is the responsibility of that other authority’s Executive. 

(c) The Executive may delegate executive functions to another local 
authority or the Executive of another local authority in certain 
circumstances. 

(d) The decision whether or not to accept such a delegation from 
another local authority shall be reserved to the Full Council in 
respect of non-executive functions and to the Leader in respect 
of executive functions. 

11.05 Contracting Out

Formatted: Bullets and
Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and
Numbering

APPENDIX 3

Page 72



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution (Revised July 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution (Revised July 2012) 29  

responsibility for all staff. 

Providing advice
The Head of the Paid Service will provide professional advice to all 
Members involved in the decision-making process, both executive and 
non-executive. 

Service strategies
The Head of the Paid Service will advise and assist in formulating 
service policies and programmes which are affordable and effective 
and make the best use of available resources in achieving Council 
priorities;

Emergency and urgency powers
The Head of the Paid Service, or in his/her absence his/her designated 
deputy, has the power to act in cases of emergency or urgency to 
discharge all the non-executive functions delegated to other Officers in 
consultation, where possible, with the Leader or in the Leader’s 
absence his/her designated deputy. 

The power of the Head of the Paid Service to discharge executive 
functions in cases of emergency or urgency shall be provided for in the 
Leader’s Scheme of Delegation of Executive Functions from time to 
time in force and if not so provided for the Head of the Paid Service, or 
in his/her absence his/her designated deputy, shall be deemed to have 
the power to exercise all the Council’s executive functions in such 
circumstances.

Restrictions on functions
The Head of the Paid Service may not be the Monitoring Officer but 
may hold the post of Chief Finance Officer if a qualified accountant. 

12.03 Functions of the Monitoring Officer

(a) Maintaining the Constitution 
The Monitoring Officer will maintain an up-to-date version of the 
Constitution and will ensure that it is widely available for consultation 
by Councillors, officers and the public. 

(b) Ensuring lawfulness and fairness of decision making 
After consulting with the Head of the Paid Service, Director of Legal 
Services and Chief Finance Officer, the Monitoring Officer will report to 
the Full Council in relation to a non-executive function, if he or she 
considers that any proposal, decision or omission would give rise to 
unlawfulness or to maladministration. The Monitoring Officer will report 
to the Executive in relation to an executive function, if he or she 
considers that any proposal, decision or omission would give rise to 

APPENDIX 4

Page 73



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution (Revised July 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution (Revised July 2012) 30  

unlawfulness and may report if he or she considers that any proposal, 
decision, or omission would give rise to maladministration.  Such a 
report will have the effect of stopping the proposal or decision being 
implemented until the report has been considered. 

 (c) Unlawfulness, maladministration or injustice by the Executive
Where a proposal, decision or omission that has led to unlawfulness, 
maladministration or injustice relates to an executive matter, the 
Monitoring Officer will report to the Executive and the Executive must, 
within 21 days of receiving the report, consider it at a meeting of the 
Executive. The Executive must ensure that no further action is taken in 
respect of the proposal or decision until the report has been 
considered.  As soon as practicable after considering the Monitoring 
Officer’s report, the Executive shall prepare a report that will include: 

i) what action the Executive has taken in response to the report; 

ii) what action the Executive proposes to take in response to the 
report and when it proposes to take that action; and 

iii) the reasons for taking that action, or the reasons for not taking 
any action; 

and as soon as practicable after the Executive has prepared this report 
it shall arrange for a copy of the report to be circulated to all Members 
of the Council and the Monitoring Officer. 

(d) Unlawfulness, maladministration or injustice by the Council
Where the proposal, decision or omission that has led to unlawfulness, 
maladministration or injustice relates to a non-executive matter, the 
Council must, within 21 days of receiving it, consider the report at a 
meeting of the Council. The Council must ensure that no further action 
is taken in respect of the proposal or decision until the report has been 
considered.

(e) Supporting the Standards Committee
The Monitoring Officer will contribute to the promotion and 
maintenance of high standards of conduct through provision of support 
to the Standards Committee.

(e) Members’ Conduct

The Monitoring Officer will contribute to supporting the statuary duty to promote and 
maintain high standards of conduct for its Elected Members under the Localism Act 
2011 by maintaining the Members’ Code of Conduct and providing a process for 
investigating complaints under the Code. 

The Monitoring Officer will also:

APPENDIX 4

Page 74



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution (Revised July 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution (Revised July 2012) 31  

(a) work closely with the Independent Person and the Standards Committee in 
dealing with issues relating to Members’ conduct.

(b) submit a bi-annual report to Council in relation to alleged breaches of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct.

(c) provide advice to the Council and individual members in relation to standards 
issues.

(d) maintain a statutory register of Members’ interests.

(f) Receiving reports
The Monitoring Officer will receive and act on reports made by 
Standards for England ethical standards officers and decisions of the 
case tribunals.

(g) Conducting investigations
The Monitoring Officer will conduct investigations into matters referred 
by ethical standards officers or by the Standards Committee and make 
reports or recommendations in respect of them to the Standards 
Committee.

(fh) Proper officer for access to information 
The Monitoring Officer will ensure that decisions, together with the 
reasons for those decisions and relevant officer reports and 
background papers are made publicly available as soon as possible. 

(gi) Advising whether executive decisions are within the Budget and 
Policy Framework 
The Monitoring Officer will advise whether decisions of the Executive 
are in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework. 

(h) Providing advice 
The Monitoring Officer will provide advice to all Councillors on the 
scope of powers and authority to take decisions, maladministration, 
financial impropriety, probity and Budget and Policy Framework issues. 

(i) Restrictions on posts 
The Monitoring Officer cannot be the Chief Finance Officer or the Head 
of the Paid Service.

12.04 Functions of the Chief Finance Officer 

(a) Ensuring lawfulness and financial prudence of decision 
making

APPENDIX 4

Page 75



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 
________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 258 

MONITORING OFFICER PROTOCOL  

1.  STATUTORY RESPONSIBILITIES

1.1 The Monitoring Officer is a statutory appointment pursuant to Section 5 of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 This Protocol sets out the Monitoring Officer's 
role in relating to the statutory duty to promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct under the Localism Act 2012. 

. This Protocol provides some general information on how the statutory functions
under Part III Local Government Act 2000 (the Act) in relation to Conduct of 
Local Authority Members will be discharged.

1.2 The role of the Monitoring Officer rests with the Deputy Chief ExecutiveDirector of 
Legal Services.  The Monitoring Officer may nominate a member of staff to act as 
Deputy Monitoring Officer while absent or ill and has appointed the Deputy
Directors of Legal Services as Deputy Monitoring Officer.  The Deputiesy will act 
only in the absence of the Monitoring Officer if urgent action is required that cannot 
await his or her return. 

1.3  This Protocol should be read in conjunction with Articles 12 and 15 which sets out 
all Monitoring Officer functions. It should also be read in conjunction with the 
procedure for investigating standard complaints.  A summary list of the statutory 
functions of the Monitoring Officer under the Act appears in the attached Schedule. 

2. WORKING ARRANGEMENTS 

2.1 It is vital that Members and Officers work with the Monitoring Officer and his or her 
staff, to effectively discharge the Council business, statutory responsibilities and 
promote the corporate health of the Council.  

2.2 The Monitoring Officer’s duties will be discharged in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution, legislative requirements and relevant Government guidance.  The 
Monitoring Officer’s ability to discharge these duties and responsibilities will 
depend, to a large extent, on Members and Officers:- 

(a) complying with the law (including any relevant Codes of Conduct); 

(b) complying with any general guidance, codes or protocols issued from time to 
time, by the Standards Committee and the Monitoring Officer; 

(c) making lawful and proportionate decisions;: and

(d) generally, not taking action that would bring the Council, their offices or 
professions into disrepute;.

(e) seeking early advice on issues relating to constitutional or ethical matters; 

APPENDIX 5

Page 76



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 
________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 259 

(f) raising alerts to issues that may become of concern to the Authority about 
legal powers to do something or not, ethical standards, probity, propriety, 
procedural or other constitutional issues that are likely to (or do) arise; and.

(g) Reporting to the Monitoring Officer at the earliest opportunity convictions of 
criminal offences which might amount to a breach of the Members Code of 
Conduct.

2.3 The Monitoring Officer will: 

2.3.1 Have advance notice and access to information (including agendas, minutes, 
reports and related papers) of all relevant meetings of the Authority, 
(including meetings at which Officer delegated decisions are taken) at which 
a binding decision may be made (including meetings where there may be a 
failure to take a decision which should be taken); 

2.3.2 Have the right to attend (and be heard) any meeting of the Authority 
(including meetings at which Officer delegated decisions are taken) before 
any binding decision is taken (including a meeting where there may be failure 
to take a decision where one should be taken). 

2.3.3  Have advance notice of Executive Management Team meetings, agendas, 
reports and the right to attend and speak at those meetings.  Meet regularly 
with the Head of Paid Service and the Section 151 Officer to consider and 
recommend action in connection with corporate Governance issues, matters 
of concern regarding legal, ethical standards probity, procedural, 
constitutional issues that are likely and do arise; 

2.3.4 In undertaking or arranging investigations will have unqualified access to any 
information held by the Council and to any Officer who can assist in the 
discharge of the functions. 

2.3.5 Report to Council as necessary on resources  

3. RELATIONSHIPS 

3.1 The Monitoring Officer will develop effective working liaison and relationship to 
ensuring effective and efficient discharge of Council business with: 

(a)   The Lord Mayor, Chairs of Cabinet, Scrutiny, Regulatory, Standards 
Committees of the Council; and 

(b) Standards Board for England, the The District Auditor and the Local 
Government Ombudsman or their successors; 

APPENDIX 5

Page 77



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 
________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 260 

3.2 Refer any breaches to, or give and receive any relevant information, whether 
confidential or otherwise, (through appropriate protocols, if necessary), to the 
bodies in 3.1 (b).

APPENDIX 5

Page 78



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 
________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 261 

4 STANDARDS MATTERS

4.1 The Monitoring Officer shall:

4.1.1 give informal advice and undertake relevant enquiries into allegations of 
misconduct (in the absence of a written complaint being received by the 
Standards Committee);

4.1.2upon receipt of written allegations to follow the ‘Initial Assessment of Standard 
Complaints’ at section 5 

4.1.3ensure effective communication between his or her office and clerks to parish 
councils;

4.1.4maintain and update relevant statutory registers for the declaration of 
members interests, gifts and hospitality

4.1.5 report annually to the Standards Committee regarding whether the 
arrangements set out in the Protocol have been complied with and will 
include any proposals for amendments in the light of any issues that have 
arisen during the year.

5.4. PROCEDURE FOR DEALING WITH STANDARDS COMPLAINTS
INITIAL ASSESSMENT OF STANDARDS COMPLAINTS

The role of the Monitoring Officer, or Deputy Monitoring Officer Officer on the 
discharge of functions in relation to the initial assessment and review of 
allegationsprocedure for dealing with Standards complaints that a member of the 
Authority has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct, will be as follows: 

Complaints

1 Allegations of breaches of the Code of Conduct should be made in writing to the 
Monitoring Officer by any Elected Member, Officer, and partner of the Council or 
resident of Sheffield.

2 The Monitoring Officer will decide if this allegation is a potential breach of the code. 
If the matter complained of does not constitute a potential breach of the code the 
MO will inform the complainant.

3 If the Monitoring Officer believes there may be a potential breach of the Code they 
may take the following actions in consultation with the Independent Person without 
determining if an actual breach has taken place:-

  Take such steps as they think appropriate to prevent a future breach of the 
Code including training, guidance, introducing or amending 

APPENDIX 5

Page 79



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 
________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 262 

policies/protocols.

  Ask the Whips to address the issue raised within their political parties or with 
an individual Member.

  Mediate between the parties involved to resolve the issues.

  Obtain further information from the complainant or other relevant 
individual/body.

4 The Monitoring Officer, after taking the above steps as appropriate, will decide, in 
consultation with the Independent Person, if the matter should be investigated.

5 The Monitoring Officer will take into account when deciding if the matter should be 
investigated :-

  The seriousness of the allegation.

  The effectiveness of the remedies available.

  If a significant amount of time has elapsed since the events which are the 
subject of the complaint.

  The benefits of an independent consideration of the allegation.

  If the allegation relates to a cultural or recurring issue relating to standards 
within the Council.

  If the matter should be dealt with by some other method, e.g. police 
investigation.

  If complaints have been made about the Member relating to similar issues in 
the past.

  The impact on the complainant or reputation to the Council caused by the 
conduct.

  If the complaint appears to be trivial or vexatious or is part of a series of 
complaints from the complainant.

  The conduct occurred during political debate or could be regarded as a 
political expression of views or opinion

6 It is expected that only a minority of potential breaches will be referred to the 
Standard Committee. 

APPENDIX 5

Page 80



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 
________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 263 

Procedure for Investigations

7. If the matter is to be investigated, the complainant and subject of the complaint will 
be informed by the Monitoring Officer.  The Elected Member will be given full details 
of the allegation and have 14 days to submit a response, witness statements and 
any relevant information.  The Member will be asked to express a preference for a 
written or oral hearing should the matter be referred to the Standards Committee.

8. The Monitoring Officer will supply the complainant with copies of any documents 
produced in accordance with paragraph 3 or 7 above .The complainant may provide 
a written response and further evidence if they choose to do so.  They must 
respond within 14 days of receipt of the information. The Monitoring Officer or 
Independent Person may advise and assist either party with the written information 
to be supplied.

9. The Independent Person and the Monitoring Officer will consider the complaint and 
responses to decide if any further information should be obtained by the Monitoring 
Officer or if an internal or independent investigation is required on all or any aspect 
of the complaint. 

10. The Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Independent Person shall decide 
when the investigation process set out in 7 to 9 above is complete and if evidence 
of a breach is found. If no evidence is found no further action will be taken and the 
Monitoring Officer will inform the complainant.

11. Where the investigation finds evidence of failure to comply with the Code of 
Conduct, the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person, may 
attempt a local resolution, avoiding the necessity of a hearing by identifying other 
appropriate remedial action. It would only be appropriate for the MO to agree a local 
resolution after consultation with the Independent Person and subject to a summary 
report for information being submitted to the Standards Committee.

Standards Committee

12. If evidence of a breach is found on investigation and the matter cannot be resolved, 
the MO will refer the matter to the Standards Committee. The Standards Committee 
will meet to consider the allegation and make clear findings as to the facts on the 
matter and whether, in its opinion, a breach of the Code of Conduct has occurred. 
This decision will be made upon the papers submitted if the Member agrees. If the 
member does not agree to a paper consideration he/she will be asked to attend the 
Standards Committee to give oral representations and present their evidence. The 
Member may, with the consent of the Committee obtained prior to the meeting, 
present witnesses.

The Standards Committee will give reasons for its decision. The Committee will 
meet in public unless the Chair decides all or some of the meeting should be held in 

APPENDIX 5

Page 81



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 
________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 264 

private subject to the Access to Information requirements. The MO will attend the 
meeting and can provide advice to the Committee.

13. The Committee shall decide if a breach of the Code has taken place and what 
sanction, if any, it should recommend.

14. The MO will inform the complainant and the Member of the outcome in writing 
within 7 days.

15. The findings and decision of the Standards Committee will be publicly available on 
the Council’s website and copies will be supplied to the MO, Chief Executive and 
Member concerned, Leaders of the political party concerned, the Whips and the 
complainant.

Remedies

16. If the Standards Committee finds a breach of the Code has occurred they may make 
one of the following recommendations and may specify to whom they wish them to 
be directed:

 Recommending to the member’s Group Leader (or in the case of un-grouped 
members, recommend to Council or to Committees) that he/she be removed from 
any or all Committees or Sub-Committees of the Council or Shadow Portfolio 
responsibilities

 Recommending to the Leader of the Council that the member be removed from 
the Cabinet, or removed from particular Portfolio responsibilities;

 Instructing the Monitoring Officer to arrange training for the member;

 That policies/procedures are amended;

 That a briefing/information note be issued;

 That an apology be given;

 That the member is censured in writing and a copy of the letter is published on
the Council’s website. 

Appeals

17. It is not intended that an Appeal procedure would be used as a matter of course. If, 
however, the Standards Committee Chair and Monitoring Officer agree that the 
nature of the decision may have a significant impact on the member against whom 
findings are made or has important implications for the Council as a whole, they may 
allow an appeal to the Standards Committee of another authority with whom a 

APPENDIX 5

Page 82



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 
________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 265 

reciprocal agreement exists. If no suitable Committee is available the appeal will be 
dealt with by the Chief Executive.

Reports

18. A bi-annual report will be presented to Members of the Standards Committee on the 
complaints received and how they were dealt with. An annual report will be prepared 
for Council in relation to all Standards Complaints.

5.1 Receipt of Allegations

5.1.1 The Monitoring Officer shall set up arrangements within the Authority to 
secure that any allegation made in writing that a member of the Authority has 
or may have failed to comply with the Authority’s Code of Conduct is referred 
to him/her immediately upon receipt by the Authority.

5.1.2 The Monitoring Officer shall maintain a register of such allegations to ensure 
that the Authority can comply with its obligations under the relevant 
legislation.

5.1.3 Complaints shall only be entertained where they are signed by the 
complainant, but the Monitoring Officer is authorised to maintain the 
confidentiality of the identity of the complainant where and for so long as in 
his /her opinion that would be in the public interest.

APPENDIX 5

Page 83



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 
________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 266 

5.2 Notification of Receipt of Allegations

5.2.1 All relevant allegations must be assessed by the Assessment Sub-
Committee, so the Monitoring Officer has no authority to deal with an 
allegation which appears to be an allegation of failure by a relevant member 
to observe the Code of Conduct other than by reporting it to the Assessment
Sub-Committee. The Monitoring Officer shall therefore determine whether 
the allegation appears to be a substantive allegation of Member misconduct.
Where it appears not to be, he or she shall ensure that the matter is dealt 
with under a more appropriate procedure, for example where it is really a 
request for service from the Authority, a statement of policy disagreement, a 
legal claim against the Authority or a complaint against an officer of the 
Authority.

5.2.2 Following receipt of the allegation, and where the allegation does appear to 
be a complaint of misconduct against a relevant member, the Monitoring 
Officer will promptly, and in any case in advance of the relevant meeting:

(i) Acknowledge to the complainant receipt of the allegation and confirm 
that the allegation will be assessed by the Assessment Sub-
Committee at its next convenient meeting;

(ii) Confirm that the complaint and a summary of the allegations will be 
disclosed to the subject Member, unless the complainant withholds 
permission to do so, in writing, within 5 days of receipt of the 
acknowledgement;

(iii)Subject to (ii) notify the member against whom the allegation is made of 
receipt of the complaint, together with a written summary of the 
allegation, and state that the allegation will be assessed at the next 
convenient meeting of the Assessment Sub-Committee. However,
where the Monitoring Officer is of the opinion that such notification
would be contrary to the public interest or would prejudice any 
person’s ability to investigate the allegation, he or she shall consult 
the Chair of the Assessment Sub-Committee, or in his absence the 
Chair of the Standards Committee, and may then decide that no 
such advance notification shall be given;

(iv) (iv) Collect such information as is readily available and would assist 
the Assessment Sub-Committee in its function of assessing the 
allegation;

(v)Seek local resolution of the matter where practicable, in accordance with 
Paragraph 5.3 below;

(vi) Place a report, including a copy of the allegation, such readily 
available information and his or her recommendation as to whether 

APPENDIX 5

Page 84



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 
________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 267 

the allegation discloses an apparent failure to observe the Code of 
Conduct, on the agenda for the next convenient meeting of the 
Assessment Sub-Committee.

5.3 Local Resolution

5.3.1 Local resolution is not an alternative to reporting the allegation to the 
Assessment Sub-Committee, but can avoid the necessity of a formal local 
investigation.

5.3.2 Where the Monitoring Officer is of the opinion that there is the potential for 
local resolution, he or she may depending on the circumstances, approach 
the member against whom the allegation has been made and ask whether 
he or she is prepared to acknowledge that their conduct was inappropriate, 
and whether he or she would be prepared to offer an apology or undertake 
other appropriate remedial action. With the consent of the member 
concerned, the Monitoring Officer may then approach the complainant and 
ask whether the complainant is satisfied by such apology or other remedial 
action. The Monitoring Officer should then report to the Assessment Sub-
Committee as required, and at the same time report the response of the 
member concerned and of the complainant. The idea is that, where the 
member has acknowledged that his or her conduct was inappropriate, and 
particularly where the complainant is satisfied with the proffered apology or 
remedial action, the Assessment Sub-Committee might take that into 
account when considering whether the matter merits investigation.

5.4 Review of Decisions not to Investigate

5.4.1 Where the Assessment Sub-Committee has decided that no action be taken 
on a particular matter, the Monitoring Officer shall promptly advise the 
complainant of the decision, and the complainant may then within 30 days of 
receipt of such notification request that the Review Sub-Committee review 
that decision.

5.4.2 Whilst the review shall normally be a review of the reasonableness of the
original decision rather than a reconsideration, the Monitoring Officer shall 
report to the Review Sub-Committee the information which was provided to 
the Assessment Sub-Committee in respect of the matter, the summary of the 
Assessment Sub-Committee and any additional relevant information which 
has become available prior to the meeting of the Review Sub-Committee.

5.5 Local Investigation

5.5.1 It is recognised that the Monitoring Officer or Deputy will not personally 
conduct a formal local investigation.

5.5.2 It will be for the Monitoring Officer or Deputy, where appropriate, after 
consultation with the Chair of the Standards Committee or the Chair of the 

APPENDIX 5

Page 85



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 
________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 268 

Assessment Sub-Committee, to determine who to instruct to conduct a 
formal local investigation and this may include another senior officer of the 
Authority, a senior officer of another authority or an appropriately 
experienced consultant.

APPENDIX 5

Page 86



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 
________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (January 2011) 269 

SCHEDULE  

1.  Report on contraventions or likely 
contraventions of any enactment or rule 
of law

Section 5 Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989 

2.  Report on any maladministration or 
injustice where Ombudsman has 
carried out an investigation

Section 5 Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989 

3.  Appointment of Deputy Section 5 Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989 

4.  Report on resources Section 5 Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989 

5.  Maintain register of Members Interests 
and gifts and hospitality 

Local Government Act 2000 section 81; and 
Members Code of Conduct Order 
2007.Localism Act 2011

6. Refer relevant matters to Standards 
Committee for initial assessment, 
review and hearing. 

Standards Committee (England) 
Regulations 2008

7. Investigate and report on any 
misconduct in compliance with 
Regulations

Local Government Act Part III section 66

8. Advice to members on interpretation of 
Code

Members Code of Conduct Order 2007 

9. Support to Standards Board Local Government Act Part III

10. Perform Ethical framework functions in 
relation to Parish Councils

Local Government Act Part III section 83

11.6.  Receive reports of all whistleblowing 
allegations of misconduct 

Whistleblowing Code of ConductPolicy and 
Procedure (in the Officers’ Code of 
Conduct)

12.7  Proper Officer Access to information  Constitution 12.03 (h) 

13.8  Advise on vires, maladministration, 
impropriety, probity 

Constitution 12.03 (j) 

14.9  Advise whether executive decisions 
are within policy framework 

Constitution 12.03 (i) 

APPENDIX 5

Page 87



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012) 
________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012)  48 

3.3 NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS 

3.3.1 FUNCTIONS RESERVED TO FULL COUNCIL

The functions to be exercised only by the Full Council, whether as a matter of 
law, or of local determination are those set out in Article 4.02 (Functions of the 
Full Council). 

3.3.2 COUNCIL FUNCTIONS WHICH MAY BE DELEGATED TO 
COMMITTEES OR OFFICERS  

These are local authority functions which by law cannot be the responsibility 
of the Executive.  

The numbering in the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) 
(England) Regulations 2000 (as amended) is used in the table below to ease 
reference.  Subject to the urgency provisions in paragraph 3.5.3, where a 
function referred to in the table is exercisable by both a Committee or Sub-
Committee and an Officer, the Officer may only exercise the function to the 
extent that it is not covered within the terms of reference of the Committee or 
Sub-committee. 

A. Functions relating to town and 
country planning and development 
control

1-4 Removed by the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (Amendment) (no 2) 
(England) 2005 

5. Power to determine application for 
planning permission. 

Sections 70(1)(a) and (b) and 72 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 (c. 8). 

6. Power to determine applications to 
develop land without compliance with 
conditions previously attached. 

Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 

7. Power to grant planning permission for 
development already carried out. 

Section 73A of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 

8. Power to decline to determine 
application for planning permission. 

Section 70A of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 

9. Duties relating to the making of 
determinations of planning applications. 

Sections 69, 76 and 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and Articles 8, 10 to 
13, 15 to 22 and 25 and 26 of the Town and 
Country Planning (General Development 
Procedure) Order 1995 (S.I. 1995/419) and 
directions made thereunder. 

10. Power to determine application for 
planning permission made by a local 
authority, alone or jointly with another 
person. 

Section 316 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 and the Town and Country Planning 
General Regulations 1992 (S.I. 1992/1492). 

11. Power to make determinations, give 
approvals and agree certain other matters 
relating to the exercise of permitted 
development rights. 

Parts 6, 7, 11, 17, 19, 20, 21 to 24, 26, 30 and 
31 of Schedule 2 to the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) 
Order 1995 (S.I. 1995/418). 

12. Power to enter into agreement 
regulating development or use of land. 

Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 

APPENDIX 6

Page 88



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012) 
________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012)  49 

13. Power to issue a certificate of existing 
or proposed lawful use or development. 

Sections 191(4) and 192(2) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 

14. Power to serve a completion notice. Section 94(2) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 

15. Power to grant consent for the display 
of advertisements. 

Section 220 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 and the Town and Country Planning 
(Control of Advertisements) Regulations 1992 
(S.I. 1992/666). 

16. Power to authorise entry onto land. Section 196A of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 

17. Power to require the discontinuance of 
a use of land. 

Section 102 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 

18. Power to serve a planning 
contravention notice, breach of condition 
notice or stop notice. 

Sections 171C, 187A and 183(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990. 

18A. Power to issue a temporary stop 
notice. 

Section 171E of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 

19. Power to issue an enforcement notice. Section 172 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 

20. Power to apply for an injunction 
restraining a breach of planning control. 

Section 187B of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 

21. Power to determine applications for 
hazardous substances consent, and 
related powers. 

Sections 9(1) and 10 of the Planning 
(Hazardous Substances) Act 1990. 

22. Duty to determine conditions to which 
old mining permissions, relevant planning 
permissions relating to dormant sites or 
active Phase I or II sites, or mineral 
permissions relating to mining sites, as the 
case may be, are to be subject. 

Paragraph 2(6)(a) of Schedule 2 to the 
Planning and Compensation Act 1991 (c. 34), 
paragraph 9(6) of Schedule 13 to the 
Environment Act 1995 (c. 25) and paragraph 
6(5) of Schedule 14 to that Act. 

23. Power to require proper maintenance 
of land. 

Section 215(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 

24. Power to determine application for 
listed building consent, and related powers. 

Sections 16(1) and (2), 17 and 33(1) of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990 (c.9) 

25. Power to determine applications for 
conservation area consent. 

Section 16(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (c.9), as 
applied by section 74(3) of that Act. 

26. Duties relating to applications for listed 
building consent and conservation area 
consent.

Sections 13(1) and 14(1) and (4) of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990 (c.9) and [regulations 3 to 6 
and 13 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Regulations 1990 (S.I. 
1990/1519) and paragraphs 8, 15 and 26 of 
Department of the Environment, Transport and 
the Regions Circular 01/01 

27. Power to serve a building preservation 
notice, and related powers. 

Sections 3(1) and 4(1) of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
(c.9) 

28. Power to issue enforcement notice in 
relation to demolition of listed building in 
conservation area.  

Section 38 of the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (c.9) 

29. Powers to acquire a listed building in 
need of repair and to serve a repairs 
notice. 

Sections 47 and 48 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
(c.9) 

30. Power to apply for an injunction in Section 44A of the Planning (Listed Buildings 

APPENDIX 6

Page 89



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012) 
________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012)  50 

relation to a listed building. and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (c.9) 

30A.Power to authorise stopping up or 
diversion of highway. 

Section 247 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (c.8) 

31. Power to execute urgent works. Section 54 of the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (c.9) 

B. Licensing and registration functions 
(in so far as not covered by any other 
paragraph of this table)

1. Power to issue licences authorising the 
use of land as a caravan site (“site 
licences”). 

Section 3(3) of the Caravan Sites and Control 
of Development Act 1960 (c. 62). 

2. Power to license the use of moveable 
dwellings and camping sites. 

Section 269(1) of the Public Health Act 1936 
(c.49). 

3. Power to license hackney carriages and 
private hire vehicles. 

(a) as to hackney carriages, the Town Police 
Clauses Act 1847 (10 & 11 Vict. c. 89), as 
extended by section 171 of the Public Health 
Act 1875 (38 & 39 Vict. c. 55), and section 15 of 
the Transport Act 1985 (c. 67); and sections 47, 
57, 58, 60 and 79 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 (c. 57); 

(b) as to private hire vehicles, sections 48, 57, 
58, 60 and 79 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

4. Power to license drivers of hackney 
carriages and private hire vehicles. 

Sections 51, 53, 54, 59, 61 and 79 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976. 

5. Power to license operators of hackney 
carriages and private hire vehicles. 

Sections 55 to 58, 62 and 79 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976. 

6. Power to register pool promoters. Part 8 and 9 of the Section 12 Schedule 2 to 
the Betting, Gaming and Lotteries Act 1963 (c. 
2) as saved for certain purposes by article 
3(3)(c) of the Gambling Act Order.Gambling Act 
2005

7. Power to grant track betting licences. Section 153, 154 and 164 of Part 8 of the 
Gambling Act 2005Schedule 3 to the Betting, 
Gaming and Lotteries Act 1963 as saved for 
certain purposes by article 3(3)(d) and (4) of the
Gambling Act Order.

8. Power to license inter-track betting 
schemes. 

Gambling Act 2005Schedules 5ZA to the 
Betting, Gaming and Lotteries Act 1963 as 
saved for certain purposes by article 3(3)(e) of 
the Gambling Act Order.

9. Power to grant permits in respect of 
premises with amusement machines. 

Section 274 and Schedule 12, Section 283 and 
Schedule 13, Section 289 and Schedule 14 and 
Part 10 of the Gambling Act 2005Schedule 9 to 
the Gaming Act 1968 (c. 65)  as saved for 
certain purposes by article 4(2)(l) and (m) of the 
Gambling Act Order.

10. Power to register societies wishing to 
promote lotteries. 

Section 258, Schedule 11 Parts 1 to 7 of the 
Gambling Act 2005Schedule 1 to the Lotteries 
and Amusements Act 1976 (c. 32) as saved for 
certain purposes by article 5(2)(a) and (3) of the 
Gambling Act Order.

11. Power to grant permits in respect of 
premises where amusements with prizes 

Section 247 and Schedule 10 and Part 10 of 
the Gambling Act 2005Schedule 3 to the 

Formatted: Highlight

APPENDIX 6

Page 90



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012) 
________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012)  51 

are provided. Lotteries and Amusements Act 1976 as saved 
for certain purposes by article 5(2)(d) and (5) of 
the Gambling Act Order].

12. Power to issue cinema and cinema 
club licences. 

Section 1 of the Cinema Act 1985 (c. 13). 

13. Power to issue theatre licences. Sections 12 to 14 of the Theatres Act 1968 (c. 
54).

14. Power to issue entertainments 
licences. 

Section 12 of the Children and Young Persons 
Act 1933 (c. 12), section 52 of, and Schedule 
12 to, the London Government Act 1963 (c. 33),
section 79 of the Licensing Act 1964 (c. 26),
sections 1 to 5 and 7 of, and Parts I and II of 
the Schedule to, the Private Places of 
Entertainment (Licensing) Act 1967 (c. 19) and 
Part I of, and Schedules 1 and 2 to, the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982 (c. 30).Licensing Act 2003

14A. Functions relating to licensing. Sections 5 to 8 of the Licensing Act 2003 (c. 
17).

14AA Duty to comply with requirement to 
provide information to Gambling 
Commission. 

Section 29 of the 2005 Act 

14AB Functions relating to exchange of 
information. 

Section 30 of the 2005 Act. 

14AC Functions relating to occasional use 
notices.

Section 39 of the 2005 Act. 

14B Power to resolve not to issue a casino 
premises licence 

Section 166 of the 2005 Act.  

14C. Power to designate officer of a 
licensing authority as an authorised person 
for a purpose relating to premises. 

Section 304 of the 2005 Act. 

14CA Power to make order disapplying 
section 279 or 282(1) of the 2005 Act in 
relation to specified premises. 

Section 284 of the 2005 Act. 

14D. Power to institute criminal 
proceedings  

Section 346 of the 2005 Act. 

14E. Power to exchange information Section 350 of the 2005 Act. 

14F. Functions relating to the 
determination of fees for premises 
licences. 

The Gambling (Premises Licence Fees) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 2007 (S.I. 
2007/479). 

14G Functions relating to the registration 
and regulation of small society lotteries. 

Part 5 of Schedule 11 to the 2005 Act. 

15. Power to license sex shops and, sex 
cinemas and sexual entertainment 
venues..

The Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982, section 2 and Schedule 
3. 

16. Power to license performances of 
hypnotism. 

The Hypnotism Act 1952 (c. 46). 

17. Power to license premises for 
acupuncture, tattooing, ear-piercing and 
electrolysis. 

Sections 13 to 17 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. 

18. Power to license pleasure boats and 
pleasure vessels. 

Section 94 of the Public Health Acts 
Amendment Act 1907 (c. 53). 

19. Power to register door staff. – only 
applies to London Boroughs

Paragraphs 1(2) and 9 of Schedule 12 to the 
London Government Act 1963 (c. 33) and Part 
V of the London Local Authorities Act 1995 (c. 
x).

APPENDIX 6

Page 91



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012) 
________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012)  52 

20. Power to license market and street 
trading. 

Part III of, and Schedule 4 to, the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982, Part III of the London Local Authorities 
Act 1990 (c. vii) and section 6 of the London
Local Authorities Act 1994 (c. xii).

21. Power to license night cafes and take-
away food shops. – only applies to London 
Boroughs

Section 2 of the Late Night Refreshment 
Houses Act 1969 (c. 53), Part II of the London 
Local Authorities Act 1990 and section 5 of the 
London Local Authorities Act 1994.

22. Duty to keep list of persons entitled to 
sell non-medicinal poisons. 

Sections 3(1)(b)(ii), 5, 6 and 11 of the Poisons 
Act 1972 (c. 66). 

23. Power to license dealers in game and 
the killing and selling of game. 

Regulatory Reform (Game) Order 2007/2007 
Sections 5, 6,17, 18 and 21 to 23 of the Game
Act 1831 (c. 32); sections 2 to 16 of the Game
Licensing Act 1860 (c. 90), section 4 of the 
Customs and Inland Revenue Act 1883 (c. 10),
sections 12(3) and 27 of the Local Government 
Act 1874 (c. 73), and section 213 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (c. 70).

24. Power of register and license premises 
for the preparation of food. 

Section 19 of the Food Safety Act 1990 (c. 16). 

25. Power to license scrap yards. Section 1 of the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 1964 
(c. 69). 

26. Power to issue, amend or replace 
safety certificates (whether general or 
special) for sports grounds. 

The Safety of Sports Grounds Act 1975 (c. 52). 

27. Power to issue, cancel, amend or 
replace safety certificates for regulated 
stands at sports grounds. 

Part III of the Fire Safety and Safety of Places 
of Sport Act 1987 (c.27). 

28. Power to issue fire certificates. Section 5 of the Fire Precautions Act 1971 
(c.40). 

29. Power to license premises for the 
breeding of dogs. 

Section 1 of the Breeding of Dogs Act 1973 (c. 
60) and section 1 of the Breeding and Sale of 
Dogs (Welfare) Act 1999 (c. 11). 

30. Power to license pet shops and other 
establishments where animals are bred or 
kept for the purposes of carrying on a 
business. 

Section 1 of the Pet Animals Act 1951 (c. 35); 
section 1 of the Animal Boarding 
Establishments Act 1963(c. 43); the Riding 
Establishments Acts 1964 and 1970 (1964 c. 
70 and 1970 c. 70); section 1 of the Breeding of 
Dogs Act 1973 (c. 60), and sections 1 and 8 of 
the Breeding and Sale of Dogs (Welfare) Act 
1999. 

31. Power to register animal trainers and 
exhibitors. 

Section 1 of the Performing Animals 
(Regulation) Act 1925 (c. 38). 

32. Power to license zoos. Section 1 of the Zoo Licensing Act 1981 (c. 37). 

33. Power to license dangerous wild 
animals. 

Section 1 of the Dangerous Wild Animals Act 
1976 (c. 38). 

34. Power to license knackers' yards. Animal By-Products (Enforcement) 
(England) Regulations 2011/881 Section 4 of 
the Slaughterhouses Act 1974. See also the 
Animal By-Products Order 1999 (S.I. 
1999/646).

35. Power to license the employment of 
children. 

Part II of the Children and Young Persons Act 
1933 (c. 33), byelaws made under that Part, 
and Part II of the Children and Young Persons 
Act 1963 (c. 37). 

APPENDIX 6

Page 92



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012) 
________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012)  53 

36. Power to approve premises for the 
solemnisation of marriages. 

Section 46A of the Marriage Act 1949 (c. 76) 
and the Marriages (Approved Premises) 
Regulations 1995 (S.I. 1995/510)

37. Power to register common land or town 
or village greens, except where the power 
is exercisable solely for the purpose of 
giving effect to— 

a) an exchange of lands effected by an 
order 
under section 19(3) of, or paragraph 6(4) of 
Schedule 3 to, the Acquisition of Land Act 

1981 (c. 67) or  

b) an order under section 147 of the 
Inclosure Act 1845 (c. 8 & 9 Vict. c. 118) 

Regulation 6 of the Commons Registration 
(New Land) Regulations 1969 (S.I. 1969/1843). 

38. Power to register variation of rights of 
common. 

Regulation 29 of the Commons Registration 
(General) Regulations 1966 (S.I. 1966/1471) 

39. Power to license persons to collect for 
charitable and other causes. 

Section 5 of the Police, Factories etc. 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916 (c. 31) and 
section 2 of the House to House Collections Act 
1939 (c. 44)

40. Power to grant consent for the 
operation of a loudspeaker. 

Schedule 2 to the Noise and Statutory 
Nuisance Act 1993 (c. 40). 

41. Power to grant a street works licence. Section 50 of the New Roads and Street Works 
Act 1991 (c. 22). 

42. Power to license agencies for the 
supply of nurses.

Section 2 of the Nurses Agencies Act 1957 (c. 
16).

43. Power to issue licences for the 
movement of pigs. 

Pigs (Records, Identification and 
Movement) Order 2003/2632Article 12 of the 
Pigs (Records, Identification and Movement) 
Order 1995 (S.I. 1995/11).

44. Power to license the sale of pigs. Pigs (Records, Identification and 
Movement) Order 2003/2632Article 13 of the 
Pigs (Records, Identification and Movement) 
Order 1995.

45. Power to license collecting centres for 
the movement of pigs. 

Pigs (Records, Identification and 
Movement) Order 2003/2632Article 14 of the 
Pigs (Records, Identification and Movement) 
Order 1995.

46. Power to issue a licence to move cattle 
from a market. 

Cattle Identification Regs 2007/529
Article 5(2) of the Cattle Identification 
Regulations 1998 (S.I. 1998/871).

46A. Power to grant permission for 
provision, etc of services, amenities, 
recreation and refreshment facilities on 
highway, and related powers. 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions ) 
Act 1982 – Schedule 5, Part 1 and Sections 
115E, 115F and 115K of the Highways Act 
1980.

47. Power to permit deposit of builder's 
skip on highway. 

Section 139 of the Highways Act 1980 (c. 66). 

47A. Duty to publish notice in respect of 
proposal to grant permission under section 
115E of the Highways Act 1980. 

Section 115G of the Highways Act 1980 

48. Power to license planting, retention and 
maintenance of trees etc. in part of 
highway. 

Section 142 of the Highways Act 1980. 

49. Power to authorise erection of stiles Section 147 of the Highways Act 1980. 

APPENDIX 6

Page 93



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012) 
________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012)  54 

etc. on footpaths or bridleways. 

50. Power to license works in relation to 
buildings etc. which obstruct the highway. 

Section 169 of the Highways Act 1980. 

51. Power to consent to temporary 
deposits or excavations in streets. 

Section 171 of the Highways Act 1980. 

52. Power to dispense with obligation to 
erect hoarding or fence. 

Section 172 of the Highways Act 1980. 

53. Power to restrict the placing of rails, 
beams etc. over highways. 

Section 178 of the Highways Act 1980. 

54. Power to consent to construction of 
cellars etc. under street. 

Section 179 of the Highways Act 1980. 

55. Power to consent to the making of 
openings into cellars etc. under streets, 
and pavement lights and ventilators. 

Section 180 of the Highways Act 1980. 

56. Power to sanction use of parts of 
buildings for storage of celluloid. 

Section 1 of the Celluloid and Cinematograph 
Film Act 1922 (c. 35). 

57. Power to approve meat product 
premises. 

Regulations 4 and 5 of the Meat Products 
(Hygiene) Regulations 1994 (S.I. 1994/3082)

65

58. Power to approve premises for the 
production of minced meat or meat 
preparations. 

Regulation 4 of the Minced Meat and Meat 
Preparations (Hygiene) Regulations 1995 (S.I. 
1995/3205). 

59. Power to approve dairy establishments. Regulations 6 and 7 of the Dairy Products 
(Hygiene) Regulations 1995 (S.I. 1995/1086). 

60. Power to approve egg product 
establishments. 

Regulation 5 of the Egg Products Regulations 
1993 (S.I. 1993/1520). 

61. Power to issue licences to retail 
butchers' shops carrying out commercial 
operations in relation to unwrapped raw 
meat and selling or supplying both raw 
meat and ready-to-eat foods. 

Schedule 1A to the Food Safety (General Food 
Hygiene) Regulations 1995 (S.I. 1995/1763). 

62. Power to approve fish products 
premises. 

Regulation 24 of the Food Safety (Fishery 
Products and Live Shellfish) (Hygiene) 
Regulations 1998 (S.I. 1998/994). 

63. Power to approve dispatch or 
purification centres. 

Regulation 11 of the Food Safety (Fishery 
Products and Live Shellfish) (Hygiene) 
Regulations 1998. 

64. Power to register fishing vessels on 
board which shrimps or molluscs are 
cooked.

Regulation 21 of the Food Safety (Fishery 
Products and Live Shellfish) (Hygiene) 
Regulations 1998. 

65. Power to approve factory vessels and 
fishery product establishments. 

Regulation 24 of the Food Safety (Fishery 
Products and Live Shellfish) (Hygiene) 
Regulations 1998. 

66. Power to register auction and 
wholesale markets. 

Regulation 26 of the Food Safety (Fishery 
Products and Live Shellfish) (Hygiene) 
Regulations 1998. 

67. Duty to keep register of food business 
premises. 

Regulation 5 of the Food Premises 
(Registration) Regulations 1991 (S.I. 
1991/2828). 

68. Power to register food business 
premises. 

Regulation 9 of the Food Premises 
(Registration) Regulations 1991. 

69. Power to issue near beer licence. – 
only applies to London Boroughs   

Sections 16 to 19 and 21 of the London Local 
Authorities Act 1995 (c.x.) and, to the extent 
that it does not have effect by virtue of 
regulation 2(3), section 25 of that Act. 

70. Power to register premises or stalls for 
the sale of goods by way of competitive 

Section 28 of the Greater London Council 
(General Powers) Act 1984 (c.xxvii). 

APPENDIX 6

Page 94



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012) 
________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012)  55 

bidding.  – only applies to London 
Boroughs

71. Power to register motor salvage 
operators. 

Part I of the Vehicles (Crime) Act 2001 (c.3). 

72. Functions relating to the registration of 
common land and town or village greens. 

Part 1 of the Commons Act 2006 (c.26) and the 
Commons Registration (England) Regulations 
2008 (S.I. 2008/1961) 

73. Functions relation to the registration of 
city based deaers in second hand goods

South Yorkshire Act 1980, Section 52

C. Functions relating to health and 
safety at work

Functions under any of the “relevant 
statutory provisions” within the meaning of 
Part I (health, safety and welfare in 
connection with work, and control of 
dangerous substances) of the Health and 
Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, to the extent 
that those functions are discharged 
otherwise than in the authority's capacity 
as an employer. 

Part I of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 
1974 (c. 37)

D. Functions relating to elections

1. Duty to appoint an electoral registration 
officer. 

Section 8(2) of the Representation of the 
People Act 1983 (c. 2) 

2. Power to assign officers in relation to 
requisitions of the registration officer. 

Section 52(4) of the Representation of the 
People Act 1983. 

3. Functions in relation to parishes and 
parish councils. 

Part II of the Local Government and Rating Act 
1997 (c. 29) and subordinate legislation under 
that Part. 

4. Power to dissolve small parish councils. Section 10 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

5. Power to make orders for grouping 
parishes, dissolving groups and separating 
parishes from groups. 

Section 11 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

6. Duty to appoint returning officer for local 
government elections. 

Section 35 of the Representation of the People 
Act 1983. 

7. Duty to provide assistance at European 
Parliamentary elections. 

Section 6(7) and (8) of the European 
Parliamentary Elections Act 2002 (c.24)

8. Duty to divide constituency into polling 
districts. 

sections 18A to 18E of, and Schedule A1 to, 
the Representation of the People Act 1983. 

9. Power to divide electoral divisions into 
polling districts at local government 
elections. 

Section 31 of the Representation of the People 
Act 1983. 

10. Powers in respect of holding of 
elections. 

Section 39(4) of the Representation of the 
People Act 1983. 

11. Power to pay expenses properly 
incurred by electoral registration officers. 

Section 54 of the Representation of the People 
Act 1983. 

12. Power to fill vacancies in the event of 
insufficient nominations. 

Section 21 of the Representation of the People 
Act 1985. 

13. Duty to declare vacancy in office in 
certain cases. 

Section 86 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

14. Duty to give public notice of a casual 
vacancy. 

Section 87 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

15. Power to make temporary 
appointments to parish councils. 

Section 91 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

16 Removed by the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (Amendment) (no 2) 
(England) 2005      

17. Power to submit proposals to the Section 10 of the Representation of the People 

APPENDIX 6

Page 95



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012) 
________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012)  66 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 

Terms of Reference 

(a) The Licensing Committee shall be the licensing committee for the 
purposes of Section 6, Licensing Act 2003. 

(b) Except where by law or this Part of the Constitution they are functions 
reserved to Full Council, or where by virtue of this Constitution 
responsibility lies elsewhere,  to exercise the functions of the Council 
whether as licensing authority under the Licensing Act 2003 and 
Gambling Act 2005 or otherwise, with regard to licensing matters under 
all other relevant legislation (including bye-laws), conferring upon the 
Council powers and duties relating to such matters, as well as any 
incidental steps deemed necessary or desirable and, in particular:-  

(i) to exercise and enforce the Council’s licensing functions 
including but not limited to those listed in Table 1 below;  

(ii) to consider and determine any plan, strategy or other policy 
of the Council specific to the powers and duties within its 
terms of reference. 

(c) Where licensing matters (including policy and adoption of legislation) are 
to be determined by Full Council to consider the matters and make 
recommendations to Full Council. 

(d) Exercise the power under the Commons Registration Act 1965 and the 
Commons Act 2006 to register common land or town and village greens, 
except where the power is exercisable solely for the purpose of giving 
effect to (a) an exchange of lands affected by an order under section 
19(3) of, or paragraph 6(4) of Schedule 3 to, the Acquisition of Land Act 
1981 or (b) an order under section 147 of the Inclosure Act 1845; and to 
exercise the power to register variation of rights of common, PROVIDED 
that authority to determine the validity of an application to register land 
as common land or a town or village green is hereby delegated to the 
Director of Legal Services. 

Table 1: Legislation within the Licensing Committee Terms of Reference  

Legislation Extent Summary of Provision 

Animal Boarding 
Establishments Act 
1963 

All Regulation and 
enforcement in relation 
to animal boarding 
establishments. 

Breeding of Dogs Act 
1973 

All Regulation and 
enforcement in relation 
to premises used for 

APPENDIX 6

Page 96



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012) 
________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012)  67 

breeding dogs. 

Breeding of Dogs Act 
1991 

All Power to inspect 
unlicensed premises 
used for breeding dogs. 

Criminal Justice and 
Police Act 2001 

Chapter 2 Designating public 
places in relation to 
consumption of alcohol; 
closure notices and 
closure orders. 

Dangerous Wild 
Animals Act 1976 

All Regulation of the 
keeping of certain kinds 
of dangerous wild 
animals 

Fire Safety and Safety 
of Places of Sport Act 
1987 

Parts II and III Provisions for the safety 
of stands at sports 
grounds 

Gambling Act 2005 Parts 1-3,8-16 and18 
(save ss166 and 349 
which are reserved to 
Full Council) 

Provisions about 
gambling 

House to House 
Collections Act 1939 

All Regulation and 
enforcement of 
charitable collections 

Hypnotism Act 1952 All Authorisation of 
hypnotism exhibitions, 
demonstrations or 
performances. 

Licensing Act 2003 All Regulation and 
enforcement in relation 
to sale of alcohol, 
regulated entertainment 
and late night 
refreshment 

Local Government 
(Miscellaneous 
Provisions Act) 1976 

Part II Provisions for the 
licensing, regulation and 
enforcement of hackney 
carriages and private 
hire vehicles and the 
drivers and operators of 
hackney carriages and 
private hire vehicles 

Local Government 
(Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 

Parts II and III Control of Sex 
Establishments; Control 
of Street Trading 

Local Government 
(Miscellaneous 
Provisions) 1982 and 

LG (MP) Act Shedule 5, 
Part 1 and Highways 
Act Sections 115E, 

Regulation and 
Enforcement of 
Pavement Café 

APPENDIX 6

Page 97



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012) 
________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012)  68 

the Highways Act 1980. 115F and 115K of the Licences

Marriage Act 1949 s46A Approval of premises for 
the solemnization of 
marriages 

Pet Animals Act 1951 All Regulation and 
enforcement of Pet 
Shops 

Poisons Act 1972 s5, s6 and s9 Regulation and 
enforcement of the 
registration of persons 
to sell poisons

Police, Factories etc. 
(Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1916 

s5 Regulations covering 
street collections 

Policing and Crime Act 
2009 

s27  Sexual Entertainment 
Venues Transitional 
Provisions. 

Riding Establishments 
Act 1964  

All Regulation and 
enforcement in relation 
to riding establishments. 

Riding Establishments 
Act 1970 

All Provisional licensing of 
riding establishments. 

Safety at Sports 
Grounds Act 1975 

All Provisions for safety at 
sports stadia and other 
sports grounds 

South Yorkshire Act 
1980

s52 Registration of dealers 
in second hand goods

Scrap Metal Dealers Act 
1964 

All Regulation and 
enforcement of scrap 
metal dealers 

Town Police Clauses 
Act 1847 

ss37 to 68 Provisions for the 
licensing, regulation and 
enforcement of hackney 
carriages 

Transport Act 1985 s16 Limitation on Hackney 
Carriage numbers 

Vehicles (Crime) Act 
2001  

Parts 1 and 4 Regulation and 
enforcement of motor 
salvage operators 

Zoo Licensing Act 1981 All Regulation and 
enforcement in relation 
to zoos 

This list is non-exhaustive.  All legislation is as may be amended from time to 
time and includes any schedules related to the provisions listed and any 
regulations, bye-laws or Statutory Instruments made under that legislation. To 
the extent that a matter included is reserved to Full Council the term of 
reference to the Licensing Committee is to consider and make  

APPENDIX 6

Page 98



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012) 
________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012)  69 

recommendations to Full Council on that matter.   

APPENDIX 6

Page 99



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012) 
________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions (Amended July 2012)  75 

the Executive Director with departmental or budgetary responsibility for the 
relevant area. 

3.5 DELEGATION TO OFFICERS OF NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS 

3.5.1 Non-Executive Functions 

Those non-executive functions which are not reserved for decision to the 
Council or to a Committee of the Council, or to another body, are deemed to 
be delegated to and exercisable by:- 

  the Chief Executive; 

  an Executive Director where the matter falls within his/her area of portfolio, 
service or budgetary responsibility or such other corporate area of 
responsibility to which s/he may be nominated from time to time; or

  such Council Officer(s) as may be designated to exercise the function by 
the Chief Executive or by the relevant Executive Director. 

The Chief Executive and the Executive Directors will each be responsible for 
maintaining an up to date scheme of delegation for their portfolio or budget 
area which will identify the functions to be carried out, name the post which 
may make the delegated decision, and the limits, if any, to each delegation. 
Such limits will include obligations to take appropriate advice beforehand and 
to formally record decisions and any advice received, and may include, for 
example, obligations to consult, refer back to or report decisions taken to the 
Chief Executive, the Executive Director, or to the Member, or member body 
with oversight of the relevant area. 

The Chief Executive and each Executive Director will provide the Monitoring 
Officer with their scheme of delegation in a format to be agreed with the 
Monitoring Officer, Chief Executive, and the Chief Finance Officer. These 
schemes of delegation will be published on the Council’s website and made 
available to each Member of the Council 

3.5.2 Management Structure 

The Management Structure and officers’ responsibility for functions are set 
out in Part 7 of this Constitution.

3.5.3 Emergency and Urgency Powers 

The Chief Executive, or in the Chief Executive’s absence his/her designated 
deputy, has the power to act in cases of emergency or urgency to discharge 
all the non-executive functions delegated to other Officers in consultation, 

APPENDIX 7

Page 100



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 77 

COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES 

These Procedure Rules are Standing Orders made under S135 Local 
Government Act 1972. 

1 Interpretation

1.1 The expression "the Lord Mayor" when used in these Procedure 
Rules as relates to procedure at meetings of the Council shall, 
where the context so allows, include the Deputy Lord Mayor or 
the Chair of the meeting for the time being. 

1.2 The expression “Body” when used in these Procedure Rules 
shall mean the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Committees, 
Standards Committee, Regulatory Committees, Community 
Assemblies and other such meetings. 

2 Council Procedure Rules to apply to all Bodies 

 These Council Procedure Rules shall, where appropriate, apply to the 
Council, Cabinet, Audit Committee, Scrutiny Committees, Standards 
Committee, Regulatory Committees, Community Assemblies and other 
such meetings. 

3 Ruling on Council Procedure Rules 

 The ruling of the Lord Mayor or Chair of a Body, after consultation with 
the Chief Executive or his/her representative as to the construction or 
application of any of these Council Procedure Rules, or as to any 
proceedings of the Council or other Body, shall not be challenged at 
any meeting of the Council or other Body. 

4 Suspension and Amendment of Council Procedure Rules

4.1 All of these Council Procedure Rules, except Rules 6.1 and 18.5 
may be suspended by motion on notice or without notice if a 
minimum of 42 Members are present, of which not less than 22 
Members vote in favour. Suspension can only be for the duration 
of the meeting. 

4.2 Except in the case of a recommendation from the Cabinet, any 
motion put to the Council to permanently add to, vary or revoke 
these Council Procedure Rules shall, when moved and 
seconded, be deferred without discussion to the next ordinary 
meeting of the Council. 

APPENDIX 8

Page 101



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 78 

5 Meetings of the Council and Other Bodies 

5.1 The annual meeting of the Council shall be held in the Town Hall
at 11.30 a.m. on the third Wednesday in May. 

5.2 The annual meeting will: 

(a) elect a person to preside if the Chair is not present; 

(b) elect the Lord Mayor (Chair) of Council; 

(c) elect the Deputy Lord Mayor (Deputy Chair) of Council; 

(d) receive any apologies for absence from Members of the 
Council; 

(e) receive declaration from Members of interests in the 
matters to be considered at the meeting; 

(f) approve the minutes of the last meeting 

(g) if necessary, appoint a Leader of the Council; 

(h) receive any announcements from the Chair, Leader 
and/or Chief Executive; 

(i) be told by the Leader about the composition and 
Constitution of the Executive for the coming year, and the 
names of Councillors he/she has chosen to be Members 
of the Executive; 

(j) be told by the Leader about the scheme of delegation for 
the discharge of executive functions; 

(k) approve a programme of ordinary meetings of the Council 
for the year;

(l) agree the formula for determining the order in which 
Notices of Motion will be set out in the Council Summons 
for ordinary meetings of the Council during the year; 

(m) appoint at least one Overview and Scrutiny Committee, a 
Standards Committee and such other Committees as the 
Council considers appropriate to deal with matters which 
are not reserved to Full Council nor are Executive 
functions (as set out in Part 3 of this Constitution); 

APPENDIX 8

Page 102



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 79 

(n) decide the size and terms of reference for those 
Committees;

(o) decide the allocation of seats and any substitutes to 
Political Groups in accordance with the political balance 
rules;

(p) receive nominations of Councillors to serve on each 
Committee and outside body where appointments to 
those bodies is reserved to full Council;

(q) appoint to those Committees and outside bodies except 
where appointment to those bodies has been delegated 
by the Council or is exercisable only by the Executive; 
and

(r) consider any other business set out in the notice 
convening the meeting. 

5.3 In the event that any of the tasks outlined in paragraph 5.2 
above are unable to be completed at the annual meeting, they 
will be undertaken at the next, or subsequent, ordinary meeting. 

5.4 Ordinary meetings of the Council shall be held in the Town Hall
at 2.00 p.m. on the first Wednesday in months to be determined 
at the Annual Council Meeting or, in particular circumstances, at 
such other dates and venues as may be determined by the Lord 
Mayor or the City Council. 

5.5 Ordinary meetings will terminate at no later than 6.006.30 p.m.
Any unfinished business will normally be voted on without 
debate at the end of that time.  Any meeting starting other than 
at 2.00 p.m. shall finish no later than four hours and 30 minutes 
after the start. Special and Extraordinary meetings of the Council 
shall also be subject to this rule. 

5.6 In exceptional circumstances, with the consent of the majority of 
Members present and voting, the Council meeting may be 
adjourned in accordance with the provisions of Council 
Procedure Rules 11a(iv) and 17.13d and where an adjournment 
is agreed in the above circumstances, the remaining business of 
the day shall be considered at a date and time fixed by the Lord 
Mayor, or if he/she does not fix a date and time, at the next 
ordinary meeting of the Council. 

APPENDIX 8

Page 103



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 80 

5.7 Ordinary meetings will: 

(a) elect a person to preside if the Chair and Deputy Chair 
are not present; 

(b) consider the extent to which the public and press may be 
excluded from the meeting; 

(c) receive any apologies for absence from Members of the 
Council; 

(d) receive declarations by Members of interest in the 
matters to be considered at the meeting; 

(e) approve as a correct record the minutes of the last 
meeting;

(f) receive any communications or announcements from the 
Lord Mayor,  the Leader or the Chief Executive; 

(g) receive public questions and petitions; 

(h) receive questions from Members of the Council in 
accordance with Council Procedure Rules 16 and 32; 

(i) make any changes to the memberships of its Committees 
and appointments to outside bodies;  

(j) receive any reports relating to  matters reserved to the 
Council. 

(k) receive any reports from the Executive, Overview and 
Scrutiny and the Council’s Committees

(l) receive any presentations on matters of significant 
interest to the City; and 

(m) consider motions of which notice has been submitted by 
Members of the Council in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 10. 

5.8 Any five Members may give notice in writing to the Lord Mayor 
to call an Extraordinary Meeting of the Council to consider a 
specified item of business and this will take place at a date and 
time to be determined by the Lord Mayor. If the Lord Mayor 
refuses, or fails, to call an Extraordinary Meeting within seven 
days of receipt of such notice, then those five Members may call 

APPENDIX 8

Page 104



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 81 

the meeting. An extraordinary meeting may also be called by the 
Lord Mayor, the Monitoring Officer or by resolution of the full 
Council. 

5.9 In special circumstances, the Lord Mayor may fix some other 
hour of commencement of any meeting of the Council. 

5.10 Meetings of all other Bodies, with the exception of Regulatory 
Committees, shall be conducted according to the following 
procedures:- 

(a) Meetings shall last no longer than four hours, subject to 
the proviso that members may, by agreement, continue 
beyond such time limit by a period of not more than 30 
minutes.

(b) Any unfinished business after the period of four hours (or 
four hours 30 minutes by agreement) shall be deferred to 
the next meeting of the body, or be voted on without 
debate.

6 Signing of Minutes 

6.1  Where in relation to any meeting of the Council, the next 
meeting for the purposes of signing the minutes is a meeting 
called under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12 to the Local 
Government Act 1972 (an Extraordinary Meeting), then the next 
following meeting (being a meeting called otherwise than under 
that paragraph) will be treated as a suitable meeting for the 
purposes of paragraph 41(1) and (2) of that Schedule relating to 
the signing of minutes. 

6.2 In relation to the signing of the minutes of other Bodies, the next 
meeting of that Body shall be the next ordinary meeting and not 
a special meeting for the purposes of paragraph 44 of Schedule 
12 to the Local Government Act 1972 

7 Quorum 

7.1 The quorum for a meeting of the Council shall be one quarter of 
the whole number of the Council (including vacancies). During 
any meeting at the instigation of the Lord Mayor, or at the 
request of a Member of the Council, the number of Members 
present shall be ordered to be counted and if there is not a 
quorum present, then the meeting will adjourn immediately. 
Remaining business will be considered at a time and date fixed 

APPENDIX 8

Page 105



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 82 

by the Lord Mayor. If he/she does not fix a date, the remaining 
business will be considered at the next ordinary meeting. 

7.2 Provided that, where more than one third of the Members are 
disqualified at the same time and until the number of Members 
in office is increased to not less than two thirds of the whole, the 
quorum shall be determined by reference to the number of 
Members remaining qualified. 

7.3 The quorum for meetings of the Cabinet, Scrutiny Committees, 
Licensing Committee and Planning and Highways Committees 
shall be three. The quorum for meetings of the Community 
Assemblies shall be half of its membership.  Unless statutory 
regulations or legislation require otherwise, the quorum for 
meetings of other Bodies shall be two. 

8 Notice of and Summons to Council Meetings 

The Chief Executive will give notice to the public of the time and place 
of any meeting in accordance with Council Procedure Rules 26 and 27 
and existing legislation relating to access to information, as amended 
from time to time. At least five clear working days before a meeting, the 
Chief Executive will send a summons signed by him/her to every 
member of the Council giving the date, time and place of each meeting 
and specify the business to be transacted and will be accompanied by 
such reports as are available. 

9 Order of Council Business 

9.1 The business of the Council shall be taken in the order in which 
it appears in the Council Summons.. However, the Council may, 
by a resolution passed on a motion duly moved and seconded, 
and without debate direct the order of precedence to be 
changed, in circumstances where the subject of a motion proves 
to generate public interest reflected by a significantly increased 
attendance by members of the public at a Council meeting and it 
is therefore deemed appropriate to take the motion in question 
as an earlier item of business. 

9.2 The Council shall, where appropriate, consider any item referred 
from the Cabinet or Scrutiny Committee and shall take such 
action on the issues as may be deemed appropriate. Debate on 
the issue shall be subject to time limits set out in Council 
Procedure Rule 17.5.

APPENDIX 8

Page 106



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 83 

10 Notices of Motion to Council 

10.1 Deadline for receipt of 

Except for motions which can be moved without notice, as set 
out under Council Procedure Rule 11, written notice of every 
motion must be delivered to the Chief Executive not later than 
12.00 noon on the Tuesday in the week prior to the next meeting 
of the Council or the day earlier where a Bank Holiday falls 
within the intervening period.

10.2 Motions set out in agenda 

(a) Unless the Member giving notice states, in writing, that he/she 
proposes to move it to a later meeting or withdraw it, motions for 
which notice has been given will be listed on the Council 
Summons in an order based on a pre-determined formula 
according to the relative size of the various Party Groups on the 
Council, with Motions being considered in an order of priority 
identified by the various recognised Groups. The formula shall 
be agreed at the start of each municipal year, to take account of 
any changes in size of the Groups etc.  Provision shall also be 
made for the inclusion of any individual Motions that are not 
submitted through the recognised Groups. 

(b) Provision shall be made, within the formula, for each recognised 
Group on the Council to have included in the first three Motions
set out in the Council Summons, a Motion for debate at least 
once during each full municipal year, with the frequency being 
determined according to the relative size of the Party Groups.

10.3 Scope 

The Chief Executive may reject a Motion if it:- 

(a) is not a matter for which the Council has a responsibility 
or which affects the City, or its inhabitants. 

(b) is defamatory, frivolous or offensive. 

(c) is substantially the same as a Motion which has been put 
at a meeting of the Council in the past six months, unless 
Council Procedure Rule 10.4 has been complied with. 

(d) requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt 
information.

APPENDIX 8

Page 107



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 84 

(e) contains information which is factually inaccurate. 

 10.4 Motion similar to one previously rejected 

A motion or amendment in similar terms to one that has been 
rejected at a meeting of the Council in the past six months 
cannot be moved unless the notice of motion or amendment is 
signed by at least ten Members. Once the motion or amendment 
is dealt with, no one can propose a similar motion or amendment 
for six months. 

10.5 Motions which commit the Authority to new or additional 
expenditure

(a) Members moving a motion at Council the net effect of 
which, if accepted, is to commit the Authority to new or 
additional expenditure or cause loss of income shall before 
moving such motion clearly demonstrate that they have 
taken appropriate officer advice on all the following issues 
(1) whether or not the proposal set out in the motion is 
within current budgets, (2) what the implications of 
incurring the expenditure or loss of income would be, (3) if 
not within current budgets how any expenditure or loss of 
income is to be funded and (4) any change in priorities as 
a result of the proposal.  The relevant information and 
consequences of the proposal must be clearly set out in 
the motion together with the fact that, in voting for the 
motion, Members will also be voting to amend the 
previously agreed expenditure or income and/or change in 
priorities for the services or areas affected.

(b) Failure to comply with the above requirements in total 
means that the motion cannot be implemented until such 
time as the requirements are met. 

11 Motions which may be moved without notice at Council Meetings 

(a) Subject, where appropriate, to the provisions of Council 
Procedure Rule 17.12, the following motions may be moved 
without notice:- 

(i) Appointment of Chair at a meeting from which the Lord Mayor 
and Deputy Lord Mayor are absent. 

(ii) Motions and Amendments where it is not reasonably possible to 
comply with Council Procedure Rules 10.1 and 12.1. 

APPENDIX 8

Page 108



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 85 

(iii) That the question be now put. 

(iv) That the Council does now adjourn. 

(v) Suspending all or any particular Council Procedure Rule and 
Financial Regulations, subject to the provisions of Council 
Procedure Rule 4. 

(vi) That a member be no longer heard and/or be excluded from the 
meeting, subject to the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 19. 

(vii) To vary the order of business, subject to the provisions of 
Council Procedure Rule 9.1.  

(viii) To withdraw a motion or amendment, subject to the provisions of 
Council Procedure Rule 17.10. 

(ix) Motions referred to in Council Procedure Rule 13.1 (a) and (b). 

(x) To exclude the public and press pursuant to existing legislation 
relating to access to information, as amended from time to time., 
subject to the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 28. 

(xi) In relation to the accuracy of the minutes. 

(xii) To refer something to an appropriate body or individual. 

(xiii) To appoint a Committee or member arising from an item on the 
Summons for the meeting. 

(xiv) To proceed to the next business. 

(xv) To give the consent of the Council where it is required by the 
Constitution.

(xvi) To extend the maximum time limit of 40 minutes debate in total
per Motion or item, subject to the provisions of Council
Procedure Rule 17.6.

(b) After the mover has spoken to his/her motion, it shall be formally 
seconded.  A maximum of one speaker from each political group 
officially recognised by the Council, other than that of the 
mover’s Group, shall be allowed to speak to the motion.  The 
mover shall have a right of reply. 

APPENDIX 8

Page 109



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 86 

12 Amendments to Motions 

12.1 Subject to the provisions of Council Procedure Rules 11, 13 and 
17.12, every amendment shall be submitted in writing to the 
Chief Executive (except for an amendment to any motion not 
detailed in the Council Summons), by not later than 12 noon on 
the day preceding the Council Meeting to which it is proposed to 
be submitted.

12.2 An amendment to a motion must be relevant to the motion and 
will either be:- 

(i) to refer the matter to an appropriate body or individual for 
consideration or reconsideration. 

(ii) to leave out words; 
(iii) to leave out words and insert or add others; and 
(iv) to insert or add words, as long as the effect of (ii) to (iv) is 

not to negate the motion such that it departs from the 
subject of the motion 

12.3 The Chief Executive may reject an amendment if it:- 

(a) negates the motion such that it departs from the subject 
of the motion; 

(b) is not a matter for which the Council has a responsibility 
or which affects the City or its inhabitants; 

(c) is defamatory, frivolous or offensive; 
(d) is substantially the same as a motion or amendment 

which  has been put at a meeting of the Council in the 
past six months, unless Council Procedure Rule 10.4 has 
been complied with; 

(e) requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt 
information; or 

(f) contains information which is factually inaccurate.  

12.4 Each amendment shall be numbered and a copy shall be placed 
on each Member's desk in the Council Chamber before the 
commencement of the Council Meeting. 

12.5 The names of the mover and the seconder of any motion or 
amendment may be changed at any time prior to its being 
spoken upon. 

APPENDIX 8

Page 110



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 87 

13 Petitions  

13.1 The Council has adopted a Petitions Scheme which can be 
found on the Council's website (www.sheffield.gov.uk/petitions)
and is one way in which citizens can express their concerns and 
priorities to the Council.  Petitions can be presented to a meeting 
of the Council, Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny Committee or 
Community Assembly and fall into three main types:- 

(a) Ordinary Petitions 

Comprising at least five signatures from members of the 
public requesting some form of action.  As a courtesy, 
Democratic Services should be notified of the intention to 
present a petition at the earliest opportunity and no later 
than 10.00 a.m. on the day of the meeting in respect of 
Full Council meetings.  The Council, on a Motion which 
need not be in writing and which shall be put without 
discussion, may (i) refer the petition to the appropriate 
body or appropriate Cabinet Portfolio holder for 
consideration or (ii) decide that no further action be taken 
on the matter. 

(b) Petitions requiring a Council Debate 

 A petition containing 5,000 signatures or more will trigger 
a public debate by Full Council.  Seven working days' 
notice submitted to the Head of Democratic Services 
should be given to ensure Members have adequate 
preparation time. 

 The debate will be conducted and concluded as follows:- 

  A 40 minute time limit for the item, with Members able 
to speak for up to three minutes each. 

  The petition representative will be given 3 minutes to 
present the petition at the beginning of the debate at 
the meeting. 

  The Lord Mayor will facilitate discussion of the petition 
by Members. Members’ contributions will be 
summarised within the minutes of the meeting in order 
for the reasons for any subsequent referral to another 
body to be captured and communicated along with the 
petition, or for the reasons for the Council 

APPENDIX 8

Page 111



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 88 

subsequently deciding to take no action on the petition 
to be recorded. 

  At the conclusion of the debate, the Lord Mayor will 
offer a “right of reply” to the representative of the 
petitioners so that he/she can respond to any matters 
raised in the debate. With the consent of the Lord 
Mayor, the representative may nominate another 
representative, who is entitled to speak under the 
Constitution, to provide that reply. 

  The Lord Mayor will outline the options/courses of 
action available to the Council based on the nature of 
the petition and invite Members to propose simple 
motions in accordance with the relevant 
options/courses of action available to the Council.  
He/she may also put forward his/her own suggestion 
in the light of the debate, or if no other motion is 
proposed by Members, or in order to facilitate a 
consensual course of action in the event that multiple, 
similar motions are proposed.  Any motion proposed 
will need to be seconded.  Motions will be either to:- 

o note and take no action for the reasons put forward 
in the debate, or 

o take the action requested by the petitioners (if its 
within the Council’s remit to do so), or 

o refer the petition to either the Cabinet, a Scrutiny 
Committee, a Cabinet Member or an Executive 
Director for consideration having regard to the 
comments made by Members during the course of 
the debate. 

  If only one motion has been proposed and seconded, 
the Lord Mayor will call for a vote on that motion, 
which will either be carried or lost. 

   Should multiple motions have been proposed and 
seconded, the Lord Mayor will outline each motion 
and then call for a vote on each motion in turn until a 
motion is carried and an outcome is achieved. 

APPENDIX 8

Page 112



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 89 

(c) Petitions requesting evidence from an Officer. 

A petition containing 2,500 signatures may ask that a 
Senior Officer gives evidence at a public meeting of one 
of the Council's Overview and Scrutiny Committees about 
something for which the Officer is responsible as part of 
their job. 

13.2 Members of the public shall have an opportunity to address the 
Council or relevant Committee in respect of their petition for 
which they are the lead petitioner for a maximum of three 
minutes within the allocated time under Council Procedure Rule 
15.1 for Public Question Time and Petitions, with the exception 
of petitions requiring a public debate under Council Procedure 
Rule 13.1(b) in which a total of 40 minutes will be available for 
the debate, inclusive of the three minutes for the lead petitioner 
to present the petition. 

14 Communications 

 Each meeting of the Council will include an item of business to receive 
any communications or announcements that the Lord Mayor, the 
Leader of the Council or the Chief Executive may wish to place before 
the Council. 

15 Public Question Time and Petitions 

15.1 At Council Meetings 

(a) A period of up to one hour shall be allocated at each ordinary 
meeting of the Council for the presentation of ordinary petitions 
and for written or oral questions submitted by members of the 
public on matters relating to the City of Sheffield or the services 
provided by the Council to be answered by the Leader of the 
Council or the appropriate Cabinet Member. Employees of the 
City Council will not be permitted to ask questions where they 
relate directly or indirectly to their employment and where there 
are other more appropriate channels of communication, unless 
previously authorised by the appropriate Executive Director in 
advance of the meeting and a copy of such authorisation has 
been passed to the Director of Modern Governance, before the 
meeting in question.. 

(b) Where a submitted question cannot be answered because time 
does not allow, or where a Cabinet Member undertakes to 
provide a written answer, the written answer will be provided 

APPENDIX 8

Page 113



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 90 

within ten working days of the Council meeting and will be 
published on the Council website. 

(c) With the consent of the Council, by a simple majority vote, the 
Lord Mayor may extend the one hour period of public question 
time, having regard to the number and type of issues to be 
covered.

(d) On the advice of the Chief Executive, the Lord Mayor may not 
accept questions which relate to:- 

(i) matters not being within the responsibility of the Local 
Authority or which affects the City or its inhabitants; 

(ii) judicial or quasi-judicial matters; 
(iii) individual planning/licence/grant applications or appeals 
(iv) named officers or Members of the Council; 
(v) confidential matters of the type referred to in Schedule 

12A to the Local Government Act, 1972; and 
(vi) matters of an irrelevant, repetitious, defamatory, frivolous 

or offensive nature or a general misuse of the opportunity. 

15.2 Meetings other than Council

(a) Provision shall also be made at meetings of appropriate Bodies
for Members of the public to present petitions, at the Chair’s 
discretion, within a time limit of approximately three minutes, or 
to ask questions of Members and officers present. Employees of 
the City Council will not be permitted to ask questions where 
they relate directly or indirectly to their employment and where 
there are other more appropriate channels of communication, 
unless previously authorised by the appropriate Executive 
Director in advance of the meeting and a copy of such 
authorisation has been passed to the Director of Modern 
Governance before the meeting in question. 

(b) The ability of a member of the public to ask questions or present 
petitions in the allotted time at any meeting which allows this 
privilege shall be subject to the discretion of the Chair and, in 
normal circumstances, such discretion shall be exercised in 
favour of the question being asked or petition being presented. 
However, the Chair may decide that the individual is asking 
irrelevant, repetitious, defamatory, frivolous or offensive 
questions or generally misusing the opportunity, in which event 
he/she may decline to allow the individual to put questions to the 
meeting and such person will instead be invited to put the 
questions in writing. At the discretion of the Chair, a period 
longer than the stipulated three minutes may be allowed.

APPENDIX 8

Page 114



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 91 

16 Members' Questions at Ordinary Meetings of the Council 

16.1 Provision shall be made in the Council Summons for each 
ordinary meeting of the Council (except January), for Members 
of the Council to ask the Leader of the Council, the appropriate 
Cabinet member, the Chairs of the Scrutiny Committees or the 
Regulatory Committees any question on matters within the 
functions of that Body.  The Chairs of Regulatory Committees 
can only be asked questions relating to policy and practice 
rather than individual cases.  

16.2 Written notice of questions is required by not later than 12.00 
noon on the Tuesday in the week prior to the next meeting of the 
Council or the day earlier where a Bank Holiday falls within the 
intervening period. The Member giving the reply shall have the 
option to reply by way of:- 

(a) an oral or written answer at the Council Meeting; 
(b) reference to a previously published document; or 
(c) a written reply provided, wherever possible, within 10 

working days of the Council meeting and circulated to all 
Council Members. 

16.3 Where an oral answer has not been commenced during 
question time, it shall be answered by written answer, wherever 
possible, within 10 working days of the Council meeting and 
circulated to all Council Members. 

16.4 No discussion shall be permitted on any such question or 
answer but, with the permission of the Lord Mayor and at the 
appropriate time as set out in the Council Summons, one 
supplemental question on each question may be asked by the 
Member who had submitted the original question within the time 
allocated for Members’ questions. 

16.5 If, in the opinion of the Monitoring Officer, a Member asks 
questions that are of no discernible value, that Member may be 
asked to justify the cost of supplying such information. 

16.6 Provision shall also be made in the Council Summons (i) for 
each ordinary meeting of the Council, for Members, with the 
permission of the Lord Mayor, to ask questions relating to the 
discharge of the functions of the South Yorkshire Joint 
Authorities, and (ii) for each meeting of the Council, for 
Members, with the permission of the Lord Mayor, to ask 
questions relating to urgent business of which notice in writing 

APPENDIX 8

Page 115



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 92 

has been given to the Chief Executive not later than 12.00 Noon 
on the day of the meeting. 

16.7 A period of up to 30 minutes shall be allocated for Members’ 
questions.

17 Rules of Debate at Council Meetings 

17.1 Addressing the Lord Mayor

The rules of debate set out in Council Procedure Rule 17 shall 
apply to all meetings of the Council and its Committees, Sub-
Committees and Area Committees.

When a Member speaks, he/she must stand and address the 
meeting through the Lord Mayor. If more than one Member 
stands, the Lord Mayor will ask one to speak and the others to 
sit down. Other Members must remain seated whilst a Member 
is speaking unless he/she wishes to make a point of order or a 
point of personal explanation. Whenever the Lord Mayor 
addresses the meeting, all other Members shall not attempt to 
address the meeting.  When the Lord Mayor stands during a 
debate, any Member speaking at the time must stop and sit 
down.  The meeting must be silent. 

17.2 No speeches until motion seconded 

No speeches may be made after the mover has moved a 
proposal and explained the purpose of it until the motion has 
been seconded, subject to the other provisions of these Council 
Procedure Rules and particularly Council Procedure Rules 17.11 
and 17.12.

17.3 Right to require motion in writing 

Unless notice of the motion has already been given, the chair 
may require it to be written down and handed to him/her before it 
is discussed. 

17.4 Seconder's speech 

When seconding a motion or amendment, a Member may 
reserve their speech until later in the debate, subject to the other 
provisions of these Council Procedure Rules and particularly 
Council Procedure Rules 17.11 and 17.12.

.

APPENDIX 8

Page 116



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 93 

17.5 Content and length of speeches 

Speeches must be directed to the question under discussion or 
to a personal explanation or point of order. Subject to the 
provisions of Council Procedure Rules, 11, 17.6, 17.12 and 
17.13, speeches on motions or amendments shall be subject to 
a time limit of 3 minutes each speaker. 

17.6 Time limit for debate  

 All Motions for which notice has been given in the Council 
Summons and all reports or presentations to be considered at 
ordinary meetings of the Council, shall not be subject to a 
maximum time limit. be subject to a maximum time limit of 40 
minutes debate in total per Motion or item, including any 
amendments relating thereto. Upon expiry of the time limit, any
and all outstanding business relating to that Motion or item of 
business including any amendments relating thereto, will be 
moved and seconded, and voted upon without further debate.
However, the Council may, by a resolution passed on a motion 
formally moved and seconded without debate, extend the 
debate on such Motion or item of business for a specified period 
or by a specified number of speakers.

17.7 When a member may speak again 

A Member who has spoken on a motion may not speak again 
whilst it is the subject of debate, except:- 

(a) to speak once on an amendment moved by another 
member;

(b) to move a further amendment if the motion has been 
amended since he/she last spoke; 

(c) if his/her first speech was on an amendment moved by 
another Member, to speak on the main issue (whether or 
not the amendment on which he/she spoke was carried; 

(d) in exercise of a right of reply; 
(e) on a point of order; and 
(f) by way of personal explanation. 

17.8 Amendments to motions

(a) Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at 
any one time.  No further amendment may be moved until 
the amendment under discussion has been disposed of. 

APPENDIX 8

Page 117



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 94 

(b) If an amendment is not carried, other amendments to the 
original motion may be moved. 

(c) If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended takes 
the place of the original motion.  This becomes the 
substantive motion to which any further amendments are 
moved.  If there are no further amendments, the 
substantive motion is put to the vote. 

(d) If an amendment submitted under Council Procedure 
Rule 11(a)(ii) is carried, no further amendment relating to 
the same matter shall be moved unless the further 
amendment has been handed in writing to the Lord Mayor 
prior to the vote being taken on the previous amendment. 

17.9 Alteration of motion or amendment 

(a) A member may alter a motion or amendment of which 
he/she has given notice with the consent of the meeting.  
The meeting's consent will be signified without 
discussion.

(b) A member may alter a motion or amendment which 
he/she has moved without notice with the consent of both 
the meeting and the seconder.  The meeting's consent 
will be signified without discussion. 

17.10 Withdrawal of motion or amendment 

A member may withdraw a motion or amendment which 
he/she has moved with the consent of both the meeting 
and the seconder.  The meeting's consent will be signified 
without discussion.  No member may speak on the motion 
after the mover has asked permission to withdraw it 
unless permission is refused. 

17.11 Right to reply 

(a) The mover of a motion has a right to reply at the end of 
the debate on the motion, immediately before it is put to 
the vote.

(b) The mover of the amendment has no right of reply to the 
debate on his or her amendment. 

(c) Subject to the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 
17.13, a Member who has formally seconded a motion or 

APPENDIX 8

Page 118



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 95 

amendment and who has been permitted to reserve 
his/her speech until a later period in the debate will not be 
deemed a speaker for the purposes of counting five 
persons, but will lose his/her right to speak if he/she has 
not spoken prior to the passing of a motion that the 
question be now put. 

17.12 Motions which may be moved during debate 

(a) When a motion or amendment is under debate, no other 
motion may be moved except the following procedural 
motions:-

(i) to withdraw a motion or amendment; 
(ii) to alter a motion or amendment; 
(iii) to proceed to the next business; 
(iv) that the question be now put; 
(v) to adjourn a debate or the meeting; 
(vi) to extend the maximum time limit of 40 minutes 

debate in total per motion or item;
(vii) to suspend a particular Council Procedure Rule, 

subject to the provisions of Council Procedure 
Rule 4; 

(viii) to exclude the public and press in accordance with 
existing legislation relating to access to 
information, as amended from time to time; 

(ixviii) to not hear further a Member or to exclude him/her 
from the meeting, subject to the provisions of 
Council Procedure Rule 19. 

(b) After the mover has spoken to his/her motion, it shall be 
formally seconded.  A maximum of one speaker from 
each political group officially recognised by the Council, 
other than that of the mover’s Group, shall be allowed to 
speak to the motion.  The mover shall have a right of 
reply.

17.13 Closure motions 

(a) A member may move, without comment, the following 
motions at the end of a speech of another member:- 

(i) to proceed to the next business; 
(ii) that the question be now put; 
(iii) to adjourn a debate; or 
(iv) to adjourn a meeting. 

APPENDIX 8

Page 119



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 96 

(b) If a motion to proceed to next business is seconded and, 
if not less than five persons have spoken on the motion 
under debate, and at least one member of each of the 
political parties recognised by the Council as constituting 
an identifiable and separate Party Group, having 
previously indicated to him/her a wish to contribute to the 
debate, has been given the opportunity so to do, the Lord 
Mayor will  give the mover of the original motion a right of 
reply and then put the procedural motion to the vote. 

(c) If a motion that the question be now put is seconded and, 
if not less than five persons have spoken on the motion 
under debate, and at least one member of each of the 
political parties recognised by the Council as constituting 
an identifiable and separate Party Group, having 
previously indicated to him/her a wish to contribute to the 
debate, has been given the opportunity so to do, the Lord 
Mayor will put the procedural motion to the vote.  If it is 
passed he/she will give the mover of the original motion a 
right of reply before putting his/her motion to the vote. 

(d) If a motion to adjourn the debate or to adjourn the 
meeting is seconded and the Lord Mayor thinks the item 
has not been sufficiently discussed and cannot 
reasonably be so discussed on that occasion, he/she will 
put the procedural motion to the vote without giving the 
mover of the original motion the right of reply. If a majority 
of Members vote in favour of the motion, the remaining 
business of the day shall stand adjourned to a time fixed 
by the Lord Mayor at the time the meeting is adjourned, 
or, if he/she does not fix a time, to the next ordinary 
meeting of the Council. 

17.14 Point of Order 

(a) A Member may raise a point of order at any time.  The 
Lord Mayor will hear the Member immediately.  A point of 
order may only relate to an alleged breach of these 
Council rules of procedure or the law. The Member must 
indicate the rule or law and the way in which he/she 
considers it has been broken.  The ruling of the Lord 
Mayor on the matter will be final. 

(b) A Member may call upon the Lord Mayor to advise the 
meeting as to whether an issue has arisen in the motions 
presented to the meeting, or in the resulting debate, of 
factual inaccuracy or significant ambiguity; or defamation 

APPENDIX 8

Page 120



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (Revised June 2012) 97 

or discrimination.  The Lord Mayor, advised by the Chief 
Executive, will advise the meeting as to what action 
should be taken if such an issue has arisen. 

17.15  Personal Explanation

A Member may, at any time, request to address the meeting to 
provide a personal explanation where he/she has made a mis-
statement that is being quoted by a later speaker, or where 
another Member has misquoted or misunderstood what the 
Member had said, during the present debate.  The Lord Mayor 
will decide whether or not to permit the request, and the Lord 
Mayor's ruling shall not be challenged.  The Member shall 
confine his/her personal explanation to correcting the 
misunderstanding.

18 Voting at Meetings of the Council and Other Bodies 

18.1 Majority 

Unless otherwise indicated within the Constitution, any matter 
will be decided by a simple majority of those Members voting 
and present in the room at the time the question was put. 

18.2 Chair's casting vote 

If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Chair 
will have a second or casting vote.  There will be no restriction 
on how the Chair chooses to exercise a casting vote. 

18.3 Show of Hands 

Unless a recorded vote is demanded, the chair will take the vote 
by show of hands or electronically by using the available 
technology, or if there is no dissent, by the affirmation of the 
meeting.

18.4 Recorded Votes 

If not less than ten Members present at a meeting of the Council 
or, in the case of meetings of other Bodies, one third of the 
Members present demand it, the names for and against the 
motion or amendment or abstaining from voting will be taken 
down in writing and entered into the minutes. The recording of 
votes at a meeting of the Council shall be carried out by roll-call 

APPENDIX 8

Page 121



Formula for the order in which Notices of Motion shall be listed on the 
Council Summons (from September 2012) 

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10.2, the formula for the order in 
which Notices of Motion shall be listed on the Council Summons from 
September 2012 shall be:- 

September 2012 

Lib Dem/Labour/Labour/Lib Dem/Labour/Labour/Green, repeated 

October

Labour/Labour/Lib Dem/Labour/Labour/Lib Dem/Green, repeated 

November

Labour/Labour/Lib Dem/Labour/Labour/Lib Dem/Green, repeated 

December

Lib Dem/Labour/Labour/Lib Dem/Labour/Labour/Green, repeated 

February 2013

Labour/Labour/Lib Dem/Labour/Labour/Lib Dem/Green, repeated 

April

Labour/Labour/Lib Dem/Labour/Labour/Lib Dem/Green, repeated 

June

Green/Labour/Labour/Lib Dem/Labour/Labour/Lib Dem, repeated 

July

Labour/Labour/Lib Dem/Labour/Labour/Lib Dem/Green, repeated 

(Note: This formula is based on the relative size of the Party Groups:- 

 Labour 71.4% of members = 62.5% of meetings/5 of the 8 meetings 

 Lib Dem 26.2% of members = 25% of meetings/2 of the 8 meetings 

 Green 2.4% of members = 12.5% of meetings/1 of the 8 meetings) 

APPENDIX 9

Page 122



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 4 - Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Amended February 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 4 - Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Amended February 2012)  163 

decision maker as the case may be.  Where referred to a meeting of the 
Cabinet or Cabinet Committee, the Chair of the Scrutiny Committee (or 
nominee), a representative of the signatories to the call-in and its 
Scrutiny Officer shall be expected to attend the meeting in order to 
assist the debate on the issue.

For decisions that have been referred to the Cabinet, the Council, a 
Cabinet Committee or an individual decision maker the Committee’s 
Scrutiny Officer shall inform the Committee at its next appropriate 
meeting of the decision subsequently taken in relation to the called-in 
item.

In respect of:- 

(i) delegated decisions taken by officers which are not Key 
Decisions; and:-  

(ii) delegated decisions taken by the Regulatory Committees;

Scrutiny Committees shall be able to scrutinise the process that led to 
such a decision but not the decision itself. 

17. Call-in and Urgency 

(1) Removal from Call-in Process ("fast track") 

(a) A decision cannot be called in for scrutiny if a minimum of 
three officers, comprising an Executive Director and two 
Statutory Officers or, in the case of a report of the Chief 
Executive, that officer and one other Statutory Officer, in 
consultation with the appropriate Cabinet Portfolio Member 
or the Chair of the Cabinet, sign and certify that an item of 
business is urgent and that its delay for scrutiny would 
significantly prejudice the delivery of Council services that
its delay for scrutiny would consequently significantly prejudice 
the interests of the Council or a third party

.

(b) The definition of an urgent item of business is considered to be 
something where a failure to deal with or implement it promptly 
would cause administrative, financial or other difficulties to the 
individual(s)/ organisations(s) concerned and/or the Council; so 
that it would clearly be in the interests of those individual(s)/ 
organisation(s) and/or the Council and consistent with the 
Council’s fiduciary and legal obligations to deal with the matter 
expeditiously. 

APPENDIX 10

Page 123



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 4 - Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Amended February 2012) 
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 4 - Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Amended February 2012)  164 

(c) In these circumstances, the item will be “fast tracked” unless it is 
a key decision in which case it will be taken in accordance with 
Rule 16 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules but it will 
still be open to the Scrutiny Committee, not only to examine this 
decision in retrospect, but also to examine the reason for a 
certificate being issued. 

APPENDIX 10

Page 124



Note to explain changes to the following constitutional 

documents 

Part 5 – Code of Conduct for Council Members and officers in 
respect of Planning Matters

Part 5 – Revised guidance note on general procedures at Planning 
and Highways Committee meetings.

Part 5 - Revised guidance note to Chairs on disruption of Planning 
and Highways Committees by members of the public.

Code of Conduct

 Clauses 1.2 - 1.6 are amended to reflect the Localism Act 2011 

changes and attempts to clarify the extent to which Councillors can get 

involved without prejudicing their ability to take a decision on a 

particular application. 

 Clause 2 has been amended to reflect the changes to member’s 

interests again as a result of the Localism Act 2011. There is a 

reminder of what constitutes a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 

 Clause 6 is updated slightly to reflect current practice for Committee 

Site Inspections. It clarifies the purpose, to assess the facts on the 

ground and clarifies that discussions may take place with both the 

applicant and any objector relating to matters arising from that site visit 

rather than on the merits of the application 

 Clause 10 has been updated to reflect the fact that pre-application 

advice is no longer offered as a free service, charges now apply 

Guidance Notes on General Procedures at Planning and Highways 

Committee Meetings

 Introduction amended to reflect abolition of the Standards Board for 

England

 1.0 Training amended to remove outdated references to 

particular Acts

APPENDIX 11

Page 125



 2.0 Chair's Briefing Meetings amended to reflect improved current 

practice that 'will' not 'may' be held 

 2.1 Planning and Highways Committee Briefing Meetings - updated to 

explain this new role 

 3.0 The Public Nature of Committee Meetings updated to reflect 

changes to the Constitution 

 Previous clause 5 on Lobbying and avoiding predetermination deleted 

and replaced by advice in other sections 

 6.0 The Submission of Defamatory and Offensive Information simplified 

and updated to make consistent with current practice 

 7.5 Improved section on Members not following Officer 

recommendations, emphasising giving different weight to 

considerations, not issues of a subjective nature 

 7.6 made clearer about protection from and risk of costs when making 

enforcement decisions 

 8.1 Maintaining Public Confidence in the Committees - comment 

suggests that update should emphasise the need for Members to 

ensure that there is evidence to support recommendations against 

advice

 8.2 updates the number of Committees (no reference to possible future 

changes)

 9.3 reflects changes to the code of conduct and members interests 

 11.4 updated to reflect improved current practice on officer 

presentations (and would cover the introduction of digital 

presentations)

 12.2 amended to reflect changes to the Constitution 

 13.1 on Committee Visit decisions updated to reflect current approach 

 13.4 added consideration for Members to attend Committee visits to 

maintain public confidence in the need for a visit (as poor attendance 

has been an occasional problem) 

 14.4 updated to reflect current appeal practice 

 15 Declarations of Interest simplified and updated 

 16 Observers etc simplified and updated

 17.4 added on Chair's role in explaining decisions 

APPENDIX 11

Page 126



 18.6 deleted references to old cases and simple reference added on 

current improved practice to review appeal cases 

Guidance note to Chair on Disruption of Planning and Highways 

Committees by Members of the Public 

The changes were to update the document to take into consideration the 

amendments made to the constitutional provisions in recent years. The 

document has not been materially changed 

Gillian Duckworth, Assistant Director of Legal Services (Place) 

Graham Withers, Business Manager, Planning Services 

16 August 2012

APPENDIX 11

Page 127



Updated August 2012 

______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS 
AND OFFICERS IN RELATION TO PLANNING MATTERS 

1. Purpose of Code 

1.1 This Code of Conduct has been adopted by the Council to regulate the 
performance of its planning function. 

The Code has the following objectives: 

i) To guide Members and officers in dealing with planning related 
matters. 

ii) To inform potential developers and members of the public 
generally, of the standards and procedures adopted by the 
Council in the performance of its planning function. 

1.2 This Code of Conduct relating to Planning Matters is intended to 
supplement the new overall Code of Conduct which the Council 
adopted in July 2012 in accordance with section 27 Localism Act 2011. 
The purpose of this code is to provide more detailed guidance on the 
standards to be applied in relation to planning related issues. 

1.3 Although this code refers to Planning & Highways Committees (for 
brevity, “the Committee”), its provisions apply equally to any other body 
of the Council making decisions on planning matters. 

1.4 Planning law requires local planning authorities to determine all 
planning applications in accordance with the approved development 
plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  This 
responsibility must be performed without undue influence or personal 
interest.

1.5 Members should not decide what weight to give different material 
planning considerations until they have read the Head of Planning’s 
report, heard any representations and listened to the debate at 
Committee.

1.6 There is no reason why members cannot attend briefing sessions with 
applicants express views on individual applications or attend public 
meetings or campaign group meetings for or against individual 
applications; in many cases it can be helpful to applicants and officers 
to alert them to concerns early in the application process. However 
committee members should not say or do anything which may indicate 
how they intend to vote on a particular application 

APPENDIX 12

Page 128



Updated August 2012 

______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

2. Declaring Interests

2.1 Members (and officers) will have to decide whether or not they have a 
Disclosable Personal Interest (DPI) in anything being considered at a 
meeting.

2.2 The interests members must register are set out below they include the 
interests of the Member and his/her spouse/partner:- 

Employment, office, trade, profession or vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain.  

Sponsorship

Any payment or financial benefit in respect of any expenses incurred in 
carrying out duties as a member, or towards the election expenses. 

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union

This does not his include hospitality payments e.g. going to a football 
match.

Contracts

Any contract which is made between the member (or a body in which 
the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the Council under 
which goods or services are to be provided or an existing contract 
delivering goods and services. 

Land

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Council. 

Licences (property)

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the Council for a month or longer.

APPENDIX 12

Page 129



Updated August 2012 

______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Tenancies held by Companies in which the member has a 
beneficial interest
Any tenancy where the landlord is the Council; and 

Securities (shares, debentures etc)Any beneficial interest in 
securities of a body where — 

(a) that body has a place of business or land in the area of Council and 

(b) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body 

There are more detailed rules if the shares held by a company are 
divided into more than one class. 

Where a member has a DPI, it is a criminal offence to: 

  fail to register that interest within 28 days of being elected; 

  fail to declare an unregistered interest at a meeting; and 

  participate in a relevant item of business 

DPIs have a broader definition than the former prejudicial interest. It is 
a DPI even if there is no likelihood that it might prejudice the member’s 
perception of the public interest. This means that a decision which has 
only a minimal impact on a member’s property or employer can trigger 
a criminal offence if it is not registered 

2.5 If you have a DPI you must declare what the interest is if you have not 
already done so and withdraw from the meeting by leaving the room

2.6 If in doubt it is advisable to seek the views of the Director of Legal 
Services.

3. Lobbying

3.1 Provided that members comply with the general guidance in 1.6 there 
is no restriction in principle on being lobbied by developers, applicants 
or local interest groups. Written representations received, whether for 
or against an application, should be forwarded to the Head of Planning 
so that they can be considered and included in any report to Committee 
or on the delegated decision file. 

APPENDIX 12

Page 130



Updated August 2012 

______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

3.2 As explained in 1.6, briefing sessions or meetings with applicants can 
be very helpful but members must avoid giving the impression that they 
have already made up their mind, so it may be helpful if members 
make it clear that any views they express are provisional. 

4. Reports by Officers to Committee Members

4.1 Members are required to arrive at a decision on granting or refusing 
permission by using planning criteria and by excluding non-planning 
considerations.  In determining planning applications Members are 
required to have regard to the development plan for the area and to 
any other material considerations.  To this end, the reports of officers to 
Members must be accurate and cover all relevant points.  These 
reports:

(a) Should contain a section on the relevance of the development 
plan, a description of the site and any related planning history 
and all other relevant material considerations will be outlined. 

(b) Should deal with the substance of any planning objections 
received and the views of people who have been consulted or 
notified

(c) Should incorporate a recommendation for the consideration of 
Members; oral reporting (except to introduce a report or update 
it) should be extremely rare and carefully minuted when it does 
occur.

(d) Should contain a technical planning appraisal which clearly 
justifies the stated recommendation. 

(e) If the report's recommendation is contrary to the provisions of 
the development plan, the material considerations which justify 
this must be clearly stated. 

5. Public Speaking at Committee Meetings

5.1 Public speaking at Committee meetings allows interested parties, 
including the public and applicants, to have direct access to Councillors 
at the point in time just before a decision is to be made.  This should 
enhance public confidence in the process. 

5.2 It is important that the 'Chance to Speak' offered in Sheffield is 
operated in a clear and equitable manner.  The following procedure 
applies:

APPENDIX 12

Page 131



Updated August 2012 

______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

(a) The 'Chance to Speak' applies to the public, community groups, 
applicants, Town and Parish Councillors, City Councillors, or 
any representatives of the above. 

(b) Where a request is made, speaking is at the Chair's discretion 
but will always include at least one person, if present, from each 
principal point of view (support or opposition). 

(c) If there are groups of people wishing to speak, wherever 
possible the Chair will seek a representative to put the whole 
case.  Additional speakers should be strictly limited to any 
genuinely different viewpoints or additional considerations.  
Repetition of points already made is unnecessary and will cause 
delay. Whilst a dialogue will not be permitted the Chair can use 
his discretion to allow Members to put a question to the 
applicant or other parties if that will help in the decision-making 
process and provided that officers are given the opportunity to 
advise on material considerations 

(d) Speaking is limited to a maximum of 5 minutes per speaker. 

(e) It is intended that the 'Chance to Speak' in Sheffield is operated 
with the minimum of bureaucracy.  For example speakers only 
have to register their wish to speak at the commencement of the 
meeting to the Clerk, who will advise the Chair of their names 
and the item they wish to speak on.  There are significant 
advantages to a flexible approach, but it is critical that this is 
operated in an equitable manner to maintain the confidence of 
all parties. 

(f) The Chair should consider the advantages of bringing forward 
on the agenda items where there are identified speakers, to 
allow interested parties to leave the meeting without undue 
delay should they wish after their item. 

(g) The Chair should announce at the commencement of the 
meeting how s/he will manage the meeting to facilitate people 
being able to put their views to the Committee.  The normal 
order of speaking on any item will be the officer giving their 
report and recommendation followed by any public speakers.  
Only Committee Members will be able to question officers and 
speakers for clarification.  Committee will then start to debate 
the item and from this point members of the public have no 
further opportunity to speak or be involved (unless the Chair 
determines there are exceptional reasons to do so for 
clarification).  Certainly the public cannot take part in the debate 
or decision. 

APPENDIX 12

Page 132



Updated August 2012 

______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

6. Committee Site Inspections

6.1 Site visits will cause delay and additional costs and should only be 
used where the expected benefit is substantial.  A decision by the 
Committee to carry out a site inspection should normally only take 
place:

(a) If the impact of the proposed development is particularly difficult 
to visualise from the plans and any supporting material; or

(b) There is considerable local concern about a proposal, allied to 
planning reasons for carrying out the visit (e.g. the physical 
relationship of the site to other sites in the neighbourhood). 

 Normally officers will identify such cases in advance to avoid delay. 

6.2 Where an application is deferred by Committee for a visit, clear 
reasons should be given at the meeting for the deferral so that the 
applicant and any third parties involved are able to understand the 
need for, and the benefit of, a site visit.  This is to avoid 
misunderstanding either about the purpose of the site visit or the 
matters which are being considered. 

6.3 Where it is intended to inspect the site it is essential that extremely 
careful arrangements are made to ensure that all parties are treated 
fairly and equitably, and that the appropriate standards of propriety are 
seen to be upheld.

6.4 When Members go on Committee site inspections they should realise 
that the function of the inspection is to visualise the development and 
assess the facts on the ground, and the following rules apply: 

(a) The visit will be led by a planning officer. 

(b) Whilst discussions can take place with the applicant or 
objectors, these should concentrate on dealing with issues 
arising from the assessment of the development as seen on the 
site visit rather than dealing with issues of principle arising from 
the development itself. 

7. Individual Site Inspections by Members

7.1 Members are encouraged to look at an application site following the 
receipt of the agenda and prior to the date of the Committee meeting.  
This will enable them to acquaint themselves with the nature of the 
proposal and will help avoid delay and unnecessary site visits.

APPENDIX 12

Page 133



Updated August 2012 

______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

However, Members must conduct such site inspections from a public 
vantage point and should not discuss the application with any 
applicant/agent or third party.  They should not enter a site even if 
invited.

7.2 Members of the Committee should not enter any premises not normally 
open to the public which are either: 

(a) The subject of, or affected by, a planning application; or 

(b) known by the Member to be likely to become the subject of, or 
affected by, a planning application 

 for any purpose in connection with such an application, save in the 
course of a Committee site inspection. 

8. Training

8.1 Members of the Planning and Highways Committees and the Council’s 
Cabinet Member for Planning must receive training in the planning 
system either before serving on the Committee or as soon as possible 
after their appointment to the Committee and certainly within 4 months.
Members will not be able to continue on the Committee without this.
This is to ensure that correct procedures are followed and proper 
planning considerations are employed in decision making.  The 
integrity of the planning system and the need for public confidence 
require this. 

8.2 Refresher training, updates, or more detailed training on specific issues 
will also be provided every two years and should be taken up by all 
relevant members 

9. Complaints and Record Keeping

9.1 Whatever procedures the Council operates, it is likely that complaints 
will be made.  In order that any complaints can be fully investigated, 
record keeping should be complete and accurate.  Omissions and 
inaccuracies could, in themselves, cause a complaint or undermine the 
Council's case.  Every planning application file will contain an accurate 
account of events throughout its life, particularly the outcomes of 
meetings or significant telephone conversations. 

9.2 The same principles of good record keeping will be observed in relation 
to enforcement and development plan matters.  Monitoring of record 
keeping will be undertaken on a continuous basis by managers in the 
Planning Department. 

APPENDIX 12

Page 134



Updated August 2012 

______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

10. Officer's Function

10.1 An officer's function is to advise Members on all matters of planning 
policy and procedure in their determination of planning and related 
applications by: 

(a) Providing impartial and professional advice. 

(b) Making sure that all the necessary information is available for a 
decision to be made. 

(c) Providing a clear and sufficient analysis of the issues including 
development plan policies and all other material considerations. 

(d) Giving a clear recommendation. 

(e) Carrying out the decisions of the Committee. 

In Addition 

10.2 (a) Impartial advice will be given to prospective applicants  
 prior to submitting an application.  Advice will reflect approved 

Council planning policy.  It will then be made clear that such 
advice will be without prejudice to any subsequent 
recommendation or formal decision by the Committee or a 
decision made under delegated powers. 

(b) All application sites will be visited. 

(c) Officers will endeavour to deal with applications and make final 
recommendations for the grant or refusal of permission in a 
timely manner without undue delay , whilst ensuring that 
sufficient time is allowed for consultation to take place where 
required and as set out in the Statement of Community 
Involvement

(d) All applications will be considered by at least two officers, i.e. 
the case officer plus the officer responsible for the final decision 
and/or recommendation. 

(e) Members of the public, applicants, etc. will not be advised of the 
officer's final recommendation to Committee until agendas have 
been sent to Members, although officers can use their judgment 
where the indication of a likely recommendation would be of 

APPENDIX 12

Page 135



Updated August 2012 

______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

particular assistance to an applicant or objector and is unlikely to 
cause difficulties for any other interested parties 

(f) In all dealings with applicants, agents, and the public officers 
should maintain a courteous and professional relationship 
adhering to the Council's policies and officer codes ensuring that 
all parties are treated fairly and respecting people's rights. 

(g) When an application is submitted by an officer involved in the 
planning process the officer shall advise the Head of Planning.  
Such applications shall not be determined under delegated 
powers.

(h) Where an officer has a relationship with any applicant, agent or 
organisation that could lead to a third party suggestion of bias, 
the officer will inform the Head of Planning in writing and take no 
part in processing or determining the application. 

(i) Officers should not, under any circumstances, accept gifts or 
hospitality beyond simple basic refreshment where necessary or 
unavoidable.  If, however, a degree of hospitality is unavoidable, 
it should be ensured that this is of the minimum and its receipt is 
declared as soon as possible.  All offers of gifts and hospitality, 
whether accepted or not must be entered in the hospitality 
record book, with the exception of simple basic refreshment. 

11. Decisions Contrary to Officer Recommendation and/or 
Development Plan

11.1 The law requires that where the development plan is relevant, 
decisions should be taken in accordance with it unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 

11.2 In discussing and then determining a planning application Members 
should confine themselves to the planning merits of the case and the 
reasons for making a final decision should be clear and convincing and 
supported by planning evidence.  All decisions must be founded on 
planning reasons and there must be planning evidence to substantiate 
them.

11.3 There is no reason in law why a Planning Committee may not make a 
decision contrary to the officer's recommendation, whether it is for 
approval or refusal.  Nevertheless, the law does require that in the case 
of refusals of planning permission detailed reasons are given, and it is 
clearly important that where Members have made a decision contrary 
to an officer's recommendations the reasons for the decision should be 

APPENDIX 12

Page 136



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Code Of Conduct in Relation to Planning Matters 
Updated August 2012 

______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 - Code Of Conduct in Relation to Planning Matters 333 

made clear such that there can be no suspicion of the decision being 
made for non-planning reasons.  In such a situation, therefore, whether 
the decision by Members is to approve or refuse permission, the 
planning reasons should be clearly minuted, together with a reference 
to the evidence to substantiate them. 

12. Consequences of Failure to Comply with Code

12.1 The Code sets out the standards that the Council will operate in dealing 
with planning applications.  Members and officers should realise that 
failure to comply with this Code may have legal consequences. 

12.2  These include: 

(a)       Investigation by the Ombudsman if complaints are received 
about the manner in which a planning application has been dealt 
with. In determining whether there has been maladministration 
the current test is that members must “at all times avoid any 
occasion for suspicion and any appearance of improper conduct” 
and must not allow “the impression to be given that (the 
Member) is or may be using his position to promote a private or 
personal interest”. Individuals involved may be named and the 
Council may be found guilty of maladministration and ordered to 
compensate the claimant. 

(b) Appeal to the Secretary of State.  As well as granting planning 
permission he can award costs against the Council if it has acted 
unreasonably - that can include bias and also whether the 
decision has been taken for non-planning reasons. 

(c) Court action to quash a planning decision either if a real danger 
of bias is shown or it is demonstrated that a decision was taken 
for non-planning reasons.  Costs will be awarded against the 
Council which will have to re-determine the application correctly. 

APPENDIX 12

Page 137



Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 

GUIDANCE NOTE ON GENERAL PROCEDURES
AT PLANNING AND HIGHWAYS COMMITTEE 

 MEETINGS

Issue Date: August 2012 

INDEX TO CONTENTS 

Index 338

Introduction 340

1 Members’ Training 340

2 Chair’s briefing 341

3 The Public Nature of Committee Meetings 341

4 Obtaining Advice on the Exclusion of the Press and Public 342

5 The Submission Of Late And/Or Confidential Information 343

6 The Submission of Defamatory And Offensive Information 344

7 Unreasonable Conduct in Decision Making 344

8 Maintaining Public Confidence in the Committees 346

9 Maintaining Public Confidence in the Role of Planning Officers 346

10 Allegations Of Misconduct Of Officers 347

11 Commencement of Committee Meeting 349

12 Meeting Procedure and Decision Making 349

13 Requests for Site Visits 350

14 Calling For A Public Inquiry 351

15 Declarations of Interest 352

APPENDIX 13

Page 138



Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 

16 Observers and Public Speaking at Committee Meeting 352

17 Role of the Chair 353

18 After The Committee 353

APPENDIX 13

Page 139



Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 

Introduction

This Guidance is for Planning and Highways Committee Members attending 
Committees and is intended to supplement the Corporate Code Of Conduct 
For Members, (the Code of Conduct) and any Code Of Conduct for Council 
Members And Officers In Relation To Planning Matters issued from time to 
time by the City Council with regard to the operation of Committees and the 
determination of Planning matters 

This Guidance is not binding upon Members but sets out examples of both 
best practice and inappropriate conduct to aid in the interpretation of the 
above Codes and it is in the best interests of the City Council, the Committees 
and individual Members to follow this guidance, as compliance or non-
compliance with this Guidance may be a material consideration in any 
subsequent investigation of a complaint as to Member’s conduct. This
Guidance Note is on general procedures for Committees and specific 
guidance on particular matters such as Telecommunications will be issued 
from time to time by the legal contact officers for Members.

The aim of this Guidance is to reduce the number of situations where things 
said or done by Members attending the Committees are misconstrued 
resulting in damage to the Council’s reputation and loss of confidence in the 
planning system unnecessary legal challenges, planning appeals and awards 
of costs against the City Council 

This Guidance may be amended at any time to accommodate changes in the 
law, procedure and best practice and revised copies will be circulated to all 
Members prior to the next meeting of the relevant Committee.

1. Members’ Training

  Members are reminded that determining matters under the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and related legislation at a Committee 
requires a degree of knowledge and familiarity of planning law and 
procedure on their part. Member training is offered as a prerequisite to 
all new Members to Committees and regular updates and training for 
existing Members is offered by Planning Officers as is required due to 
legislative or policy change.  

  No Member may be appointed to serve on a Planning and Highways 
Committee until they have received the necessary training. This is to 
ensure that correct procedures are followed and proper planning 
considerations are employed in decision making.  The integrity of the 
planning system and the need for public confidence require this. 

APPENDIX 13

Page 140



Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 

    

2 Chair’s Briefing Meetings

Chair’s Briefing Meetings will be held, subject to the discretion of the 
Chair of the relevant Committee in consultation with Officers, and will 
generally be advisable to deal with circumstances such as the late 
submission of relevant information and of procedural issues concerning 
the conduct of the Committee hearing which have arisen after 
publication of the Agenda. If the Agenda does not raise any such 
issues, the Chair of the Committee may therefore dispense with any 
Briefing Meeting. 

2.1 Planning and Highways Committee Briefing Meetings

2.1.1 The role of any Briefing Meeting which is held is to basically, allow 
developers to present large-scale development proposals to the 
Committee early in the planning process, and wherever possible at the 
pre-application stage, so that the developers will benefit from early 
feedback on any concerns that the Committee Members may have 
about the proposal.  This gives the developer the opportunity to amend 
their proposals if they wish and avoids the possibility that the 
Committee’s eventual decision on the application might come as a 
surprise to the developer.  Planning Committee Members are required 
to attend any Briefings to ensure that developers get any feedback 
necessary.

2.2      Such meetings are not to be used for discussion of the merits of any 
proposal.

2.3 Where a legal issue is raised during a Briefing Meeting concerning a 
point of law or procedure, such as to the exclusion of the press and 
public (see paragraph 4 below) specialist legal advice must be sought 
from the Legal Services contact Officer for that meeting of the 
Committee.  No Members other than Committee Members should 
attend briefing meetings. 

3. The Public Nature of Committee Meetings 

3.1 All Committees are public meetings of a committee of the City Council 
and it is a legal requirement that the public and the press are admitted 
to all such meetings.

APPENDIX 13

Page 141



Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 

3.2 The issue of transparency of proceedings is especially important in 
planning matters where a controversial application determined by an 
officer under a delegated power or in a closed session may lead to 
unfounded allegations of bias which can only be removed by having 
the matter determined in public. A controversial application in this 
context may mean a matter which is relatively simple to determine in 
terms of planning policy, but which may encounter significant public 
opposition due to the nature and proximity of the anticipated use e.g. a 
major metropolitan landfill site 250 metres from a small town. 

3.3 In addition Planning Authorities are expected to consider the views of 
local residents in determining planning applications, with the failure to 
do so resulting in a potential award of costs at a subsequent planning 
appeal. Excluding the press and public could therefore be used against 
the City Council to make a claim for such costs.

3.4 The Committee is a Regulatory Body for the purposes of the Council 
Procedure Rules in that it discharges on behalf of the City Council 
those planning and highways regulation duties imposed by statute. 
This means that the cap as to length of meeting under Clause 5.10 
Part 4, Council Procedure Rules does not apply to meetings of the 
Committee so as to allow full access to the public to all items on the 
Agenda of the Committee without premature termination of the public 
right to make representations caused by overrunning. 

4. Obtaining Advice on the Exclusion of The Press And Public    

4.1 On those very rare occasions where the exclusion of the press and 
public from a meeting may be required, specialist legal advice should 
have been obtained from the Legal Services contact officer before this 
issue is raised at the start the meeting of the Committee to ensure that 
Members and officers are familiar with the procedure and that it is 
correct to apply the procedure in that case.

4.2 In any circumstance where this issue has been raised for the first time 
after the start of the Committee, an adjournment of the Committee
should be obtained to allow for specialist legal advice to be sought from 
Legal Services contact officer and given to the Members. Legal 
Services will ensure that where possible a contact officer is available 
for every Area Committee meeting. Officers will be notified in advance 
prior to the start of the Committee meeting the identity of the contact 
officer. Other matters on the agenda can be dealt with by Members 
whilst this advice is being sought to avoid undue delay. 

APPENDIX 13

Page 142



Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 

5 The Submission Of Late and/or Confidential Information 

5.1 Sometimes information is submitted to a Member by an objector or 
other third party which if it were received in time would normally be 
incorporated into a report on an agenda, or supplementary agenda, but 
for one reason or another has been received too late for this to occur. 
This information may be in the form of a written submission or a set of 
photographs or some other audio-visual aid, submitted just before the 
Committee Meeting directly to Members by persons supporting or 
objecting to a particular item on the Agenda and without notice to the 
Officers.

5.2 If such late information is submitted directly to a Member, the Member 
should pass on this information as soon as possible to the Planning 
Officer (or the Committee Secretary if the meeting is about to 
commence) to determine the best course of action given the amount of 
information received and the stage of the proceedings, as well as when 
this information first became available for submission. Depending upon 
these factors this may mean that the particular item in question has to 
be deferred until the next meeting of the Committee. This should only 
occur in the most extreme circumstances when determination on the 
date of the current Committee is impossible. 

5.3 The deliberate late submission of information on a contentious item 
should not be used as an excuse for a deferral of that item to the next 
Committee. Members should therefore consider very carefully any 
circumstances where a party has had access to information relevant to 
the determination of an item but has withheld submitting this 
information until after the publication of the Agenda. In such 
circumstances it may be advisable to put such an item to the end of the 
Agenda and/or allow a short adjournment for officers to assess the late 
information and make a verbal report back to the Committee to the 
Committee. This would prevent undue delay arising in the 
determination of contentious issues which might lead to unnecessary 
planning appeals.

5.4 Sometimes a person will attempt to supply information to a Member 
which is claimed to be confidential in nature. Members should 
remember that they have a general duty of confidentiality under 
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of the Code of Conduct, and any action taken by 
the Member concerning the use of such confidential information should 
be in accordance with that duty. 

APPENDIX 13

Page 143



Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 

5.5 The principle of transparency in the planning process will generally find 
against any relevant information to the planning process being withheld 
from public scrutiny, restricting any right of confidentiality which may be 
sought by the person providing the information. In such circumstances 
the Member will normally be required to ask the person supplying the 
confidential information to decide between openly providing this 
information or of withdrawing this information from consideration 
whatsoever, so as to comply with both the duty under paragraph 3 of 
part 1 of the Code of Conduct, and the public principle of transparency. 

5.6 Only where the City Council have been advised by the appropriate 
authorities that there is a legitimate and well founded threat to life or 
property from the publication of such information, would a right of 
confidentiality be ever considered to exist sufficient to overcome the 
principle of transparency. Mere commercial or personal interests on 
their own will never justify the breach of the principle of transparency. 

6 The Submission of Defamatory And Offensive Information

6.1     Overtly defamatory or offensive remarks in a representation will not be 
accepted, even if legitimate planning issues are also raised.  Its 
publication would not only bring the planning process into dispute, but 
may also render the Council liable in damages if malice can be proved.  
Correspondents will be informed that they will need to be resubmitted 
with such comments removed. 

6.2 There may be instances where an unsubstantiated allegation may 
contain information material to the determination of a course of 
enforcement action or a planning application.  A developer or land 
owner may regard the allegations as defamatory, but if they cannot be 
safely ignored and are material to the delegated or Committee decision 
to be made, their consideration will be justified.

7.  Unreasonable Conduct In Decision Making 

7.1 Members must be aware that making a decision based on grounds not 
related to planning issues will be considered to be unreasonable 
conduct by both Planning Inspectors and the High Court, resulting in 
this decision causing an award of costs against the City Council at a 
planning or enforcement appeal and/or the decision being quashed on 
judicial review with an award of costs against the City Council.  

APPENDIX 13

Page 144



Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 

7.2 All planning authorities have the discretion not to adopt the 
professional or technical advice of its Planning Officers, so that a 
decision against the advice of the Planning Officer will not 
automatically be considered to be unreasonable conduct. Regard 
should be had however to paragraphs 6.01 and 6.02 of Part 1 of the 
Code of Conduct, concerning decision making.

7.3 Members will sometimes face considerable public support for or 
against a particular item on the Agenda of the meeting. Whilst the 
views of local residents have to be taken into account when 
determining a planning application, if those views are not relevant to a 
planning issue it is unreasonable conduct for Members to take them 
into account when making a decision. Planning Officers seek to identify 
planning and non-planning issues raised as part of the consultation 
process and decisions as an aid to Members in this regard.

7.4 Decisions which ignore Local or National Policy Guidance will generally 
be deemed to be unreasonable and may result in costs being awarded 
to the appellant. Decisions which seek to evade National or Local 
Policy Guidance by adopting grounds for refusal which are in line with 
that policy but which are clearly not applicable to the circumstances of 
the particular application will also generally be deemed to be 
unreasonable and may result in costs. Again Planning Officers will refer 
to relevant National and Local policy guidance in their reports as an aid 
to Members in this regard.

7.5 Disagreement with the Planning Officers will normally be reasonable 
where it involves Members giving different weight to certain material 
planning considerations, based on careful consideration of the advice 
given by planning officers and of the supporting evidence.  Planning 
decisions often involve weighing up conflicting considerations leading 
to a balanced judgement and reports to the Planning Committee will 
indicate where there is conflicting evidence or where a 
recommendation is finely balanced.  Genuine differences of opinion 
between the Planning Officer and the Members on such issues can 
therefore exist without either bringing the planning system into 
disrepute or risking an award of costs.

7.6 Members should also be aware that when authorising enforcement 
proceedings that unreasonable decisions will put the Council at 
financial risk.  A Stop Notice can create substantial costs for a 
developer or land owner and the Council is only protected from a 
substantial compensation claim if the development being stopped is 
unlawful.  Any Enforcement Notice that requires the owner/occupier to 
do more than is required may not only result in an award of costs but 

APPENDIX 13

Page 145



Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 

may also result in a substantial claim for compensation should the 
accompanying Enforcement Notice be dismissed on appeal. The 
Planning Officers report will provide guidance for Members as to what 
is reasonable in the circumstances of the case on these points. 

8. Maintaining Public Confidence in the Committees 

8.1 Public confidence in the local operation of the planning system can be 
undermined by Members making unreasonable decisions (as set out in 
paragraph 7 above), as this may  result in an increase in the number of 
appeals which the City Council lose. Success on these appeals may 
encourage disappointed applicants to make appeals for all applications 
in the hope that an Inspector will be more likely to grant planning 
permission than the Committee. In such a situation the City Council 
would have an increasing amount of officer time and resources spent 
on matters not suitable for appeal in the first place. 

8.2 As currently constituted there are two Committees each served by their 
own Members. Members should not at any time in the course of a 
meeting of the Committee comment at all upon any matter which is, or 
has been, or will be on the Agenda of the other Committee, or about 
the conduct of any other Member or Planning Officer in relation to an 
Committee.

8.3 Members should also be careful not to give the impression or 
appearance of joining in or reacting to any such comments made by 
member of the public, press, or other persons, which may be 
misconstrued in a positive or negative fashion as being in favour or 
against the decision of another Committee.  

8.4 Members should be especially careful when dealing with the media in 
respect of matters pertaining to the Committees, as adversely reported 
comments may also result in a loss in public confidence.  

8.5 Members should note that conduct undermining confidence in the 
planning system may also constitute conduct bringing the authority into 
disrepute under paragraph 4 of Part 1 of the Code of Conduct.

9 Maintaining Public Confidence in the Role of Planning Officers

9.1 Members should at all times during meetings of Committees maintain a 
professional relationship with Planning Officers as set out in paragraph 
2.05 of the Code of Conduct, sticking strictly to the Items contained 
within the Agenda and to the order of business as set out in the 

APPENDIX 13

Page 146



Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 

Agenda, rather than seek to raise matters with the Planning Officer not 
on the Agenda which may be misconstrued by those present. 

9.2 Members should be careful as regards individual approaches to 
Planning Officers immediately before or after Committees. If the 
approach is in relation to an item on the Agenda, this may be 
misconstrued as an attempt by other persons present to influence the 
Planning Officer’s professional and impartial advice and give rise to the 
appearance of a personal or prejudicial interest existing where no such 
interest exists. All matters pertaining to an item on the Agenda, 
including questions to the Planning Officer should be dealt with under 
the normal order of business in open meeting. 

9.3 Members who would be barred from an item on the Agenda of a 
particular Committee due to having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
should take special care when making any approach to the Planning 
Officer. If these approaches are immediately prior to or immediately 
after the Committee meeting, or that particular Agenda Item, then this 
may be misconstrued as an attempt to unduly influence the Committee 
through the Planning Officer, even if the approach is unrelated to 
anything on the Agenda. 

9.4 Members can legitimately question the views of planning officers in a 
robust manner and openly express disagreement with their 
professional views. This can lead to a better understanding of the 
issues involved by all persons present, to the benefit of the planning 
system.

9.5 Members should however seek to avoid an unduly adversarial, 
repetitive or demeaning style of questioning, as this may reflect badly 
upon both the planning officer and the Member to the detriment of 
public confidence in the operation of the planning system. It is 
important that the professional standing and credibility of planning 
officers and the objectivity and efficacy of Committee Members is 
maintained in order that the public has confidence in the Council’s 
planning system and is not unduly sceptical in its operation. 

9.6 Members are further referred to paragraphs 2.04 through to 2.07 
(inclusive) of the Code of Conduct which deals with the general 
obligations between Members and Officers.

10 Allegations Of Misconduct Of Officers 

10.1 Members should be reminded that Planning Officers and other Officers 
will often work with the professionals acting on behalf of a developer to 

APPENDIX 13

Page 147



Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 

improve a poor or marginal scheme through a series of negotiations 
over often quite lengthy periods of time. This is part of the duties of 
Planning Officers and does not of itself imply that there has been 
improper collusion between the Planning Officer and the Developer, or 
that the Developer has exercised undue influence over the Planning 
process.

10.2 If a Member reasonably believes that improper collusion exists, or that 
undue influence is being exercised by a Developer in respect of a 
Planning Officer then this allegation should be notified to the Monitoring 
Officer before the meeting of the Committee. The Monitoring Officer will 
then inform the Director of Development Services and take action with 
regard to informing external investigators such as the South Yorkshire 
Police. The Member should thereafter provide whatever evidence or 
assistance may be required in the proper investigation of this matter by 
the City Council and/or the Police.

10.3 In the event of an allegation of improper collusion or undue influence 
being raised prior to the Committee meeting, the planning case file and 
Report will be reviewed by a Planning Officer senior to the Planning 
Officer preparing the report and previously unconnected to the 
application and any amendments to the Report will be presented by 
that senior Planning Officer. 

10.4 In no circumstances should a Member seek to make an allegation of 
improper collusion or undue influence in the course of the Committee 
meeting itself. Aside from disrupting the proper conduct of the meeting 
and bringing the planning system into disrepute, this would prejudice 
the proper investigation of the allegation and personally leave the 
Member open to investigation for misconduct and an action for slander 
by the Developer and his agents, as well as the Planning Officer, 
should the allegation not be substantiated. A Member should not also 
therefore seek to defer a determination following an allegation of 
misconduct made by a member of the public.

10.5 Members need to be aware that conduct which falls outside these 
guidelines can be the subject of an application for judicial review on the 
ground that the Committee failed to deal with the particular application 
in a proper manner: it does not matter that the decision may have been 
correct in planning terms. It could also justify an application for costs in 
a planning appeal. Allegations of bias and/or improper collusion could 
potentially also be the subject of an action for slander; statements of 
that nature only attract qualified privilege which can be withdrawn if 
malice is proved. 

APPENDIX 13

Page 148



Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 

11 Commencement of Committee Meeting

11.1 Prior to the start of the meeting the Committee Secretary will have 
found out which members of the public wish to speak on which items 
on the agenda. The order of the agenda should therefore be revised in 
consultation with the Chair, to move those items up the agenda which 
have the most interest to those members of the public present so as to 
allow it to be dealt with first and to avoid disruption of the meeting.

11.2 The Committee Secretary will then announce the revised order of 
business and will explain, for the benefit of the public, the procedure for 
addressing the Committee. The Committee Secretary will also 
announce, after consultation with the Planning Officer, if any 
application is now not to be considered at the current meeting or has 
been completely withdrawn by the applicant. 

11.3 In respect of applications which are now to be considered at the next 
Committee Meeting, any members of the public present who attended 
the meeting of the Committee to speak to that application should be 
offered the chance to either speak to that application with their 
comments incorporated into the revised report for that application, or to 
return to the next meeting of the Committee when the item would 
normally return for consideration.  The preferred option would be for 
members of the public to attend to speak to that application at the next 
Committee meeting. 

11.4 To speed up the proceedings, it will be assumed that Members will 
have read the reports on the agenda.  Presentations will however be 
invited where they help to focus the Committee on the material 
considerations, where there are supplementary reports or to help the 
public understand why decisions are being made. 

11.5 Members leaving the room during consideration of an item can not 
thereafter take part in the decision on that item upon their return, as 
they cannot be seen to have be in full possession of the information 
required to make that determination, and may have been influenced by 
events occurring outside the Committee during their absence.

12 Meeting Procedure and Decision Making

12.1 Members are reminded of the procedure for considering each 
application as follows:- 

  Planning Officer introduction to report, where appropriate (see 
paragraph 11.4 above) . 

APPENDIX 13

Page 149



Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 

  Public representations – speaker(s) against recommendation first; 
speaker(s) for recommendation second. 

  Planning Officer response to public representations. 

  Member report back on any site visit held. 

  Member questions. 

  Planning Officer responses. 

  Member comments. 

  Voting on Planning Officer recommendations (with any amendments/ 
suggested changes/ additional conditions, etc.) as per Council 
Procedure Rules. 

  Give reasons for grant or refusal of application. 

  When granting a planning application, to indicate whether or not it 
should be required that any amendments to the application which need 
planning permission which are subsequently submitted by the applicant 
to be reported to the Committee for a decision. 

12.2 Members may ask for the vote to be recorded, as normally no record is 
taken of the numbers for or against on a particular determination, only 
whether or not the matter was agreed or refused by the Committee. 
Clause 18.4 of part 4, Council Procedure Rules sets out in full the 
proper procedure for a formal recorded vote.

12.3 Separate guidance in the form of a Guidance Note To Chair On 
Disruption Of Planning And Highways Committee By Members Of The 
Public exists in relation to the disruption of Committee Meetings by 
members of the public, which includes the intimidation of Members. 

13 Requests for Site Visits 

13.1 Wherever possible, planning officers and the Chair of the Committee 
will try and anticipate where a site visit might be required and organise 
it in advance of the Committee, to avoid unnecessary delay.  A clear 
case should be presented by any Member suggesting an additional site 
visit and consideration given to any advice from officers present about 

APPENDIX 13

Page 150



Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 

available information that might negate the need for a visit. Paragraph 
6 of the Code of Conduct contains specific rules regarding this issue. 

13.2 When the Planning Officer suggests a decision on an application be 
deferred pending a site visit and a member of the public is present at 
that meeting and may be unable to attend the following meeting, then 
he/she should be allowed to speak and a note of such representations 
will be made and taken into account when that application is 
considered.

13.3 Members are reminded that the Code of Conduct at paragraphs 6 and 
7 regulates Members conduct with regard to both formal Committee 
Site Visits and individual site visits. 

13.4 Attendance at a formal Committee Site Visit is not mandatory for 
Members voting on the subsequent item on the Agenda, but Members 
are expected to attend if they feel that they could not make a decision 
without a site visit in any particular case or to ensure that sufficient 
Members attend to maintain public confidence in the need for the visit.  
If a Member cannot for whatever reason attend upon the formal 
Committee Site Visit and feel that they need to visit the application site 
before making their decision, they should undertake an individual site 
visit prior to the Committee, or abstain from the decision at the 
Committee.

14 Calling for A Public Inquiry  

14.1 When an application is refused, and is likely to be the subject of an 
appeal there is sometimes pressure at a Committee from objectors and 
other members of the public present for a public inquiry to be held in 
respect of any potential appeal, as it is erroneously believed that the 
City Council have the power to hold such an inquiry, and that a public 
inquiry will be more likely to be swayed by the representations of the 
objectors.

14.2 The Planning Inspectorate determine which of the three types of 
appeal is the most appropriate for any particular appeal. The three 
types of appeal are :- 

  Written representations; 

  Informal  hearing; 

  Public inquiry. 

 An appeal will be written representations if both the appellant and the 
Council agree to it. These appeals are undertaken purely on the basis 

APPENDIX 13

Page 151



Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 

of documents submitted by the parties and are the cheapest and 
quickest form of appeal. 

14.3 If  there is no agreement as to written representations being the most 
appropriate form of appeal then the appeal will be either an informal 
hearing or a public inquiry at the sole decision of the Planning 
Inspectorate. Both parties may make representations regarding which 
is the more appropriate method of appeal, but the decision is solely 
that of the Planning Inspectorate. 

14.4 In practical terms there is very little difference between an informal 
hearing and a public inquiry for an objector as both are held in public 
and both allow for objectors to make representations.  The only real 
difference is that the public inquiry allows for evidence to be given 
under oath. All three types of appeal will deal with exactly the same 
material planning considerations.  An appeal is as likely to be upheld 
on it planning merits after written representations as it would at an 
informal hearing or a public inquiry.  

15 Declarations of Interest

15.1 Members should be clear about declaring an interest and when they 
should leave the room when the matter is discussed. Part 2 of the 
Code of Conduct contains specific Rules regarding this issue.  If in 
doubt, Members should seek specialist legal advice from the Legal 
Contact Officer beforehand. Whilst officers will give advice, it should be 
noted that the decision itself rests with the Member. 

16 Observers and Public Speaking at Committee Meetings

16.1 The current practice of allowing only one spokesperson for each 
principal point of view is at the Chair’s discretion. There are rules 
regarding this issue at paragraph 5 of the Code of Conduct. Whilst the 
public do not have a right to speak, there will be times when additional 
speakers will wish to make representations. Sometimes denying a 
member of the public the chance to speak can create difficulties and 
Chairs are reminded to exercise this discretion having regard to the 
right to a fair hearing under Article 6.1 of the Human Rights Act 1998 
and paragraph 5.2(c) of the Code of Conduct.

16.2 Members’ are reminded that public speaking is normally limited to a 
maximum of 5 minutes (as opposed to 3 minutes at Council and 
Cabinet meetings). Paragraph 5.2(d)-(g) of the Code of Conduct 
contains rules regarding this point. The Committee Secretary will keep 
a check of the time and inform the Chair when the 5 minutes is about to 

APPENDIX 13

Page 152



Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 

elapse. It would be helpful at that time if the Chair would advise the 
speaker to draw to a conclusion if it is not apparent that the speaker 
has nearly finished. A note of the public speakers and the key points 
made by them will be made by the Committee Secretary and retained 
on file with the agenda. (do they?) 

16.3 Cabinet Members attending Committee meetings as observers should 
take no part in the conduct of the meetings and should only contribute 
when specifically invited to do so by the Committee. The procedure for 
Councillors wishing to address the Committee is the same as for 
members of the public. 

17 Role of the Chair

17.1 The Chair, in running the meeting, should be mindful of the need to 
retain a degree of independence as far as possible, and to be fair to all 
Members of the Committee. It is suggested that best practice be 
followed by the Chair in being the last speaker on an item of business, 
prior to the vote being taken.

17.2 If there are equal numbers of votes for and against a decision, the 
Chair will have a second or casting vote in accordance with Clause 
18.2 of part 4, Council Procedure Rules. There is no restriction on how 
the Chair chooses to exercise a casting vote. 

17.3 The Chair is expected to maintain order and to allow the Committee to
perform it proper functions without disruption by either Members of the 
Committee or by members of the public. The powers of the Chair in 
relation to dealing with disruption by Members of the public are set out 
in a separate Guidance Note to Chair On Disruption Of Planning And 
Highways Committee By Members Of The Public. Committee Members 
should not seek to condone the behaviour of members of the public in 
acts of disruption, and support the Chair in the proper exercise of those 
powers under the Council Procedure Rules.  

17.4 Feedback from businesses and members of the public who have 
attended Committee meetings suggest that they can sometimes be 
confused as to why decisions have been made.  The Chair has a role 
in ensuring that decisions are clearly explained, especially if against 
the officer recommendation in the report.

18 After the Committee

18.1 The determination by the Committee may not be the end of the 
planning process in respect of some applications. Where an applicant 

APPENDIX 13

Page 153



Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 

appeals, the process may continue for up to a year after the Committee
meeting. Members should therefore be aware of outstanding appeals 
which are reported back on the Committee Agenda, and avoid 
statements and conduct which might give the indication of 
unreasonable conduct in the making of the decision. 

18.2 Whilst Members would be free to join and even organise lobby groups 
related to a particular application after the determination of a decision 
(subject to paragraph 17.1 above), Members should bear in mind that a 
duplicate application may be made by the applicant to the application 
refused which will require determination in the future. It may well be 
that Members may be forced to declare an interest and possibly be 
barred from taking part in this subsequent determination, if their 
statements and conduct indicate that they could not approach this 
duplicate application with an open mind.

18.3 Members must bear in mind that Planning and Legal Officers are under 
a duty to pursue every such appeal against refusal with due diligence 
and rigour under their separate professional codes irrespective of their 
initial advice to the Committee. Committee Members should not 
therefore seek to influence the conduct of any subsequent appeal case 
by the City Council. Members should be aware that they are able to 
make representations at all types of appeal in their own name as an 
objector or supporter to the development, and attend in person at both 
informal hearings and public inquiries to make those representations. 

18.4 The decision of the Inspector will be reported back to the Committee at 
the first available opportunity. Members should not use this report back 
to comment adversely upon the Inspectors decision, or upon the 
conduct of the appeal, or the original application as this would 
undermine confidence in the planning system. In the overwhelming 
majority of planning appeals the Inspector will reach a decision 
substantially similar to the original report of the Planning Officer, 
dismissing the appeal against the decision of the Committee based
upon that report.

18.5 In a minority of cases the Inspector may uphold the appeal despite the 
Planning Officer’s report and the decision of the Committee. Whilst 
there is a right for Inspector’s decisions to be reviewed that is by an 
application for judicial review in the High Court based on evidence that 
the decision was unreasonable in planning terms or followed a 
misinterpretation of law or planning policy; it is not a right of appeal. 
Decisions to take judicial review proceedings may have considerable 
financial consequences for the Council and should therefore only be 
taken after obtaining Counsel’s opinion. Although the Director of Legal 

APPENDIX 13

Page 154



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 5 – Guidance Note on General Procedures at Planning and Highways 
Committees
______________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 5 – Guidance Note on General Procedures at Planning and  
Highways Committees       355  

Services has delegated powers to institute and defend legal 
proceedings generally, unless that is necessary to ensure that statutory 
timetables are met (in which case a report would be brought to the 
relevant Committee at the earliest opportunity) a decision to institute 
proceedings would be taken by the relevant Committee following a joint 
report by the Head of Planning and the Director of Legal Services. 

18.6 There will also be a very small number of appeals which have been 
dismissed following refusal by Committee Members contrary to 
Planning Officers advice. There may be good reasons for the decision 
of the Inspector in such cases which are unrelated to the quality of the 
advice given in the original report, but the Head of Planning will review 
the case and ensure that any lessons that need to be are learnt. 

APPENDIX 13

Page 155



Sheffield City Council - Constitution Part 5 – Guidance Note to Chairs on 
Disruption of Planning and Highways Committees by Members of the Public 
______________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________  

GUIDANCE NOTE TO CHAIRS ON DISRUPTION OF PLANNING 
AND HIGHWAYS COMMITTEES BY MEMBERS OF THE 

PUBLIC
(Issue Date: August 2012)  

This Guidance Note is aimed principally at Chairs of Committees, but should 
be noted by every Member attending at an Committee who may feel 
intimidated or frustrated by the interruption of the due process of the 
Committee. The undue interruption by members of the public acting in a 
disruptive fashion not only undermines the due planning process, but also 
delays other members of the public intending to speak to applications and 
issues which may affect them, causing frustration and disillusionment with the 
City Council and the planning process.  

1. Council Procedure Rules

1.1  Part 4, Rule 20 allows for the Chair to take action with regard to both 
individual and group disruption. It says: 

  “If a member of the public interrupts proceedings of a meeting the 
Chair shall warn him/her. If he/she continues the interruption or 
repeatedly interrupts, the Chair shall order his/her removal from the 
meeting room. In the case of meetings where there is a general 
disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the public the 
Chair shall order that part to be cleared.”

1.2 Interruption through disturbance may take many forms, and would 
include but is not limited to verbal interruptions such as shouting and 
swearing at Members, Officers and other members of the public or 
press present; engaging in a conversation with another member of the 
public whilst Members or officers are speaking; overrunning any 
allotted time to speak to the application or issue or the singing of 
songs.

1.3 Sometimes an interruption may take the form of an allegation of 
misconduct, corruption or discrimination against Members or Officers 
which may or not be related to an item on the Agenda. It is not within 
the remit of the Committee to consider such allegations, or to order an 
investigation of such allegations, and any such allegation raised must 
therefore be considered to be a disturbance of the meeting of the 
Committee. In such circumstances the Chair should first notify the 
member of the public that such allegations are not within the remit of 
the Committee, and that any such allegations, including any supporting 
evidence should be made to the proper body given the nature of the 
allegation. If the member of the public refuses to accept this then the 
formal warning at paragraph 2.1 should be read out. Interruption 
through disturbance may also include physical interruptions and would 

APPENDIX 14

Page 156



include physical violence directed at a Member or an Officer, or a 
member of the public or the press present. It would also include non-
violent conduct which may deemed to be intimidatory such as 
approaching or sitting next to a Member or Officer in the course of a 
Committee and staring at them. It would also include more formalised 
demonstrations such as large groups of members of the public 
brandishing placards, or refusing to sit until their matter had been dealt 
with, or handing out late material to Members. Finally gestures and 
expressions may also fall within the ambit of physical disturbance.

1.4  Interruptions caused by mobile phones and other such equipment 
including the use of television camera and recording equipment will 
also fall within Rule 20 should they result in a disruption of the 
Committee. Note that in the absence of disruption the use such devices 
will still be subject to the Chairs discretion under Rule 21. 

1.5  It should be noted that the power granted to the Chair by Rule 20 is 
restricted only to the meeting room of the Committee and does not 
include any other part of the Town Hall. Persons seeking to disrupt the 
Committee meeting from outside the meeting room cannot therefore be 
removed from the building under this Rule. In all such cases it will be 
necessary to contact the Town Hall Security Services and obtain 
proper authorisation for any such persons removal from the building. 
Where any disruption is due to criminal acts the South Yorkshire Police 
will need to be called.

2. Warnings

2.1  In the event of a disturbance the Chair should identify the person or 
person causing the disturbance and if warranted read out the following 
formal warning: 
“Due to the disturbance caused by you to the conduct of the meeting of 
the Committee, you are hereby issued with a warning in accordance 
with Rule 20 of Part 4 of Sheffield City Council’s Council Procedure 
Rules. Under this Rule should you create any further disturbance to the 
conduct of the Committee meeting I may order your removal from the 
meeting room.”

2.2 The Chair should ensure that the formal warning, and if possible the 
identity of the person or persons to whom the warning has been issued, 
is formally recorded by the Democratic Services Officer as part of the 
formal record of the Committee meeting.

2.3 Instead of a formal warning the Chair may use his discretion to issue 
an informal warning if the disturbance is in the Chairs opinion not 
serious, or is unintended to disrupt the Committee Meeting, i.e. two 
members of the public in a conversation. In such circumstances the 
Chair should ask the persons causing the disruption to please cease 
immediately the conduct causing the disruption, and remind them that 
this is a public meeting and that if they have private matters to discuss 

APPENDIX 14

Page 157



could they please do so outside. In this instance no record of the 
identity and warning should be made by the officer from Democratic 
Services.

3. Removal From The Meeting

3.1 After the issue of a formal warning under Rule 20 if the conduct is 
repeated by the same person or persons the Chair should read out the 
following statement:-
“Following the issue of a formal warning to you under Rule 20 I hereby 
order your removal from the meeting room for the duration of this 
Committee meeting in accordance with that Rule.”  

3.2  The Democratic Services Officer should where this is possible, formally 
take a note of the identity of the person or persons whose removal has 
been ordered in accordance with Rule 20.

3.3  If the person or persons who have been ordered to be removed from 
the Committee meeting refuse to leave the meeting room, they may be 
physically ejected from the meeting room as a trespasser provided 
reasonable force is used by the Town Hall Security Staff. They should 
be notified in the following terms:-
“You can remain outside the meeting room but should you seek to 
further disrupt the conduct of proceedings of the Committee, then the 
Town Hall Security Staff will be informed of the situation which may 
lead to your removal from the premises and/or the South Yorkshire 
Police being called.” 

APPENDIX 14

Page 158



Guidance for Members on Declaration of Interests

Additional section on Dispensation:- 

Dispensation

In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a 
member to take part in the business of the authority even if the member has a 
disclosable pecuniary interest relating to that business.

A dispensation will be able to be granted in the following circumstances – 

1. That so many members of the decision-making body have DPIs in a 
matter that it would “impede the transaction of the business”. In 
practice this means that the decision-making body would be inquorate 
as a result; 

2. That, without the dispensation, the representation of different political 
groups on the body transacting the business would be so upset as to 
alter the outcome of any vote on the matter. This assumes that 
members are predetermined to vote on party lines on the matter, in 
which case, it would be inappropriate to grant a dispensation to enable 
them to participate; 

3. That the authority considers that the dispensation is in the interests of 
persons living in the authority’s area; 

4. That, without a dispensation, no member of the Cabinet would be able 
to participate on this matter (so, the assumption is that, where the 
Cabinet would be inquorate as a result, the matter can then be dealt 
with by an individual Cabinet Member. It will be necessary to make 
provision in the scheme of delegations from the Leader to cover this, 
admittedly unlikely, eventuality); or 

5. That the authority considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a 
dispensation. 

Any grant of a dispensation must specify how long it lasts for, up to a 
maximum of 4 years. 

To obtain a dispensation, an elected member must write to the Monitoring 
Officer explaining why a dispensation is sought and desirable, and specifying 
the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring Officer may consult 
with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards Committee in relation 
to a request for dispensation. 

The Monitoring Officer will record the decision in writing and keep it with the 
Council’s Register of Interests, available for public inspection. 

APPENDIX 15

Page 159



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 7 – Management Structure and Proper Officers (Revised February 2012) 

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 7 – Management Structure and Proper Officers (Revised February 2012) 453  

MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE  

1.1 Chief Officers

Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service 

  Has overall corporate and management responsibility for the work of the 
Council, including the number and grade of officers required for the 
discharge of functions 

  May discharge the functions discharged to other officers in cases of 
urgency or emergency and in consultation with the Leader

Deputy Chief Executive 
Responsible for:-

  Performance and Communications  

  Scrutiny and Corporate Planning 

  Health Improvement and Health Inequalities 

  Support to SFP Health Partnership 

  Healthy City Project 

  Sheffield City Region 

  Strategy for Economy, Skills and Enterprise 

  Economic Investment Planning 

  Policy and Research 

  Voluntary Sector Strategy and Funding 

  City Information 

  Spatial Information applications including GIS 

  Democratic Services and  Member Development  

  Organisational Change, Customer Strategy 

  Governance & Involvement, including Elections 

  Emergency Planning / Business Continuity  

  Legal Services including Land Charges 

  Register Office 

Executive Director Resources 
Responsible for:- 

  Finance, including Revenues and Benefits through Capita contract 

  Commercial Services, including Corporate Procurement and Strategic 
Contract Management 

  Property Services and Facilities Management, including Kier 
Partnership

  Customer Services,  including Corporate Contact Centre and First 
Point and Complaints

  Transport Services 

APPENDIX 16

Page 160



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 7 – Management Structure and Proper Officers (Revised February 2012) 

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 7 – Management Structure and Proper Officers (Revised February 2012) 462  

plans showing proposed 

prescribed improvement or 

building lines. 

Registration of the 
People Act 1983 

Description
Proper Officer 

Section 8 Officer to act s Registration 

Officer for the registration of 

Parliamentary and Local 

Government Electors. 

Elections Officer 

Section 28 Officer to act as Acting 

Returning Officer at 

Parliamentary Elections. 

Chief Executive  

Section 35 Officer appointed as Returning 

Officer for local elections. 

Deputy Chief Executive 

Section 67 Officer to whom declarations 

and public notice of election 

agents’ appointments are made.

Elections Officer 

Section 131 Officer responsible for providing 

accommodation for holding 

election court. 

Elections Officer 

Buildings Act 1984 Description Proper Officer 

Section 78 (8) Officer responsible for taking 

immediate action in relation to 

dangerous buildings. 

Director of Development 

Services

Local Government 
Finance Act 1988 

Description Proper Officer 

APPENDIX 16

Page 161



Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 7 – Management Structure and Proper Officers (Revised February 2012) 

Sheffield City Council - Constitution 
Part 7 – Management Structure and Proper Officers (Revised February 2012) 463  

Section 114 Officer responsible for making 

financial reports to the authority.

Executive Director, 
Resources.

Section 116 Officer responsible for notifying 

auditor of date, time and place 

of meeting to consider Section 

114 report and of decision of 

such meeting. 

Executive Director, 
Resources.

Local Government & 
Housing Act 1989 

Description
Proper Officer 

Section 2 (4) Officer with whom the list of 

politically restricted posts shall 

be deposited. 

Chief Executive. 

Section 4 Officer designated as Head of 

Paid Service. 

Chief Executive. 

Section 5 Officer Designated as 

Monitoring Officer. 

Deputy Chief
ExecutiveDirector of 
Legal Services.

Local Government 
(Committees & 
Political Groups) 
Regulations 1990 

Description Proper Officer 

Section 8 (1) & (5) Officer to whom notice is 

delivered about the constitution 

of a political group, or the 

change of name of a political 

group.

Joint Head of 
Democratic Services. 

Section 9 and 10 Officer to whom notice is 

delivered about a Councillor’s 

Joint Head of 
Democratic Services. 

APPENDIX 16

Page 162



 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

LORD MAYOR’S 
    

ANNUAL REPORT 
 

2011/2012 
 

    

 
 

 
 
 

                                             
 
 
 
 

                                                                                                  
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 163



 

- 2 - 
 

 
 REPORT TO COUNCIL  

5th September 2012 
  
  
LORD MAYOR’S ANNUAL REPORT 2011/2012 
 
1. Introduction 
  
1.1 This report provides a review of my year in office and includes a number of 

suggested improvements. 
  
2. Thanks 
  
2.1 I would like to start by thanking my former colleagues on the Council for 

enabling me to be Lord Mayor for the year 2011/12.  It was a great honour to 
be elected as the 115th Lord Mayor of the City and my Consort and I will 
always remember our fascinating and rewarding year in office. 

  
2.2 I would also like to thank all those people in Sheffield and elsewhere who 

have been so welcoming and friendly and who are so appreciative of their 
engagement with the Lord Mayor.  On balance, I believe that Sheffield values 
and respects the role the Lord Mayor plays in the City and would wish the 
office to continue.  

  
2.3 Thanks are also due to the Rev Canon Peter Ingram for his support during 

the year as my Chaplain and to my Consort, John, who managed to fit in so 
many engagements whilst having to cope with the many challenges of a 
rapidly expanding business.   

  
3. My Year In Office 
  
3.1 The Lord Mayor is involved with so many types of engagement that I can 

only give a flavour of what we experienced.   I saw engagements as 
essentially falling into four categories: regular engagements that every Lord 
Mayor is requested to do; responding to invites that come in from a whole 
host of community groups, schools, businesses, churches, old people’s 
homes, charities, arts and sports organisations, Council Departments etc.; 
events that the Lord Mayor initiates him/herself and charity fund-raising 

  
 Regular Engagements 
  
3.2 Just a few of the regular engagements include British Citizenship 

ceremonies, Remembrance Sunday, Veterans’ Day, the installation of the 
Master Cutler (and I was delighted to be able to speak at the installation of 
Pam Liversidge (OBE DL)) as the first woman Master Cutler), the Legal 
Service, various professional dinners and the Civic Services of other mayors. 

  
  
  

Page 164



 

- 3 - 
 

 Events 
  
3.3 The Lord Mayor receives so many invites that I can only give a few 

examples.  July last year was full of community events – galas, festivals, 
plant sales, fairs.  December is the month for carol concerts.  Throughout the 
year there was an ongoing programme of major sports events and Sheffield 
International Venues and the Major Events Unit are to be congratulated on 
securing the European Fencing Championships and the European Figure 
Skating Championships in particular.   We also did tree plantings, official 
openings, awards ceremonies, anniversary celebrations, attended concerts 
and shows and many events which reflected the cultural and multi-ethnic 
diversity in our City.  

  
3.4 Most of the events that I initiated were around my own particular interests.  

They included charity coffee mornings, several local history events for which 
my thanks go particularly to Archives and Local Studies for their help and the 
Lord Mayor’s Singing Festival so enthusiastically organised by the Music 
Service and which I hope will continue and will eventually lead to the 
formation of a City Youth Choir. 

  
3.5 I was keen to continue with the Lord Mayor’s Junior Citizens Award.  It was a 

pleasure to work with the Duke of Edinburgh Awards team and to see the 
pride on the young people’s faces when they received their certificates. 

  
3.6 I can also report that the Lord Mayor’s section on the Council’s website now 

includes the weekly list of Lord Mayor’s engagements which I hope will make 
it easier for Sheffielders to find out about the Lord Mayor’s activities. .  I also 
became the first Sheffield Lord Mayor to tweet on a regular basis.  

  
 Lord Mayor’s Charity Fund 
  
3.7 I would like to thank all those who helped me during the year with fund-

raising for my chosen charities, SRSB (the Sheffield Royal Society for the 
Blind) and the British Heart Foundation and particularly their Mending Broken 
Hearts Appeal.  I am grateful to all those who contributed by running 
concerts at the Town Hall and the City Hall, a Lord Mayor’s pilates class, 
Radio Ramadhan and Holy Trinity Millhouses and many others for their 
donations, Councillor Ray Satur for organising the Lord Mayor’ Charity dinner 
and an evening at Owlerton Stadium and the Deputy Chief Executive for 
organising a quiz evening.  Together we succeeded in raising around 
£27,000, most of which has gone to my two main charities but a number of 
other organisations have also had small donations. 

  
3.8 I have learned during the year how much work is required to raise funds for 

charity and could not have achieved such a great total without the assistance 
of many helpers, both friends and volunteers from my two charities.  I hope 
that for future Lord Mayors the Council would look at setting up a fund-raising 
group which meets regularly and which could assist with organising events, 
acquiring prizes and lots for raffles and auctions and raffles and overseeing 
the finances.  

Page 165



 

- 4 - 
 

 
  
4. Recommendations 
  
 School Visits 
  
4.1  It is a joy to visit schools and to welcome school parties to the Town Hall.  

The children are usually wide-eyed at the magnificence of the Parlour!  
However, it appears that a number of schools have regular engagement with 
the Lord Mayor on an annual basis whilst others are not even aware that 
they can.  The most satisfactory engagement, I found, is with junior school 
age children, especially with school councils, and with pupils from special 
schools.   I would recommend therefore that all the City’s junior schools are 
made aware that they can meet with the Lord Mayor and that a rota should 
be introduced to enable many more primary schools to take advantage of the 
opportunity of either visiting the Town Hall or having the Lord Mayor visit 
them. 

  
 Twin Cities 
  
4.2 During my year we were fortunate to be invited to visit our Germany twin city, 

Bochum and also to receive visitors from other cities which have a special 
link with Sheffield such as from Chengdu and Esteli.  Such visitors always 
bring gifts to present to the City and there are many such items in the Parlour 
which are seen by very few people.  I would recommend a second display 
case is introduced to the landing area outside the reception rooms on the 
first floor of the Town Hall to allow all the gifts from our linked cities to be 
displayed and seen by Members and by visitors to the Town Hall. 

  
 Sheffield Legends 
  
4.3 The Sheffield Legends idea was introduced 10 years ago.  It is a very open 

process with possible Legends being nominated by the public and then 
scored by a panel consisting of representatives from different sectors in the 
City such as education, media, arts, sport.  However, the main criterion for 
being selected as a Legend is that the person should be known nationally or, 
preferably, internationally.  I was delighted that Dame Margaret Drabble 
emerged as this year’s Legend as she has always been supportive of the 
City and is one of our greatest novelists.  In addition we have never had a 
writer as a Legend before. 

  
4.4 However, having seen the names of all those nominated I am very aware 

that some of them have made a huge contribution to the City and are well 
known within the City but would probably never be chosen as a Legend as 
they are less well-known outside Sheffield.  It would be good if there could be 
a scheme which recognised such people.  I believe that when former 
Councillor Graham Oxley was Lord Mayor the idea of a Lord Mayor’s 
Citizen’s Award was mooted.  I would like to recommend that this concept is 
taken further and the possibility of some such scheme being introduced is 
explored. 

Page 166



 

- 5 - 
 

  
 The Parlour 
  
4.5 This is obviously the province of the current Lord Mayor but I was very 

conscious that the Lord Mayor’s Parlour was not very heavily used.  I am 
aware that one week, for example, I was out and about the whole time and 
didn’t go in the Parlour at all.  It seems a pity that such a magnificent room is 
not made more use of in the Lord Mayor’s absence – particularly for hosting 
such occasions as visiting delegations or high profile meetings.  

  
4.6 The other issue with the Parlour is that because of the listed status of the 

panelling it is extremely difficult to display any new pictures and getting any 
of the existing ones changed seems singularly fraught with difficulty.  I was 
presented with several pictures during my year and am disappointed that I 
have just had to leave them propped up and that they can’t be hung properly.   
It is also embarrassing if someone who has presented a picture comes to the 
Parlour again and finds their picture is not on display.    

  
 Corporate Gifts 
  
4.7 Like previous Lord Mayors I found the Council’s lack of a corporate gifts 

policy frustrating.   It goes without saying that foreign visitors in particular 
invariably come with a gift for the City and it is frankly embarrassing that the 
City has very little offer in return or that someone has to dash out to acquire 
something suitable at the last minute.  This issue really ought to be 
addressed.  

  
4.8 Resources 
  
 The Lord Mayor gets invaluable support from the office staff, drivers, mace 

bearer and Town Hall attendants and I would like to thank all of them for 
helping us so much.  I am though a little concerned that the resources 
available to support the Lord Mayor are dwindling year by year.  I understand 
that the budget for the Sheffield Lord Mayor is already less than that of many 
other major cities and I am aware that the budget has taken a higher level of 
cut over the past two years than the average across the Council.  I believe 
consideration needs to be given to what the Council and the City wants from 
the Lord Mayor and how he/she will operate in future if resources are to be 
reduced even further.  

  
5. Recommendation 
  
5.1 I would ask that the Council Meeting notes this report and gives 

consideration to the specific recommendations I have made. 
  
  
 Dr. Sylvia Dunkley, 

Lord Mayor 2011/12 
  
 

Page 167



Page 168

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes Of Previous Council Meeting
	Minutes of the full Council meeting held on 4 July 2012

	6 Proportional Allocation of Seats on Council Committees - Update
	7 Establishment of a South Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel and Appointment of Local Authority Members
	9 Changes to the Constitution
	Constitution Appendices 1 to 16

	10 Annual Report of the Lord Mayor 2011/12

